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THEMBEREBERE

TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL AND OPERATION HIGHLIGHTS

(B 15 Bt 8H5) - LA B BB T 43 E7)

(In HK$ million unless otherwise specified)

fHERE

EF

EH =

e m N (HiE4)

IR IR (B t4)

EBITDA (#t:t4)

EBITDA & F| & (41 :24)

AR R PR EAE SR A (B at4)
WEBRR (M 74)
FHEERBRRR (M it4)
FHARQRREEEERORE (FaF4)

Sales

Gross profit

Gross margin

Operating profit (Note 4)

Operating margin (Note 4)

EBITDA (Note 4)

EBITDA margin (Note 4)

Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company (Note 4)
Return on sales (Note 4)

Return on average total assets (Note 4)

Return on average equity attributable to shareholders of the Company (Note 4)

Be MRITEFRRITER

LEED (Wit4)

BEME (Hit4)

BEAR (M)
FEHRAZREBLLE (BE) (HE1)
mEN LR (R8O (M iE4)

Cash and bank balances less bank loans
Working capital (Note 4)

Total assets (Note 4)

Total liabilities (Note 4)

Inventory turnover on costs (days) (Note 1)
Current ratio (times) (Note 4)

BRAN-EXCEM)
BB CEL)
B RIS CEAL)

Earnings per share — Basic (HK cents)
Dividend per share (HK cents)
Special dividend per share (HK cents)

R B b = Dividend payout ratio
miZmBROEE (FK) Number of shares outstanding (in thousands)
MEAE Market capitalization
FRMMEE Stores as at year end
SEEECHEE Stores operated directly by the Group

MR EEZ W (HZ2)

Stores operated by franchisees (Note 2)

2RI AR Total stores worldwide

Biat - Notes:

1. FREAZFERDFHERAFTUFANHEH 1. Inventory held at year end divided by cost of sales and muitiplied by number of days
in the year

2. HBEHEREERA WRAHEERE R (2011
FRUFIFRE) - B RFEB (20155 R IXFTFE) -
B (2017F RAFIFE) RE=ZNBEEHHEEZ 5T
7l

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

2. Stores in markets operated by a joint venture in South Korea, United Arab Emirates
and Saudi Arabia (prior to year 2011), Kuwait and Qatar (prior to year 2015), Vietnam
(prior to year 2017), and third-party franchisees

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F



TFHMBRRIERE
TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL AND OPERATION HIGHLIGHTS

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
5,412 5,145 5,381 5,645 5,848 5,673 5,614 4,731 4,233 5,048
3,221 3,055 3,097 3,214 3,551 3,331 3,283 2,731 2,175 2,439
59.5% 59.4% 57.6% 58.0% 60.7% 58.7% 58.5% 57.7% 51.4% 48.3%
689 568 556 542 828 1,005 909 695 320 325
12.7% 11.0% 10.3% 9.8% 14.2% 17.7% 16.2% 14.7% 7.6% 6.4%
874 748 743 760 1,066 1,247 1,123 866 487 558
16.1% 14.5% 13.8% 13.7% 18.2% 22.0% 20.0% 18.3% 11.5% 11.1%
500 434 426 408 663 826 728 537 288 311
9.2% 8.4% 7.9% 7.4% 11.3% 14.6% 13.0% 11.4% 6.8% 6.2%

13.5% 12.2% 11.5% 11.0% 16.1% 21.1% 21.8% 18.5% 11.1% 11.5%
17.5% 15.2% 14.5% 13.8% 21.8% 28.8% 28.3% 23.7% 14.5% 16.4%

1,167 1,095 1,076 915 1,105 1,173 1,209 978 750 454
1,526 1,410 1,405 1,401 1,616 1,555 1,658 1,385 1,047 742
4,322 4,114 3,847 3,857 4,469 4,605 3,822 3,320 2,810 2,657
1,181 1,147 881 773 1,220 1,452 1,001 827 624 651
87 78 78 80 82 74 95 74 52 42
2.5 2.4 2.9 3.1 2.6 2.3 2.8 2.9 3.0 2.3
31.80 27.70 27.10 26.00 42.60 53.80 48.20 36.00 19.30 20.80
35.0 27.50 27.00 25.00 40.00 40.00 38.00 11.50 9.00 7.50
- - - - - - - 15.50 7.00 2.00

110.1% 99.3% 99.6% 96.2% 93.9% 74.3% 78.8% 75.0% 82.9% 45.7%
1,570,631 1,570,953 1,570,395 1,669,913 1,566,837 1,543,709 1,621,291 1,496,069 1,491,647 1,491,647

6,534 6,582 5,701 5,400 10,858 11,501 8,565 6,777 3,431 2,909
1,349 1,364 1,385 1,451 1,499 1,449 1,232 1,052 1,015 1,036
1,065 1,033 986 1,001 1,143 1,199 1,439 1,301 1,099 970
2,414 2,397 2,371 2,452 2,642 2,648 2,671 2,353 2,114 2,006
3. 20084 ! &Placita: 3. Disposal of Placita in 2008:
R20084F + 7K 5 3] ] & B F 2 7K 232 1 & 22 E]Placita In 2008, the Group disposed of its principal garment manufacturing subsidiary Placita
Holdings Ltd ([Placita)) - 7% BT &% Placitaz 2008 % #& Holdings Ltd (“Placita”). The Group’s 2008 results excluding Placita are summarized
AEAELT - below:
(BHFIFRES), - U B &L AE ) (In HK$ million unless otherwise specified) 2008
HEE Sales 4,710
EF Gross profit 2,362
EFE Gross margin 50.1%
A E T Operating profit 330
AT T Operating margin 7.0%
EBITDA EBITDA 529
EBITDA F % EBITDA margin 11.2%
KR EI RN 5 T Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company 290
HE Bl E Return on sales 6.2%

4. 2013F RUBIFEZHFIWAKARNE BESEA19/1E 4. The adoption impact of HKAS 19 “Employee benefits” are not reflected in the years
B &7 i (] 55 prior to year 2013

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Directors”) (collectively, the
“Board”), | am pleased to present the annual results of Giordano
International Limited (the “Company”), together with its subsidiaries (the
“Group”), for the year ended December 31, 2017.

For the year 2017, the Group’s profit after income taxes attributable to
shareholders improved from 2016’s HK$434 million to HK$500 million,
an increase of 15.2%. While gross margin was virtually unchanged at
59.5%, consolidated sales and gross profit advanced by 5.2% and
5.4%, respectively. Having considered the Group’s business outlook
and financial position, the Board has approved a total dividend of 35.0
HK cents per share. Management has provided a thorough discussion
and analysis of the 2017 results of operations and financial condition in
this annual report.

We have continued with our business strategy based on solid earnings,
healthy financial condition and sustainable growth. This entails quality
merchandise, superb customer service, efficiency enhancement,
meaningful innovation, determined franchise expansions and aggressive
digital business development.

Our global stores are now at 2,414. Of the 1,065 franchised stores, 605
are in Mainland China where the franchised stores increased by 43. Of
the reported 2017 consolidated sales, digital sales were 5.7%, against
4.6% in 2016.

People are our greatest asset. While reliant on its experienced
managers to ensure a solid management system, the Group also
charges its newer and younger managers to stimulate innovativeness.
| am pleased to report that our “fast track” management program has
now been launched globally.

| need not elaborate on the uncertainties in 2018 and beyond, affected
by unfamiliar regional politics and worldwide government policies. We
are steadfast with our grand strategy and are committed to continue
providing solid earnings in spite of these uncertainties.

As always, the Group observes the highest standards of transparency
and social responsibility. | refer you to the standalone Environmental,
Social and Governance Report contained in this annual report for
details of the Group’s relevant policy and practice.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

B AARSHEEABEFE LRI HRMALI  Finally, | and my senior management team would like to thank our
HOEBRBHELET —BHURYRMOESEEY  shareholders, business partners and staff for the trust bestowed upon,

o and the support afforded to us.
2R Lau Kwok Kuen, Peter
FERTHAEE Chairman and Chief Executive
7% 201843 A8H Hong Kong, March 8, 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
GROUP RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL
POSITION

The following commentaries refer to year-on-year (“YOY”) comparison
of the Group, for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 unless
otherwise indicated.

OVERVIEW

1

The Group is an international apparel retailer with a portfolio of
brands, including Giordano and Giordano Junior, Giordano Ladies,
BSX as well as other owned and licensed brands.

We offer high-quality, easy-to-wear apparel at value-for-money
prices through a network of 2,414 stores (or 2,312,200 sq. ft. of
retail floor space) as at December 31, 2017, of which 1,268 were
standalone stores. Majority of the stores were in Greater China,
South Korea, Southeast Asia and the Middle East. We manage
our stores by geographic regions and by distribution channels. Net
increase of stores during the year was 17, shown in Table 1.

Group sales’ for the year were HK$5,412 million at a gross margin
of 569.5%. The Group’s comparable store gross profit (“Group
CSGP”)? was up by 5.0%, with comparable store sales (“Group
CSS”")? up by 5.2%. Table 2 provides details and by major market.

Profit after income taxes attributable to shareholders of the
Company (“PATS”) was HK$500 million, an increase of 15.2%,
over 2016.

Cash and bank balances, net of bank loans, were HK$1,167
million at December 31, 2017.

Group sales refer to consolidated sales and include retail sales from directly operated
stores and sales to all overseas/non-consolidated franchisees.

Group CSS/CSGP are total Giordano brand sales/gross profit of consolidated

subsidiaries, at constant exchange rates, from existing directly operated stores and
franchised stores that have been fully operating in the same prior period.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

®1:Mm4As Table 1: Store portfolio
Z2EEH
(FEHFR)
P &R M12A31H
M12831H Retail floor space
Store numbers (sq. ft. in thousands)
at December 31 at December 31
2017 2016 2017 2016
ZERDH Retail and Distribution

el Mainland China
BHEE DOS 324 357 268 300
NS Franchised stores 605 562 471 453
TR E b3 [® The rest of Asia Pacific 602 581 619 578
=0 Taiwan 200 203 195 197

R The Middle East
BEEIE DOS 148 150 182 181
nERJE Franchised stores 41 41 44 43
E8 KR Hong Kong and Macau 75 73 86 82
BN IR Overseas franchisees 419 430 447 485
wmey Total 2,414 2,397 2,312 2,319

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REXE
R2 . AKEEERE

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Table 2: Group results of operations

hHER HHES
Bt BOt
% to % t0 28
(U B EZTHAEN) (In HK$ million) 2017 sales 2016 sales Change
TAHME The rest of Asia Pacific 1,502 27.8% 1,388 27.0% 8.2%
REIARE Mainland China 1,307 24.1% 1,285 25.0% 1.7%
B8 MR Hong Kong and Macau 969 17.9% 927 18.0% 4.5%
FE The Middle East 673 12.4% 626 12.2% 7.5%
=y Taiwan 642 11.9% 615 11.9% 4.4%
HEMNNBH A BHES Wholesale sales to
overseas franchisees 319 5.9% 304 5.9% 4.9%
AEEHER Group sales 5,412 100.0% 5,145 100.0% 5.2%
EF Gross profit 3,221 59.5% 3,055 59.4% 5.4%
BEBR Operating expense (2,644) (48.9%) (2,572) (50.0%) 2.8%
Kl Operating profit 689 12.7% 568 11.0% 21.3%
EBITDA EBITDA 874 16.1% 748 14.5% 16.8%
e PATS 500 9.2% 434 8.4% 15.2%
2R hE B s Global brand sales® 7,002 6,795 3.0%
2 BEER Global brand gross profit® 4,332 4,156 4.2%
AEETLBPIMHEEEERE  Group CSS growth 5.2% (0.2%)
REETHERTEARER Group CSGP growth 5.0% 1.8%
FEXRFeRRTETFE Net cash and bank balances
at year end 1,167 1,095 6.6%
EXEE Inventories at year end 524 447 17.2%
BEHRAZRERY Inventory turnover on cost
([FErREAE)(R) (“ITOC") (days)* 87 8 9

é RIS HERE B IR017TFERBRE  HeEES  °
BRREEE MBEERAEARZMATZTEHER £
FlugsE AtenRAEBEEEEHM -

¢ FEREABEFABAZFERNHEERARUZEE ¢
SE

10 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

Global brand sales/gross profit are at 2017 exchange rates, and are greater than
Group sales/gross profit to include the total of Giordano retail sales/gross profit, in
directly operated stores, franchised stores and stores operated by a joint venture.

ITOC refers to inventories held at year end divided by cost of sales and multiplied by
number of days in the year.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

HEBEREF
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EFRNFE=TFALRMNEEHL - HLRE
EENKRARIIOEET  BREERRB31.4% (AR
3) FEAEMNEFHBHERGASREETRH
BHERMIB.2%  WEEBHRYEHE  SF AL

FHEERESRS282% K - RIMESENETHE
BRERETTHNE  BERARF - AETEHIBE
T o 20175 - AEBEZEMISHLE T -

FERAAI R R M G R Al B E 4R -

EREHEREGSII%IBERL R - HEA LB

SO0 R 7 2 HE B SH E BRI IE R2.9% o P B KEE R
HHREERERREERRD  EHEREHNF

([FEDERREG SHMNBEHZHEESEH2017
FUIRAIE2016F K ©

1ZUME T I Gh R A 48 G R S B A RI88.1% © AP
BOLERBZRREZNRES  AJHBEPIMEE
BHEEFRNAOTRIRESE FHEFMIE12.9% - &
FA LRI EE R LA LRI EF 9 B4 N
58%K%6.7% c BEZAILERPFIMHERE LA LR
FITTEF D B 115.8% K5.4% ° FELR & & 85 7%
RS T  BERZALRIIMHEEEIER16.1% -
MAl LI EFA EH19.3% - EE A LA™
HEBRALERPITEFN S RI$£150.2%%0.9% 2
BUNEE - PR = E L2 M EGiordano Ladies
BEER 20175 KW - B M % B79MGiordano
LadiesPTT » $R1S 42§ E 5842318 T - 820164
#4.01E B LIE IN5.5% ©

Sales and gross profit

Group sales increased by 5.2%, or by 4.3% if translated at constant
exchange rates. The second half registered a stronger growth of 6.9%,
better than the 3.4% recorded in the first half. Group CSS and CSGP
were up by 5.2% and 5.0%, respectively.

The Group’s e-business is directly managed and derived mainly from
third party platforms as well as our own proprietary website in Greater
China. This channel generated HK$310 million in revenue at a 31.4%
growth rate (see Table 3). Accounting for 93.2% of Group’s e-business
sales, e-business in Mainland China continued its momentum and
recorded a 28.2% increase in sales on various platforms combined.
Our e-business in Taiwan was revamped during the year and is now
the second largest e-business operation. In 2017, the Group launched
e-businesses in a number of its markets and anticipates meaningful
contributions within the next two years.

Sales from physical stores recorded a stable growth of 4.1%.
Wholesale sales to both onshore and offshore franchisees grew by
2.9%. Wholesale sales would have achieved a stronger growth in
Mainland China, but an early Chinese New Year (“CNY”) shifted sales to
franchisees from early 2017 to late 2016.

Core Giordano lines constituted 88.1% of total brand sales. The
performance of our core womenswear improved significantly and CSS
had turned from a negative 0.7% for the first half to a positive 12.9%
for the second half. Full year CSS and CSGP were up by 5.8% and
6.7%, respectively. Menswear’'s CSS and CSGP were up by 5.8% and
5.4%, respectively. Under an integrated marketing approach, CSS
of childrenswear rose by 16.1% while CSGP rose by 19.3%. Despite
recording smaller growth rates for CSS and CSGP of 0.2% and 0.9%,
respectively, our premium womenswear brand, Giordano Ladies,
continued to expand. During 2017, we had 79 Giordano Ladies stores
and recorded total sales of HK$423 million, compared with HK$401
million in 2016, representing an increase of 5.5%.

R . BREE I ZHER Table 3: Sales by channel

Bt L 25

(UBEEFTAEN) (In HK$ million) 2017 Contribution 2016 Contribution Change

EEEE Physical stores 4,366 80.7% 4,194 81.5% 41%

BIE% E-business 310 5.7% 236 4.6% 31.4%

TEHESR Retail sales 4,676 86.4% 4,430 86.1% 5.6%
UMBEm A BEESR Wholesale sales to

franchisees 736 13.6% 715 13.9% 2.9%

AEEHER Group sales 5,412 100.0% 5,145 100.0% 5.2%

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REBEBEF IS B RELEZHEBLEKTE®E The Group is steadfast in defending gross margin through disciplined
DR EFR X - REEEFEXHFA01EH 92 merchandising and stringent pricing. Group gross margin was slightly
£595%  AEEE N IE R5.4%E32.21{E% 7 up by 0.1 percentage point to 59.5%. Group gross profit grew by
(20164 : 3055(EHT) T ELEFAANEME  5.4% to HK$3,221 milion (2016: HK$3,055 million), driven mainly by
7TO%FTE - FHEB L FHERKAD R T  volume increase of 7.9%. Average selling price and average product
41%K%4A.0% FHERKATEREIELZRABAR  cost declined by 4.1% and 4.0%, respectively. Average product cost
WHzME ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ’\ﬁﬁ'ﬂﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁqﬂlkﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ 9k was lowered largely due to the depreciation of Renminbi as majority
M BETEB0ITFE=_FTEEHBER - of products were sourced from Mainland China. However, the impact
BEYHARKEXE &@J}EﬁﬁXE‘JQI\[J—LﬁA{%F% has been diminishing since the third quarter of 2017. Management is
15 W T KSR R ETEEE - Nim k&  alert to the foreign exchange risk from the Renminbi fluctuation and
IIREITBINREE P2 A —IEE M - WAABY  has undertaken strategic risk reduction measures. Overseas sourcing
HIFFIRS AL ERR - mHITEEFBEF AP from Vietnam and Bangladesh is one such measure and will help
B - NEER0I7TEEFB AR - F%  BFIKEH  maintain or improve future gross margin. Challenged by inventory glut
R AR EEREES - A > AE&EBE  in the industry, the Group’s markets in Mainland China, Hong Kong,
HEFNRENMEREKT - R4BHTAEEERN Macau and the Middle East resorted to controlled sale promotions in
ZEE DT o 2017. The Group’s inventory, however, remains healthy. An analysis of
change in Group gross profit is provided in Table 4.

R4 BHEE D ZERNZEDN Table 4: Gross profit variance analysis by region
Efgg
EmAA EE BEWE  Translational
Product Selling #E  Vietnam exchange Bt
(WEEETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2016 costs price Volume  acquisition impact  Miscellaneous 2017
SREMBE The rest of Asia Pacific 829 (11) 35 14 27 10 4) 900
EAE Mainland China 698 2 (43) 39 - 4 @ 708
BARRH Hong Kong and Macau 640 11 (57) 69 - - 1 664
mE The Middle East 413 14 (72) 82 - - ©6) 431
a2 Taiwan 362 10 9 (19) - 25 1 304
i Market mix - ) 20 (18) i - } _
BERIH Retail and distribution 2,942 44 (108) 173 27 31 (12) 3,097
HiEMMERE/HBAT  Wholesales to overseas
LHE franchisees/
Subsidiaries 113 124
&8 Group 3,055 3,221
HttwW AR HEft iz - F8 Other income and other gains, net

HEMU AR EMU R eESIrER A - & UW A~ Other income and other gains comprised royalty income, rental income,
EH =% HEEEZWEARFMBEUWA - Hi  exchange difference, gain from disposal of assets and interest income.
AR E MR ZFER2017FE 12,7008 B T E1.12/8 It increased by HK$27 million to HK$112 million in 2017. The upsurge
BT DT ERRERWE - FBWA KR —IEAMH  was mainly due to exchange gain, interest income and the disposal
HESREE HEWRETE - gain of an available-for-sale financial asset.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
T 7 o BE BB R L F ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F ik
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KEEH

KEBRRBIET B LEMIMHESHEENSE
EBRAEEETHRIAGEE D EE48.9% (20164 :
50.0%) - AR T REXREZHEEURERE
BRAGE ZHEMAEZMAT Mt HEEEy
LERBEATR  LERERPEWER - FImESYE
HERE 2 LR A21.4% (20164F  22.7%) ° AR
WANERS BTRAEGIN B8 TALHER
ZHRDMAT 5% EM TR ZE17.4% ° I TYHR A
EBEHEEEBNMS 2% AN AN ERERRENE
FT ek o

5£T§5FIJ
R F IR R21.3% o KBl 5 Hh 18 359 8715 & (7 88
= fﬁ%%rﬁaﬁfmﬁ REIRREREE  IhThE

Z N RE RORBEAE G B AR RA A A
B BEEEREPAI D R A H2018F M H L
R R N

Operating expense

While operating expense continued to be stable, higher CSS improved
operating expense leverage by 1.1 percentage points to 48.9%
(2016: 50.0%). Shop occupancy charges to sales was lowered due
to the closure of non-performing DOS and the opening of stores in
more reasonably priced locations, particularly in Greater China. Shop
occupancy charges to sales were 21.4% (2016: 22.7%). Although
staff cost increased due to manpower shortage in the industry, total
staff cost to sales dropped slightly from 17.5% to 17.4%. This was
due to a 5.2% increase in Group sales and a better human resource
management process.

Operating profit

Operating profit rose by 21.3%. Most regions recorded double-digit
growth, particularly Southeast Asia regions, Mainland China and
Taiwan, attributable mainly to improved merchandising and channel mix
as well as effective cost control. Management expects operating margin
in most regions will be maintained in 2018.

RS BMWEE S ZHEERZLE RN ER Table 5: Sales and operating profit contribution by region

i & 8l 2 2 B

Contribution by region
mE R
SHER Operating
HZE2017F12A31B L FE For the year ended December 31, 2017 Sales profit
o5 K H fih it [& The rest of Asia Pacific 27.8% 29.6%
A 5 K e Mainland China 24.1% 17.1%
B8 KR Hong Kong and Macau 17.9% 13.8%
R The Middle East 12.4% 17.6%
= Taiwan 11.9% 9.3%
HFHNINBE P 2 3 Wholesales to overseas franchisees 5.9% 8.3%
HEIN B AR 2 B E Wholesales to overseas subsidiaries - 9.4%
BEER - B E U A Kz Headquarter expense, net of

other income and gains - (5.1%)
100.0% 100.0%

REH

Fr8®i 1. 758 B T (20164 - 1.22(887T) » BE
TR R B23.5% (20164 : 20.0%) - F£A - HBEHE
REALE—HHBARBEIFEZHBBERAR
BE -BEREREH T —MHENHIHBENE
REBDR2017TFERILFT IR —A R BEE - &
TEFAZ—RERBEE - EEHERAE21.5% °
ERHEREM EARRAREESM S 2 BB
DOETEL
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Income taxes

Income taxes amounted to HK$175 million (2016: HK$122 million),
representing an effective tax rate of 23.5% (2016: 20.0%). During the
year, the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department initiated a review on
the prior years’ tax affairs of a subsidiary of the Group. An additional
tax assessment was subsequently issued and a one-off tax provision
was made in the year of 2017. In the absence of this one-off tax
provision, the effective tax rate would be 21.5%. The slightly higher
effective tax rate resulted from greater contributions from higher tax
markets.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A X EKAERLF
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KA BRRELEBRAEHEZRER
WNMRGFTR - IRERFEAL E T EFH15.2%25.0018 78
70 (20164 4341878 70) » ERN LTt 2 RA -
AR R Y8.4%IBROBEE DB E9.2% o

®6: RREMEZRNBEB DN

Profit after income taxes attributable to shareholders of

the Company

PATS increased by 15.2% to HK$500 million (2016: HK$434 million), as
shown in Table 6. Net margin advanced by 0.8 percentage point from

8.4% to 9.2%, for reasons cited in the preceding commentaries.

Table 6: Analysis of change in PATS

(KB EEFTHENMN) (In HK$ million)
2 520165 IR 3R FE (L 3= 7 Reported 2016 PATS 434
oo A H At i & The rest of Asia Pacific 38
= Taiwan 22
A B K frE Mainland China 17
[P South Korea 15
PR The Middle East 12
OGN NEETE B A B 2 B Wholesales to overseas franchisees/subsidiaries 9
BB RRM Hong Kong and Macau 8
FTiS#i - JFiEdlitiEs R ERANAILER Income taxes, non-controlling interests, finance expense

and headquarter expense (61)
017F A ERBREEZE 2RRELEER 2017 PATS without currency translation difference 494
BEinE =L Currency translation difference 6
B 3R £52017F I 3R FE 45 % A Reported 2017 PATS 500

™% oA ANALYSIS BY MARKET

UTERNEMWERREN HWERAETLRE
- BIRIREEE R - AWM REM B RERMEL
2R o BB R OARMER ASEE M ERE D E R
RAZZE(ME) -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

The following comments are in local currencies or, if in HK$, are at
constant exchange rates to remove distortions from the translation
of financial statements. These figures have not removed impacts on

imported product costs contracted at non-local currencies, if any.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F
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HR B K BE Mainland China
RT . PEIKE Table 7: Mainland China
RS ER HHER
BO B

% to % to 25
(UANREFETEEN) (In Renminbi million) 2017 sales 2016 sales Change
BE DOS 556 49.3% 590 53.5% (5.8%)
AN 2 % Wholesales to franchisees 323 28.6% 318 28.8% 1.6%
BIEH% E-business 250 22.1% 195 17.7% 28.2%
e Total sales 1,129 100.0% 1,103 100.0% 2.4%
= Gross profit 612 54.2% 599 54.3% 2.2%
BEBR Operating expense (522) (46.2%) (526) (47.7%) (0.8%)
mERF Operating profit 102 9.0% 87 7.9% 17.2%
EEE DOS 556 536 (5.1%)
M5 Franchised stores 546 525 4.0%
BIEH% E-business 250 199 25.6%
mIEHEEE Total brand sales 1,352 1,310 3.2%

ABMMEERERE CSS growth 8.9% (1.6%)

ARMMEMERE CSGP growth 8.9% 0.4%
EEE DOS 324 357 (33)
Mg Franchised stores 605 562 43
FERMMEHE Stores at year end 929 919 10

BEBRFIFEHR  EFRMNPEARERGEE

B WA - BT BB R

KL MERRERT

TERBAOKRY  UBEEKRASRMETHME

MRS EERE -

EHBNAEM
*8: BAEKEM

Our Mainland China business continued to progress at a solid pace
despite the highly competitive environment last year. The two strategic
channels of e-business and franchising achieved milestone successes

and will continue to be our key drivers in the medium term.

Hong Kong and Macau

Table 8: Hong Kong and Macau

hHERE HHER
B B
% to % to 25
(U B ESTAER) (In HK$ million) 2017 sales 2016 sales Change
BIEER Total sales 969 100.0% 927 100.0% 4.5%
EF Gross profit 664 68.5% 640 69.0% 3.8%
= ge Operating expense (567) (58.5%) (562) (60.6%) 0.9%
G Operating profit 95 9.8% 87 9.4% 9.2%
ALBRMAmHEEELRE CSS growth 5.7% 0.1%
ALBRAmEMERE CSGP growth 4.7% 3.5%
FRMMEE Stores at year end 75 73 )

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 %
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EREBRRF - BMERZEHTE - BRHZEH
/E@LA&?T%ZﬁiK# ISR T EEAEEERS -
LA LPITMSR EREEFRE - S HERTRE
R -

In Hong Kong and Macau, well executed marketing programs, smart
promotional activities and stringent cost control contributed to overall
positive results. Marketing programs and store refitting aimed at
upgrading brand image is continuing.

8 Taiwan
®9:. /8 Table 9: Taiwan
HHEHR HHER
BAOk B
(In New Taiwanese % to % to 28
(UBEHEMAREN) Dollar million) 2017 sales 2016 sales Change
BHER Total sales 2,516 100.0% 2,571 100.0% (2.1%)
e Gross profit 1,543 61.3% 1,514 58.9% 1.9%
KEER Operating expense (1,316) (52.3%) (1,354) (52.7%) (2.8%)
T A | Operating profit 249 9.9% 162 6.3% 53.7%
AR mEEEERE CSS growth 1.1% (3.4%)
ALBRAmEMERE CSGP growth 5.2% (2.5%)
FRMAMEE Stores at year end 200 203 (3)

REEBBRERBB017TFE_FERLERE

TRERERARBAREZPIT - RAES - £EX
KEHEEHLARBHENERTE  URKEE
MAEXE —EAEN T BORETIEFM<S FHEESR
PrETt - BIEERHERE A A FAEE2018% -

DAHMMEE
®10: BAHM#E

Taiwan’s overall performance rebounded since the second quarter
of 2017, owing to closure of non-performing stores, cost control,
lower product costs from New Taiwanese Dollar appreciation against
Renminbi, and most importantly, relentless branding efforts to increase
average selling price. Management expects that the growth momentum
will continue in 2018.

The rest of Asia Pacific

Table 10: The rest of Asia Pacific region

HEER HHER
B ARl
(UBEETAEN (In HKS$ million, translated at % to % to 25
KEFEXHE) constant exchange rates) 2017 sales 2016 sales Change
e Total sales 1,487 100.0% 1,388 100.0% 7.1%
EF Gross profit 890 59.9% 829 59.7% 7.4%
BEEBR Operating expense (701) (47.1%) (670) (48.3%) 4.6%
R Operating profit 203 13.7% 165 11.9% 23.0%
ABMmEERERE CSS growth 2.2% 4.6%
AEMTEMNERE CSGP growth 3.1% 5.6%
FRMAMEE Stores at year end 602 581 21

FERAREMIE - WEBEEKRB20179F7 AR
HELT i S E EEA2.8% o LB R 2 48 2R F
BEEMH AR FRIRENRE - FRA:
RET TS -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

In the rest of Asia Pacific, acquisition of the Vietham operations since
July 2017 contributed to 2.8% of the sales from this region. Operating
profit from the region recorded strong double-digit growth, particularly
in Indonesia, Malaysia and Singapore.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F
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Table 11: The rest of Asia Pacific region (by market)

THBAT B34k EX

HEB HEBERE ZRIBRE Pkt ¢

Sales CSS growth CSGP growth Stores at year end
(HEEETAEN (In HKS million, translated at 88

REFEF#E) constant exchange rates) 2017 2016 Change 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

0 Indonesia 555 491 13.0% 8.1% 53%  10.3% 4.4% 252 237
b Thailand 309 319 (3.1%)  (64%)  19.7% (7.5%)  21.3% 162 159
s Singapore 308 311 (1.0%) 0.2% (1.3%) 2.3% (0.8%) 44 45
SRED Malaysia 192 173 11.0% 8.8% (2.8%) 7.7% 2.3% 92 90
BA Australia 73 78 (6.4%) 7.2% (8.0%  10.8% (9.4%) 16 20
iy Vietnam* 4 - FEANA TERENA NEENA FEBNA TEENA 29 -
RER Cambodia 9 7 286%  29.8% 416%  34.9% 41.2% 1 1
g Indlia = 9 (100.0%) FEEANA  (392% FEENA  (39.2%) 6 29
@t Total 1,487 1,388 71% 2.2% 4.6% 3.1% 5.6% 602 581

MEEBR2017F7 A1 BKEE - BN RSREXEER

REBE A AR -

HREREENE DEASKATEFAZER
eI REESME T RITMES - NERS
RPG I 2 &SR F 9 Bl K 18.6% 526.0% © 70
WHE  BECEERUARERASRDZEMS
RE - EEEEANEBRI1I2% EFERAAE
FZ1E62.0%EE1.7EE DB E63.7%FTH - Z=H
F2016FMAHERERRFURATR AKX
B o A B E 2 L& REF TF20.1% » Mt
MBI HIRBAERRE BN S E - BEAREKR
ZPIMS2016F 2 & EFIBR2017FHE AR T -
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Vietnam operations were acquired on July 1, 2017 and its results have been
consolidated by the Group since the acquisition date.

Due to improved merchandise assortment, Indonesia and Malaysia
delivered good results in key Muslim festival promotions during the
year. Operating profit increased by 18.6% and 26.0% for Indonesia
and Malaysia, respectively. In Singapore, operating profit increased
by 31.2%, attributable mainly to the improvement of gross margin by
1.7 percentage points from 62.0% to 63.7%, even though the market
still suffered from a stagnant economy and low tourist traffic. The
unusually strong sales from Thailand in 2016 resulted in an unfavorable
YOY comparison. Operating profit declined by 20.1% in local currency
terms, but there were no fundamental concerns. In Australia, closure of
non-performing stores helped turn operating loss in 2016 into profit in
2017.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A X EKAERLF
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==l The Middle East
w12 AR Table 12: The Middle East
hHERE HHER
Bk B
(UBESTAEN (In HK$ million, translated at % to % to L-E)
BETEXRE) constant exchange rates) 2017 sales 2016 sales Change
BHESR Total sales 673 100.0% 626 100.0% 7.5%
E7 Gross profit 431 64.0% 413 66.0% 4.4%
BEBR Operating expense (313) (46.5%) (306) (48.9%) 2.3%
T Operating profit 120 17.8% 108 17.3% 11.1%
ALBRMATmHERERE CSS growth 6.2% (3.1%)
ARMTmEAERE CSGP growth 2.9% (1.5%)
FRMAMEE Stores at year end 189 191 @

SENERBRADAE - KIhz@m EEBBH
METR 28 )L A BUARK A S hRT 5
ESIHMEEEE KERMNENETBEAR
BAR BB IR HIFT B - BEENEEE RZ iR B E
TTEMREBBEREMETTEMAMEH

FE(—EHBYEEEREECES
48.5% =S & A T)

2z

Like Indonesia and Malaysia, successful merchandise, strong marketing
programs during the key Muslim festival and cost control contributed
to the positive operating results in the Middle East. Operating margin
improvement was mainly attributable to strict cost control offset by the
decrease in gross margin, reflecting industry-wide sales promotions in
the region.

South Korea (a 48.5% joint venture under an independent
management team)

K13 M8 Table 13: South Korea
hHERE HHER
B ER 4
% to % to 2E
(UBEZEBEZEN) (In Korean Won million) 2017 sales 2016 sales Change
sk Total sales 214,696 100.0% 215,037 100.0% (0.2%)
=S Gross profit 125,096 58.3% 119,822 55.7% 4.4%
o] Net profit 17,371 8.1% 12,641 5.9% 37.4%
JE 1535 FI Share of profit 8,425 6,131 37.4%
ALRMAmHEEEERE CSS growth (5.4%) (4.3%)
ALRAmEMERE CSGP growth (1.9%) (1.2%)
FRFIMYE Stores at year end 193 200 7

MBEGZANAREEN - TIEERE R AR
H - BERRBEPITNREN RN E -mRZFRE
BIEELELTK - #HONTTFE=FTEFE T K
B AHLBPIMEMNERXEFNFERERE
B FEECURAERBCERRARE  BE
EMRRBHZE -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

South Korea’s net profit surge resulted from better cost control, closure
of non-performing stores and enhancement in gross margin. Inventory
rationalization for South Korea was near completion. CSGP growth
returned to positive in the fourth quarter after declines in the first three
quarters in 2017. Inventory rationalization and lower product costs
due to shared sourcing have contributed to a substantial gross margin
improvement.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F
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g/ N BA R 2 HE 3
®14: BHNNBEZFTHE

Wholesales to overseas franchisees

Table 14: Store numbers of overseas franchisees

MR12H31H
At December 31
k- By market 2017 2016
Eald South Korea 193 200
ENEE Southeast Asia 212 217
H At T35 Other markets 14 13
P48 Total stores 419 430

HBININER  HE B EEFIERA9%EI19(8E
7T (20164 : 3.04(BETT) -MBERLRABEHA
FERERFELE L EEFHEm - 2017F 8
B EHERREMT14.2% °

SEREZ AL BRPIMHERSER R - MEMLEN
ARz A RPN HERARFIRE © H20174F
7TRAGAIRAT - BEEE S ETS - WE20174F
K2016F Ml 2 HE RS AR B E - Btk
HRz HEREKIRE8.0% EREEEEEAE
TAME PASN 2 INE, BB 2T o S AVIBRET
R BERBERTESHGETRPBEELDR -

Bt 7 AR R

RBESRMBER

—AE  AEB Z W BT 2R - 20174
12A318  IKRRITER B 2 RS RBITEFE
11.678 % 7T (20164 : 10.95(88 7T) @ I F LN
6.6% - IWIETERAANRCEERNE 265
BAETEESRAME  BRIE : (VEABEIRE
1.04B BT + KA R B IEIE &l RS X AR B
5.0218 8 TTATK 8 -

LB TTHE 2 M HAR 1 TIE B A2.981B 8 T (20164 :
298EB L) - AIRITEE RS EF AZMER
TRENFEEZERREGWEER —HESRBMTA -
AEEBZEREE(REEHERR S MRTET
BEANBIREEGED 2 EEFTE) B-0.4(2016
F:-0.4) - A2017F12A31H IR EIEE25.74
BAETERBAEEI048EEBETHE  AEEZR
Lt R 52.5(2016%F : 2.4) o
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Wholesale sales to overseas franchisees rose by 4.9% to HK$319
million (2016: HK$304 million). The South Korea joint venture has
begun to replenish inventories normally along with gradual clearance
of slow moving items. Wholesale sales to South Korea increased by
14.2% in 2017.

The Philippines registered sustainable CSS growth, while other
overseas franchisees’ CSS remain stable. Vietham was accounted for
as a wholesale market prior to consolidation in July 2017. Sales during
the period would have improved by 8.0% if the sales in Vietham were
not recorded under wholesale sales for both years 2017 and 2016.
Management is actively expanding franchise/wholesale footprints
outside of Asia Pacific. Though initially small, these newly developed
markets will pay off in the medium and long run.

FINANCIAL POSITION
Liquidity and financial resources

As usual, the Group’s financial position is very sound. At December
31, 2017, the cash and bank balances, net of bank loans, reached
HK$1,167 million (2016: HK$1,095 million) representing an increase
of 6.6% YQY. The increase was mainly attributable to HK$650 million
cash inflow from operating activities, partially offset by: () HK$104
million investment in capital expenditure; and (i) HK$502 million
dividend payment to shareholders and non-controlling interests.

The short-term bank borrowings, denominated in HK$, amounted to
HK$298 million (2016: HK$298 million). This was a financial instrument
designed to leverage interest rate differentials among banks in the
region for yield enhancement. The Group’s gearing ratio, defined as
the ratio of total borrowings less cash and bank balances to equity
attributable to shareholders of the Company was -0.4 (2016: -0.4). As
at December 31, 2017, the Group’s current ratio was 2.5 based on
current assets of HK$2,574 million and current liabilities of HK$1,048
million (2016: 2.4).

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A X EKAERLF
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MR HBERRE

RAFEE  HANERFZ /T O41T§%ﬁ(2016
F1.04E8T) - BN ERPIT RIE IR
BEREERERBEHRETR WEﬂﬁzTFﬁE’J
MR LEREREMRM

FERREZBLHERS

R MR ROE B B (E 2R 520129 R2015F IR
BHRER - HAEETFEREAALRSEHE
2017 4 B BUF 2 3 S ORIAE -

REELNTZER

AR T ZIEHPIEA48.6%NEER SRR 2
7 o AEERDOF WIS N8,3005 7 TT Jh A AR FE A5 i A
59008 BT R B E Z B R WA S EEFTE -

wH
NEBMP2017FE12 A31H 2 F &I /17,7008 8 7T
H17.2%E5.24E5 70 (20164 : 44718 TT) - 17
EREOEIEMORES7H - EXERMNIELE
HE - Pl /NERE Y Z8 CEBUEN4B) U RE
20177 AWEE M 1 CEBUS 28 ) ATEL -

BEASEREHEBLNBER 2 FEEHR - AR
RUBREBEZNEERBRINGEG - BZFEH
FEEMMBERE 2 FELIFAREMEPERRT »
MR G FERFIEN21.3% » T2 RELHF R
KME&EF Pﬁuu%%ﬁﬁ&&ZT%@Jéﬂ%bﬁéﬁEa o B
ERRENZERFEKRFLTEG B - A BT
ﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ*ﬁzxﬁﬁﬁéﬂ °

Property, plant and equipment

During the year, we incurred capital expenditure of HK$104 million
(2016: HK$104 million) on the back of additional stores and store
upgrades. Management will continue to invest in our shop ambiance to
strengthen our brand image, especially in Hong Kong and Macau.

Goodwill and put option liabilities

The goodwill and put option liabilities arose from the acquisition of the
Middle East operations in the years of 2012 and 2015. We carry out
annual impairment tests and concluded that there was no impairment
to goodwill in the 2017 financial year.

Interests in joint ventures

The balance mainly represents our 48.5% interest in the South Korea
joint venture. The increase by HK$83 million during the year was the
result of our share of profit of HK$59 million and currency translation
difference, offset by dividends received.

Inventories

Group inventories at December 31, 2017 increased by HK$77 million
or 17.2% to HK$524 million (2016: HK$447 million). ITOC increased
by 9 days to 87 days. This was mainly due to non-operational factors
such as foreign exchange translational differences, which contributed
4 days, and as a result of the acquisition of our Vietnam operations in
July 2017, which contributed an additional 2 days.

Inventories at suppliers and franchisees are not our legal liabilities
although the Group tracks this information to ensure that we do
not build up excessive off-balance sheet inventories. Our system
inventories had increased by 21.3% YOY which largely consisted of
movable or core items in anticipation of the launch of CNY collection
and spring merchandise. Management does not consider the current
system inventory levels excessive and does not anticipate large scale
clearance programs.

®15: A EFE Table 15: System inventories
M12H31H
At December 31
(A B EETRENL) (In HK$ million) 2017 2016
rEERBELFE Inventories held by the Group 524 447
HEEL85% = v FTEAR B A Inventories held by 48.5% South Korea
BAEZRE joint venture 175 141

REAENBERRAEZEE

HEF 2K Em(RNE)
shipped)

Inventories held by franchisees in
Mainland China 91 88
Finished goods at suppliers (not yet

54 20

AEFERE

Total system inventories

844 696

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS
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FE& W 32 BB A9 BR K

AREBMEIEEWRER N 2 AT E M - ARREEERE
B - Bl ZE2017F12A31B L FE - ERERRE
A& A550 @ MAFHELIEINA - RER -« B
BRFREHER A13H E248 o /K F B H 4
ERE T2 EE AT -

BEEEH
R201749F N20165F12 A31 H I & (T & &E -

FREE
N20174F K2016FE12 A3 B I\ A B (& -

S L B

AEEITEZEHARERARBZHEETRE
ARHEEBECEAR M EEINE Z HE RS
EEZINERK - CHREENBBELEZINER
RBEE/) o WA REREBE XU EEE U
SNERIIEZEHREATERREE  USHEAY
ZARBRINEFERERRK - ERBEMEEAE
BzHMNERR AEEVECHASRTAETY
e HIEHIARR NS @ B BARE - R e E
REHINES K -

iR
RRAFZBERE BN BE M E R H R
REEFHRD - REEAREEEK - ARF—HF
BALHIBHARNIKMASEBRE  ERIKEZHA
REFEAE ARREFERZEESERMA
NG
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Trade receivables and payables

The Group monitors the recoverability of trade receivables to mitigate
bad debt risk. Trade receivables turnover days for the year ended
December 31, 2017 was 55 days, increased by 1 day compared to last
year. Trade payables turnover days decreased by 13 days to 24 days
during the year. This is in line with the credit period granted by our
suppliers.

Pledge of assets

No assets were pledged as at December 31, 2017 and 2016.

Contingent liabilities

There were no contingent liabilities as at December 31, 2017 and 2016.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group faces foreign exchange risk mainly arising from purchases
from a Renminbi-based supply chain and sales proceeds in local
currencies of the relevant Group entities. Foreign exchange risk arising
from recognized assets and liabilities is considered to be insignificant.
This is due to the fact that balance denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the relevant Group entities are generally
settled promptly leaving minimal outstanding foreign currency position
as at the balance sheet date. Management monitors foreign exchange
risks of the Group regularly. The Group does not employ financial
instruments for hedging purpose. Forward foreign exchange contracts
may be used when major fluctuation in the relevant foreign currency is
anticipated.

Dividends

It is the Company’s policy to return surplus cash to its shareholders
through the payment of dividends and share repurchase. In line with
its dividend policy, the Company has been paying a substantial portion
of its earnings as an ordinary dividend, the amount of which may vary
depending on cash on hand, future investment requirements and
working capital considerations.
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After due consideration of the economic outlook, the Group’s financial
position, its future expansion plans and other factors, the Board has
recommended a final dividend of 20.0 HK cents per share (2016:
15.0 HK cents per share) for the year ended December 31, 2017.
Together with the interim dividend of 15.0 HK cents per share (2016:
12.5 HK cents per share) paid on September 22, 2017, total 2017
dividends would amount to 35.0 HK cents per share (2016: 27.5 HK
cents per share), representing a payout of 110.1% of 2017 per share
earnings (2016: 99.3%). Subject to the approval of shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, the final dividend
will be payable on Friday, June 22, 2018 to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on Friday, June 8,
2018.

OUTLOOK

Geographically, the Group’s main thrust remains with Mainland
China’s two-pronged expansion programme; namely, e-business
and franchising. Both are on track and the outlook for 2018 remains
optimistic. Development of new markets is progressing. To adapt to
local operating environments, we are prepared to be flexible entering
more creative arrangements such as allowing local franchisees to
manufacture for local sales under licensing agreements. This approach
would allow us to provide value-for-money merchandise to local
consumers.

In terms of channels, while continuing to upgrade the Group’s directly-
operated physical stores, management is earnest in fast-tracking
e-business in all markets, leveraging our Mainland China’s proven
model. During 2017, we saw substantial headways in Taiwan and
Thailand and management expects the momentum to accelerate in
2018.

With concerted efforts, our childrenswear made significant advances
during 2017 and will continue to grow in the next few years. The
G-motion line took shape in 2017 and will maintain its momentum
in 2018. Beau Monde, marketed entirely through wholesaling and
franchising, also made substantial improvements during 2017 and
we expect this momentum to continue into 2018. We will continue to
create and nurture new and innovative products and lines towards
building future sales for the Group.

Our supply chain is flexible as we do not own production facilities.
We have been sourcing offshore for the appropriate markets enjoying
various preferential international trade agreements and will speed up
this initiative in 2018.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F
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The Group’s inventory remains healthy with ITOC now down to 73 days
in February 2018. Group consolidated sales recorded for the first two
months of 2018 increased by 16.4% as compared to the same period
last year. Markets in Greater China continue its momentum in 2018.
However, we are facing some challenges in the Middle East due to
the implementation of Value-Added Tax and new economic policies in
United Arab Emirates and Saudi Arabia.

OTHER INFORMATION
HUMAN RESOURCES

At December 31, 2017, the Group had approximately 8,300 employees
(2016: 8,000). The Group offers competitive remuneration packages
and generous, goal-oriented bonuses to different levels of staff. We
offer senior management performance-based bonus schemes and
share options to reward and retain a high calibre leadership team.
We also invest heavily in training in sales and customer service,
management, planning and leadership development to retain a skilled
and motivated workforce.
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Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter (Chairman and Chief Executive), aged 65,
is the Company’s Chairman and Chief Executive. He is also chairman of
the Management Committee and Nomination Committee and a member
of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. He joined the Group
in 1987, became the Chief Executive on February 8, 1994, and was
elected Chairman of the Board on August 10 in the same year. He is
also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Dr. LAU is also an independent non-executive director of Fairwood
Holdings Limited, which is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Dr. LAU is currently the chairman of the
advisory committees on management and marketing at The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University as well as Adjunct Professor of Marketing at City
University of Hong Kong.

Dr. LAU holds a Doctorate degree in Business Administration from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University, an MBA degree from the University
of Calgary in Canada and a Master of Buddhist Studies from The
University of Hong Kong. Dr. LAU had over 12 years of management
and accounting experience in both the private and public sectors in
Canada before joining the Group.

Dr. CHAN Ka Wai (Executive Director), aged 41, joined the Group in
January 2000 and was appointed as an Executive Director and the
Chief Operating Officer of the Company on June 20, 2014 and April
1, 2015, respectively. He is a member of the Management Committee
of the Company and also a director of certain subsidiaries and joint
ventures of the Group. Dr. CHAN is responsible for all of Mainland
China while directing the Group’s operations to meet budget and other
financial goals, as well as establishing goals, allocating resources and
assessing policies to drive the Group’s performance. Dr. CHAN has
over 16 years of experience in the apparel retailing and marketing
business.

Dr. CHAN holds a Doctorate degree in Business Administration from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a Master of Arts in Global
Business Management from City University of Hong Kong.

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. Mark Alan LOYND (Executive Director), aged 39, has been with
the Group since September 2013 and was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company on March 9, 2017. Mr. LOYND is currently the
General Counsel, Company Secretary and Group Human Resources
Director of the Company. He oversees legal, regulatory, compliance,
corporate governance, human resources and talent development affairs
of the Group. Mr. LOYND is also chairman of the Risk Management
Committee and a member of the Management Committee of the
Company as well as director and company secretary of various
subsidiaries and joint ventures of the Group.

Mr. LOYND was called to the Bar in Hong Kong in 2007 and is a
Member of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators in London, the United
Kingdom. He holds a Bachelor of Laws from Aberystwyth University
in the United Kingdom as well as a Master of Arts in Arbitration and
Alternative Dispute Resolution (with distinction) and a Postgraduate
Certificate in Laws, both from City University of Hong Kong. He
possesses over 16 years of experience in handling regulatory and
compliance matters for listed companies, mergers and acquisitions,
joint ventures and other commercial law affairs, as well as labour and
maritime law issues.

Dr. CHENG Chi Kong ur (Non-executive Director), aged 38, was
appointed as a Non-executive Director of the Company on May 22,
2012. Dr. CHENG was executive vice-chairman and joint general
manager of New World Development Company Limited and has
been re-designated to executive vice-chairman and general manager
with effect from March 1, 2017. He is also an executive director of
New World Department Store China Limited and Chow Tai Fook
Jewellery Group Limited, and a non-executive director of i-CABLE
Communications Limited, all are listed on the Stock Exchange. Dr.
CHENG has been an executive director of New World China Land
Limited, which was a listed public company in Hong Kong until its
delisting on August 4, 2016. He was also an executive director of
International Entertainment Corporation until June 10, 2017 and a
non-executive director and vice chairman of Modern Media Holdings
Limited until August 26, 2017, both companies are listed on the Stock
Exchange. Dr. CHENG is a director of a substantial shareholder of
the Company, Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited and its subsidiary,
Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited. He is also the chairman of New
World Group Charity Foundation Limited. Dr. CHENG worked in a
major international bank from September 2003 to April 2006 and has
substantial experience in corporate finance.

Dr. CHENG holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree (cum laude) from Harvard
University, and was conferred the Honorary Doctorate of Humanities by
the Savannah College of Art and Design.
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Dr. CHENG is the vice-chairman of All-China Youth Federation, a
member of the Tianjin Municipal Committee of The Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, the chairman of China Young
Leaders Foundation, the honorary chairman of K11 Art Foundation and
a member of board of the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority.

Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong (Non-executive Director), aged 55, was
appointed as a Non-executive Director of the Company on May 22,
2012. He is also as an executive director of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery
Group Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. CHAN
has been in the jewellery industry for 36 years.

Mr. CHAN also serves as member of the standing council of China
Gold Association, member of National Technical Committee on Jewelry
and Jade of Standardization Administration of China, vice chairman
of the Shenzhen Gold & Jewellery Association, administrative director
of the Gems and Jewellery Trade Association of China, executive
vice chairman of Guangdong Gold and Silver Jewellery Chamber of
Commerce, general vice-chairman of Gold Association of Guangdong
Province, vice chairman of the Guangdong Golden Jewelry and
Jade Industry’s Association, as well as director of the Gemmological
Institute, China University of Geosciences (Wuhan).

Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT (Independent Non-executive Director),
aged 73, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company on March 3, 1995. He is also chairman of the Audit
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Dr. BUTTIFANT was a non-executive director of Global-Tech Advanced
Innovations Inc. and China Nepstar Chain Drugstore Ltd., both of
which were delisted on NASDAQ Global Market LLC and New York
Stock Exchange in March 2016 and August 2016, respectively. Dr.
BUTTIFANT was also senior advisor to MCL Financial Group Ltd, the
arrangement of which terminated in the year. Dr. BUTTIFANT has been
re-appointed as a director of KLC Transactions Limited in January
2017, and is also appointed as a director of KLC Corporate Advisory
and Recovery Limited from the same date.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F
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Dr. BUTTIFANT was formerly an independent non-executive director
of Maxnerva Technology Services Limited (formerly known as Daiwa
Associate Holdings Limited) from 1994 to 2015, which is listed on the
Stock Exchange. Dr. BUTTIFANT is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, the Chartered Management Institute, the
Hong Kong Management Association and the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors. He has been awarded an honorary doctorate of Business
Administration (Honoris Causa) by Edinburgh Napier University, United
Kingdom in February 2013.

Mr. KWONG Ki Chi GBs, Jp (Independent Non-executive Director),
aged 66, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company on April 26, 2004 and is a member of the Audit
Committee of the Company. Mr. KWONG is also an independent non-
executive director of another listed company, AMS Public Transport
Holdings Limited. Mr. KWONG graduated from The University of Hong
Kong with a Bachelor of Science degree in Physics and Mathematics
and was awarded a Master of Philosophy degree in Economics and
Politics of Development by the University of Cambridge, England. He
has served in the Government of Hong Kong for 27 years and held
positions principally in the economic and financial fields. He was the
Secretary for the Treasury from 1995 to 1998, with responsibility
for public finances, and Secretary for Information Technology and
Broadcasting from 1998 to March 2000, with responsibility for
information technology, telecommunications and broadcasting. He
left the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
in March 2000 to join the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited as executive director and first Chief Executive, following the
demutualization and merger of the Stock Exchange, the Hong Kong
Futures Exchange Limited and their associated clearing houses and
retired in April 2003. Since then, Mr. KWONG had served as the
managing director/executive director/non-executive director of various
companies, including Hsin Chong International Holdings Ltd, Hongkong
Sales (Int’l) Ltd, Macau Legend Development Ltd and Chenavari
Investment Managers (HK) Limited.

Mr. KWONG is a non-official Justice of the Peace in Hong Kong and

has been awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star by the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

*  For identification purpose only
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Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) (Independent Non-
executive Director), aged 47, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on November 11, 2015. He is also
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.

Professor HUANG is currently a Professor at the Department of
Management, Hong Kong Baptist University. Since 2010, he has served
as an Adjunct Professor in the Centre for Work, Organization and
Wellbeing, Griffith University. He has also been appointed as a Visiting
Professor in Shanghai University of Finance and Economics since 2012.

Professor HUANG received an Honours Diploma from Lingnan
University (Hong Kong) in General Business Management in 1994, a
M.A. from Lancaster University (England) in Organizational Analysis &
Behaviour in 1996 and his PhD from the University of Groningen (The
Netherlands) in Organizational Psychology in 2002. He has worked as
a trainer for several companies in Hong Kong before commencing his
PhD studies in the Netherlands.

Professor HUANG’s research interests include empowerment;
leadership; employees’ well-being and emotions; cross-cultural
organizational psychology and management issues in China. He has
published inter-alia in the Academy of Management Journal; Journal
of International Business Studies, Journal of Management, Leadership
Quatrterly; Journal of Organizational Behavior;, Journal of Occupational
and Organizational Psychology; Journal of Cross-Cultural Psychology;
Management and Organization Review,; Asia Pacific Journal of
Management; Journal of Environmental Psychology and International
Journal of Cross-Cultural Management.
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TRELBHRES
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is dedicated to maintaining the highest standard of
corporate governance within a sensible and practical framework. The
Board firmly believes that the principles of transparency, accountability
and independence are essential towards upholding the interests of all
stakeholders and maximizing shareholder value.

The Board is committed to excellence in corporate governance. It
is responsible for developing and reviewing the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance as well as compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements. The Board has adopted the
code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) as stated in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the
Stock Exchange as the Corporate Governance Code of the Company.

During the year of 2017, the Company fully complied with the Code
Provisions in the CG Code save for the deviations from Code Provisions
A.2.1, A4.2 and A.6.7, which are explained in the relevant paragraphs
below.

BOARD
Roles and Responsibilities

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. It sets the Group’s overall objectives
and strategies, monitors and evaluates its operating and financial
performance and reviews the corporate governance standards of the
Company. It also decides on matters relating to annual and interim
results, notifiable transactions, appointments or re-appointments of
Directors, dividends and accounting policies. The Directors, individually
and collectively, are committed to act in good faith and in the best
interests of the Company and its shareholders. Save for the power
reserved by the Board or other Board committees, the strategies and
plans as decided by the Board are implemented by Management.
Management assumes full accountability to the Board for the day-to-
day operation of the Group.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of Directors and their corporate governance
duties include:

e Developing, reviewing and updating the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and making recommendations
on changes and updates;

° Reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

° Reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° Developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;

e Reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this report; and

° Performing such other corporate governance duties and functions
set out in the CG Code (as amended from time-to-time) for which

the Board are responsible.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Company.
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Composition

The Board currently comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, two Non-executive Directors and three Executive Directors.

The Independent Non-executive Directors and the Non-executive
Directors bring a diverse range of expertise, skills and experience to
provide effective guidance and an outside perspective to all major
decisions of the Group. To assist in the discharge of their duties, the
Directors have free and direct access to both the Company’s internal
and external auditors and procedures are in place to allow the Directors
to obtain independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.

Given the overall composition of the Board and the expertise, skills
and experience that each Director brings individually, the Group
believes that the Board is appropriately structured to provide sufficient
checks and balances to protect the interests of the Company and
its shareholders. The Board will regularly review its composition
to maintain a proper balance and diversity of expertise, skills and
experience to ensure continued effective leadership and oversight of
the Company’s businesses. Biographical details of the Directors are set
out on pages 24 to 28 of this annual report.

In accordance with good corporate governance principles, the Board
had established three Board Committees: the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee. In addition,
a Management Committee and a Risk Management Committee are
also in place to support the Board and the Board Committees. During
the year of 2017 and up to the date of this report, the composition
of the Board, the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and
the Remuneration Committee are set out below. The Management
Committee and Risk Management Committee are discussed in the
relevant sections of this report.
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BERZESY REZEE FNEESE
Audit Nomination = Remuneration
EEgRE Members of the Board Committee Committee Committee
HTESE Executive Directors
2IEEE L Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
(FEFTHAAE) (Chairman and Chief Executive) - C M
ReEEt Dr. CHAN Ka Wai - - _
FEX LA Mr. Mark Alan LOYND! - - -
Ishwar Bhagwandas Mr. Ishwar Bhagwandas
CHUGANI % 42 CHUGANI? NEA N/A NEA N/A TEA N/A
FHTES Non-executive Directors
EERIE L Dr. CHENG Chi Kong up - - -
fRit &5t Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong - - -
BUYFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
2RLEL Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT c M M
B E &5t &eBs, up Mr. KWONG Ki Chi Bs, Jp M - -
=HEHR Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu)* M M C
Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH % 4¢ Mr. Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH? TER N/A A N/A A N/A
Biat - Notes:
C FHEEZEEMERE C Chairman of the relevant Board Committees
M AFREFZRENKE M Member of the relevant Board Committees
! MR2017F3AOREZ T AWMITES 1 Appointed as Executive Director on March 9, 2017
2 R2017F3AOE BT ARITES 2 Resigned as Executive Director on March 9, 2017
8 R20176F8AB0RBIEAB LN TES HFMEEE 3 Resigned as Independent Non-executive Director, chairman of the Remuneration
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Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee
on August 30, 2017
4 Appointed as chairman of the Remuneration Committee on August 30, 2017

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships with each other except that
Mr. KWONG Ki Chi serves on the board of directors of AMS Public
Transport Holdings Limited as independent non-executive director; while
Dr. CHENG Chi Kong serves on the board of directors of New World
Group and subsidiaries as executive director and serves on the board
of directors of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited as executive
director; and Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong serves on the board of directors of
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited as executive director.

It is the Board’s opinion that these relationships do not affect the

Directors’ independent judgment and integrity in executing their roles
and responsibilities.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The appointment of a new Director is made by the Board upon
recommendation by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee considers a range of diversity perspectives when assessing
potential candidates for the Board.

According to the Company’s Bye-Laws (the “Bye-Laws”), any new
Director (other than the Chairman or the Managing Director) appointed
by the Board is subject to retirement and re-election by shareholders
at the next general meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a
casual vacancy) or at the next annual general meeting of the Company
(the “AGM”) (in the case of an addition to their number) following their
appointment. At each AGM, one-third (or the number nearest to, but
not exceeding one-third) of the Directors (other than the Chairman
or the Managing Director) will retire from office by rotation, and every
Director (other than the Chairman or the Managing Director) is subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

The Bye-Laws also allow for removal of a Director by an ordinary
resolution.

Code Provision A.4.2 provides that every director, including those
appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

Non-executive Directors have been appointed for an initial term of
three years and will continue in office thereafter subject to termination
by not less than one month’s prior notice in writing by either the Non-
executive Director or the Company. In addition, all Non-executive
Directors are required to retire from office by rotation and are subject to
re-election by shareholders at the AGM at least once every three years
pursuant to the Bye-Laws and Code Provision A.4.2.

In the opinion of the Board, stability and continuation are key factors to
the successful implementation of business plans. The Board believes
that it is beneficial to the Group that there is continuity in the role of the
Chairman and, therefore, the Board is of the view that the Chairman
should be exempt from this arrangement at the present time.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year under review, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three Independent Non-executive Directors with at least
one Independent Non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

Pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors has confirmed with the Company in writing
their independence from the Company. The Board therefore considers
all of the Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

Code Provision A.4.3 provides that if an independent non-executive
director serves more than nine years, his further appointment should be
subject to a separate resolution to be approved by the shareholders.

Mr. KWONG Ki Chi has served as an Independent Non-executive
Director for more than nine years since April 26, 2004. To comply
with Code Provision A.4.3, Mr. KWONG retired voluntarily and was
re-elected as Director at the AGM held on May 26, 2017 (the “2017
AGM”).

Board meetings

The Board holds four regular meetings a year while additional meetings
are held as and when required. Regular Board meetings are scheduled
in advance to facilitate the fullest possible attendance.

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in setting the agenda
of the Board meetings and each Director is invited to present any
businesses that he wishes to discuss or propose at such meetings.
Notices of regular Board meetings are served to the Directors at least
14 days before meetings. For other Board and committee meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given. Furthermore, all Directors have
access to the Company Secretary who is also the Group’s General
Council for advice and services to ensure that board procedures
and applicable law, rules and regulations are adhered to. Agenda
and accompanying Board papers are circulated to all Directors and
other attendees not less than 3 days before the Board or committee
meetings to ensure timely access to relevant information. Minutes of
the Board meetings and committee meetings are kept by the Company
Secretary and are open for inspection by all Directors.
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Any Director who is unable to physically attend any Board meeting may
participate electronically by conference call or via alternate arrangement
in accordance with the Bye-Laws. Moreover, pursuant to the Bye-
Laws, Board approval may also be obtained by way of circulation of
a resolution in writing on urgent matters when convening a Board
meeting is not practicable. Sufficient information and explanatory
materials will be provided to the Directors at the same time when a
resolution in writing is circulated.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, four Board meetings
were held to review the quarterly performance results and discuss the
Group’s strategy going forward, as well as other business. In addition,
four sets of resolutions in writing were passed.

Directors’ attendance and time commitment

Attendances of each Directors at the meetings of the Board, Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and the

BAEReZHEERNT AGM during the year ended December 31, 2017 are as follows:
HEE/ERRY
Attendance/Number of Meetings
EZSEE BNZEESE REZESS8E FWZESEER RREfAE
Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee
BEpg Name of Directors Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting AGM
HiTES Executive Directors
FEERL Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter 4/4 TR N/A 2/2 0/1 1/1
(FEETREH) (Chairman and Chief Executive)
REGEL Dr. CHAN Ka Wai 4/4 TR NA TEA NA TEA NA 1/1
BBy LA Mr. Mark Alan LOYND' 3/3 AR N/A &R NA T N/A 1/1
Ishwar Bhagwandas Mr. Ishwar Bhagwandas 11 TERB N/A TERA N/A TER NA TER N/A
CHUGANI £2 CHUGANP

FHTEE Non-executive Directors
BERELe Dr. CHENG Chi Kong Jp 474 TER N/A TEA N/A TR N/A 1/1
Bt E %4t Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong 4/4 TER N/A TER NA TEA NA i
BUFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
ERAEL Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT 4/4 2/2 2/2 1/1 1/1
B A &% ass, op Mr. KWONG Ki Chi ss, Jp 4/4 1/2 TEA NA TEA NIA 1/1
BRHR Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) 3/4 1/2 2/2 il (Al
Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH%E 4% Mr. Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH® 3/3 2/2 11 11 11

1 MR2017E3 AR ELZ T ARITES
2 R2017F3AOB BT ANITES
3 R2017F8A30H BT BB IEMITES
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! Appointed as Executive Director on March 9, 2017
2 Resigned as Executive Director on March 9, 2017
s Resigned as Independent Non-executive Director on August 30, 2017
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Under Code Provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors and
other non-executive directors should attend general meetings and
develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.

Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu), an Independent Non-
executive Director, could not attend the 2017 AGM due to his other
business engagements. However, at the 2017 AGM, Executive
Directors and other Non-executive Directors were present to enable
the Board to develop a balanced understanding of the views of the
shareholders of the Company.

In order to facilitate free and open discussion of issues, the
Independent Non-executive Directors may also meet without the
presence of the Executive Directors from time-to-time.

Training for Directors

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company provides a comprehensive induction package to each newly
appointed Director to ensure that they are sufficiently aware of their
responsibilities and obligations as director.

The Company provides regular updates and presentations on
changes and developments relating to the Group’s business and the
Company Secretary reports from time-to-time the latest changes and
development of the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices and
other regulatory regime to the Directors with written materials relating to
the latest development of regulatory requirements related to Director’s
duties and responsibilities.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F
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R2017TEEN - IBEFLHETIFIIER During the year of 2017, all Directors participated in the following

trainings:
HEBBEESRS
EERECEHR
mEE '8
Attending
expert briefings/
MEEEAEA seminars/
HEFER conferences
Reading relevant to the
regulatory business or
EEgRE Members of the Board updates directors’ duties
BTES Executive Directors
2R Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
(FREFITHAEZ) (Chairman and Chief Executive) v/ v/
PRE=ETE L Dr. CHAN Ka Wai v/ v
i 3 il Mr. Mark Alan LOYND' v v
Ishwar Bhagwandas Mr. Ishwar Bhagwandas EA N/A NEA N/A
CHUGANISE &2 CHUGANI?
FHITES Non-executive Directors
AR +up Dr. CHENG Chi Kong up v/ v/
BRIt B % & Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong v/ v
BAFHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
2HRAEL Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT v v/
BB E & % Hess, P Mr. KWONG Ki Chi GBs, JP v/ v
= B Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) v v
Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH %t 48 Mr. Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH? @A N/A i A N/A
1 HR2017F3AHEZ T AMITTES i Appointed as Executive Director on March 9, 2017
2 R2017E3FHEI T AITESE 2 Resigned as Executive Director on March 9, 2017
3 R2017F8A30B BT AB Y ENITEE 3 Resigned as Independent Non-executive Director on August 30, 2017

Directors’ and officers’ liabilities insurance

EERERABEERE

KATEES ﬁZﬁ%&m MAEEFRR -tk The Company has obtained appropriate directors’ and officers’
BEASDESASTE - liabilities insurance in line with the CG Code.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 37
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Currently Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter, holds the positions of Chairman
and Chief Executive. Such practice deviates from Code Provision A.2.1
which stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive should
be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.

In view of Dr. LAU’s extensive experience in the industry and deep
understanding of the Group’s businesses, the Board believes that
vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive in Dr. LAU
provides the Group with strong leadership, allowing for more effective
planning and execution of long term business strategies and enhances
efficiency in decision-making.

The Board also believes that the Company already has a strong
corporate governance structure appropriate for its circumstances in
place to ensure effective oversight of Management. The main elements
of this structure include:

° Having Non-executive Directors comprise five of eight of the
Board;

° Including all Independent Non-executive Directors as Audit
Committee members;

e  Ensuring that all Independent Non-executive Directors have free
and direct access to both the Company’s internal and external
auditors and independent professional advice where necessary;
and

e Having a “whistle-blowing” mechanism in place to allow the
Group’s staff members to anonymously and confidentially report
to the Internal Audit Department any suspected acts of fraud or
gross misconduct by senior management, including that of the
Chairman and Chief Executive. Details about the “whistle-blowing”
mechanism are discussed under the section “Risk Management
and Internal Control”.

The Board believes that these measures enable our Independent
Non-executive Directors and Non-executive Directors to rigorously
supervise the Group’s management and effectively control key issues
relating to strategy, risk and integrity. The Board continually reviews the
effectiveness of the Group’s corporate governance structure to assess
whether any changes are necessary.
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BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all Independent Non-executive
Directors and is chaired by Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT, a qualified
accountant with extensive experience in financial reporting and
controls.

The Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditor, reviewing and monitoring the external
auditor’s independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the
audit process and discussing with the external auditor the nature and
scope of the audit. It is also responsible for reviewing the Group’s
financial information, overseeing the Group’s financial reporting system
and risk management and internal control systems and reviewing
the interim and final results of the Group prior to recommending
them to the Board for approval. To this end, the Audit Committee
has unrestricted access to both the Company’s internal and external
auditors. Its terms of reference are available on the websites of the
Company and Hong Kong Exchange and Clearing Limited (the “HKEX”).

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year to review financial
reporting and risk management and internal control matters. The Head
of Group Finance, the chairman of the Risk Management Committee,
the Internal Audit Department together with our Internal Audit Advisor,
Deloitte Advisory (Hong Kong) Limited (collectively the “IA team”), the
Company Secretary and representatives of the external auditor of the
Company are expected to attend the meetings. At the discretion of
the Committee, other members of management may also be invited to
attend its meetings.

In 2017, the Audit Committee held two meetings. During the meetings,
the Audit Committee alongside the external auditor reviewed the audit
strategy summary, the final results for the year ended December 31,
2016 and the interim results for the six months ended June 30, 2017.
The Audit Committee also reviewed the activities of the IA team and
its internal audit report, and discussed with Management the report’s
findings and recommendations on the Group’s business operations.
Furthermore, it also evaluated, together with Management, the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems to ensure its
effectiveness, with particular attention to the adequacy of resources,
the qualifications and experience of the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting staff, as well as their training programs and budget.
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The Audit Committee also reviewed the terms and conditions of
continuing connected transactions of the Group which took place
during the year.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of
the external auditor during the year under review.

Nomination Committee

In compliance with the requirements of the CG Code, on March 21,
2012, the Board established the Nomination Committee comprising
of three Board members, the majority of which are Independent Non-
executive Directors, and is chaired by Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter, the
Chairman of the Board.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board, on a regular basis, and to identify individuals
qualified to become Board members. It is also responsible for
assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors
and making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors. The recommendations of the Nomination
Committee are then put forward for consideration and where
appropriate, adoption by the Board. Its terms of reference are available
on the websites of the Company and the HKEX.

In 2017, the Nomination Committee held two meetings to recommend
the appointment of a new Executive Director, to review the board
diversity policy, to review the size, composition and structure of the
Board, to recommend the rotation list of Directors to the Board, and to
assess the independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognizes that increasing diversity at the Board level
will support the attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives
and sustainable development. The Company will also take into
consideration its own business model and specific needs from
time-to-time in determining the optimum composition of the Board. In
view of this, a board diversity policy has been adopted by the Board
in 2013, the Nomination Committee has set measurable objectives
based on a range of diversity perspectives, including, but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge, length of service and other
qualities. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidate(s) will bring to the Board.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises of three Board members,
the majority of which are Independent Non-executive Directors, and is
chaired by Professor Wong Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu).

The Company adopted Code Provision B.1.2(c)(i) out of the two
models suggested by the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee
is responsible for reviewing and determining the remuneration,
compensation and benefits of Directors and senior management. When
the remuneration package of an individual Director is under review,
the Director in question is required to abstain from voting to avoid
any conflict of interest. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the websites of the Company and the
HKEXx.

In 2017, the Remuneration Committee passed a written resolution
approving the grant of share options to Executive Directors, employees
and other eligible participants. It also held a meeting to review and
approve the remuneration and bonus of the Chairman and Chief
Executive, to review and approve the remuneration packages of
individual Executive Directors and senior management, and to review
and approve the new service contract of the Chairman and Chief
Executive. No member of Remuneration Committee should be involved
in deciding his own remuneration.

Remuneration Policy

The Company understands that a reasonable and comprehensive
remuneration package is an important factor in attracting, retaining
and motivating high quality personnel. As such, the Company
works to ensure that remuneration is competitive and aligned with
the Company’s objectives and performance. The Company takes
into consideration a number of relevant factors in determining its
remuneration policy, including the salaries paid by comparable
companies, job responsibilities, duties and scope, employment
conditions in the Group, market practices and the financial and non-
financial performance of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee considers factors such as the fees paid
by comparable companies, time commitment, the responsibilities
and likely workload of the relevant Directors and other employment
conditions in the Company to ensure that the Independent Non-
executive Directors and the Non-executive Directors are appropriately
paid for their time and responsibilities to the Company.
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The Company’s remuneration structure for its employees, including
the Chairman and Chief Executive and the Executive Directors, is
composed of fixed compensation, cash performance bonuses, variable
cash incentives, long-term incentives and retirement schemes, as
discussed below.

Fixed compensation includes an employee’s basic salary, allowances
and benefits (e.g. medical). Basic salary and allowances are set and
reviewed annually for each position, taking into consideration the
Company’s remuneration policy, the Company’s and the individual’'s
performance as well as market conditions and practices. Benefits
are regularly reviewed and determined largely on the basis of local
standards and practices.

Employees are also eligible to receive an annual cash bonus based on
their performance at the Group, business unit and individual levels. The
bonuses awarded to the Chairman and Chief Executive, the Executive
Directors and senior management are reviewed and approved by
the Remuneration Committee. In 2017, the cash performance bonus
component accounted for 64.6% of the total remuneration of the
Chairman and Chief Executive and the Executive Directors. Please refer
to Note 10(a) to the consolidated financial statements for details. In
addition, the Company operates sales and business-related incentive
schemes to motivate certain staff such as front-line sales associates to
achieve specific sales or other business targets of the Company.

The Company also operates share option schemes to provide long-term
incentives to reward and retain a high calibre management team.
The details of the schemes, together with information on options
exercised and outstanding in respect of the Directors and employees
as at December 31, 2017 under the schemes, are set out in the Share
Option Information section of this annual report.

Pursuant to the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, the
Company participates in a MPF scheme registered with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority.

Details of Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments are set out

in Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 118 to
120 of this annual report.
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Management Committee

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing its business strategies and managing the daily
operations of the Group’s businesses to the Management Committee.
The Management Committee is fully accountable to the Board and
comprises the Chairman and Chief Executive and the Executive
Directors together with one senior management representative.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group’s strategic objectives, and maintaining appropriate and
effective control of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems, particularly in respect of financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions, and, as such, monitors the
effectiveness on an ongoing basis.

Appropriate policies and procedures have been put in place to
safeguard the assets against unauthorized use or disposition; control
over capital expenditure; maintain proper and accurate accounting
records and enhance the reliability of financial reporting; and to
ensure efficiency and effectiveness of operations and compliance with
the applicable laws and regulations. Such policies and procedures
are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement, loss, error or fraud, and to manage
and minimize rather than eliminate the risk of failure in the Group’s
operational systems.

The Group’s risk management and internal control framework includes
the following major components:

e An organizational and governance structure with defined
responsibility, proper segregation of duties and delegated
authority;

e  Systems and procedures of financial control, risk management and
internal control to identify and measure risks and conduct bi-annual
risk assessment to monitor the progress of risk mitigation;

e  Operational and financial budgeting and forecasting systems for
performance measurement, including regular variance analysis
against budgets and plans, and setting key business performance
targets with appropriate measures to rectify deficiencies;

e  Stringent policies and procedures for the appraisal, review and
approval of significant contracts, major capital and recurrent
expenditures;
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e A “whistle-blowing” mechanism to allow the Group’s staff
to anonymously report any suspected acts of fraud or gross
misconduct by senior management, including that of the Chairman
and Chief Executive, to the Internal Audit Department which will
refer the report to the chairman of the Audit Committee for further
action; and

e  Strict internal procedures and controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information.

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems and the review
of its effectiveness to the Risk Management Committee. The Risk
Management Committee comprises four members including the Head
of Group Legal & Compliance, the Head of Group Finance, the Internal
Audit Advisor and one senior management representative. During the
year, the Company has engaged an external professional firm, Deloitte
Advisory (Hong Kong) Limited, as our Internal Audit Advisor to assist
the internal audit function of the Company. The Committee reviews
all material controls in accordance with the Code Provisions on risk
management and internal control systems of the CG Code, and reports
to the Board twice a year. The Risk Management Committee is fully
accountable to the Board for providing assurance on managing and
monitoring the systems of risk management and internal controls.
The Committee has evaluated and was satisfied with the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of the staff of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function as well as their training
programmes and budget for the year, and reported to the Board
that in all material respects the systems of risk management and
internal control over risks associated with the Group’s operations was
sufficient, appropriate and operated effectively on a continuing basis.

Co-operating closely with the Risk Management Committee, the IA

team plays a major role in monitoring the risk management and internal
controls of the Group.
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The keys tasks of |A team include:

Unrestricted access to review all aspects of the Group’s key
activities, risk management, control and governance processes;

Conduct independent, comprehensive and regular audits
of financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions of business and support units and
subsidiaries, including recommending improvements and
monitoring corrective or remedial measures taken by the units and
subsidiaries to minimize risk exposure;

e Conduct special reviews of areas of concern identified by
Management or the Audit Committee;

° Investigation of business ethics, conflict of interest and other
Group policy violations; and

e Oversee the “whistle-blowing” mechanism.

Adopting a risk-based approach, IA team implements the audit plan
approved by the Audit Committee and Management, which is based on
a risk assessment methodology. It furnishes independent and objective
evaluations and recommendations in the form of an internal audit
report to Management. The Internal Audit Advisor reports directly to
the Audit Committee twice a year on major findings, corrective actions
and responses from Management. The Audit Committee has free
and direct access to IA team without reference from the Chairman or
Management.

During the year of 2017, the Internal Audit Advisor issued the internal
audit reports to the Audit Committee and Management, which covered
significant business processes and activities of the Group. It worked
with Management to establish action plans to address any identified
control weaknesses. Post-audit reviews were performed to ensure
those agreed actions have been implemented as intended.
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SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS AND
EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted its own Code of Conduct for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Code of Conduct for Securities
Transactions”). This is on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules, and has been updated from time-to-time.
Having made specific enquiries to all Directors, all Directors confirmed
that they had complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code and the Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions throughout
the year ended December 31, 2017.

In addition, the Company adopted a Code of Conduct for Securities
Transactions by Specified Employees, which governs the securities
transactions of those employees who may possess or have access to
inside information. The said code covers areas such as prohibitions
and conduct in the dealing of the Company’s securities, avoidance of
conflict of interests and confidentiality of the Company’s information,
etc.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements for each financial period to ensure that they give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group, its financial performance
and cash flows for that period. The Group’s consolidated financial
statements are prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors
are responsible for ensuring that appropriate accounting policies are
selected and applied consistently, and that where judgment has been
applied and estimates made, they are prudent and reasonable.

The statement by the external auditor of the Group, PricewaterhouseCoopers,
regarding their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report
on pages 66 to 73 of this annual report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration charged by the Group’s external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers and its affiliated firms for non-audit and
statutory audit services is set out below:

(In HK$ million) 2017 2016

FEZRE (BRERBER
BT HEBEZEF REM P RRS)

Non-audit services (included tax- 1 1
related matters, certain agreed-upon
procedures work and other reporting

services)
EEBZ Statutory audit 5 5
BE Total 6 6

DEME
BB E013F AREEDARE « ®ITA
AEEEEREBARME -

EREFAUHEQAWEERE  BERXQRMERHR
RMRH  MEREFENRFIEROEE A
AIMROIGAEST - REEBBIFRITRAEM
EAEEMNEFSRMHER Y LHEFNUER
MRBRER -

RS EERD N2017F NE ST LR B F3.291%
WEEST D15/ Z AR5 -

BEXH

RAFER  ARAULESE - RIFAEAADT
ZIEMAR BRI ARME  FRRDERER
AREAE 1R 215 ATR R -
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Mark Alan LOYND has been the Company Secretary since
September 2013. He is also an employee and the General Counsel of
the Group.

All Directors have access to the Company Secretary for advice and
services to ensure that board procedures and applicable law, rules and
regulations are adhered to. He is responsible for advising the Board
through the Chairman and Chief Executive on governance matters and
facilitates induction and professional development of Directors.

Mr. LOYND confirmed that he has complied with rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules and received not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training in 2017.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Bye-Laws during the year. If any
amendment to the Bye-Laws is necessary, according to the relevant
law governing the Company, the Company will propose the amendment
for shareholders’ approval at a general meeting of the Company.
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INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

Earning shareholders’ trust and confidence has always been the
major emphasis of the Company’s efforts in investor relations. The
Group’s senior management keeps a constant and open dialogue with
the investment community through company visits, conference calls,
information sessions and participation in major investor conferences to
communicate clearly the Company’s business strategies, developments
and prospects. About 50 meetings with institutional investors and
research analysts were held in 2017.

The Company has a wide and diverse shareholder base of institutional
and retail investors. To ensure all shareholders have equal and timely
access to important company information, the Company proactively
utilizes internet and other forms of electronic communication to deliver
information in a timely and transparent manner. To strike a balance
between keeping shareholders abreast of the Company’s performance
on one hand and avoiding an unhealthy focus on short-term results
on the other, the Company decided against following the CG Code
Recommended Best Practice of publishing quarterly financial results.
Instead, the Company publishes operations updates for the first three
and nine month periods on the websites of the Company and HKEX.
Annual and interim reports, Stock Exchange filings, press releases and
other materials are also accessible on the Company’s website.

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy and
will regularly review this policy to ensure its effectiveness to enhance
shareholders’ relationship with the Company and to comply with the
relevant rules and corporate governance code.

The Board welcomes shareholders’ views on matters affecting the
Group, and encourages their attendance at shareholders’ meetings
to communicate any concerns they may have with the Board or
Management directly. The Company’s AGM is an especially important
forum. In order to encourage and facilitate shareholder attendance
at its AGM, the Company gives at least 20 clear business days’ prior
notice. To ensure clear communication, each substantially separate
issue is proposed under a separate resolution.

Investors and shareholders who wish to put forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings or to make enquiries of the Board may do so by
contacting our Investor Relations Department whose contact details are
listed on page 164 of this annual report.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholder(s) to convene a special
general meeting

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene a
special general meeting of the Company.

In accordance with the Bye-Laws, shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth (1/10) of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary or at the registered office of the Company,
to require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition pursuant to
Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies
Act”). If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionists themselves may do so in
accordance with the provision of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act.

The written requisition requiring a special general meeting to be called
can be sent to the Company’s registered office and its principal place
of business in Hong Kong as set out in the “Corporate Information”
section of this annual report for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

Procedures for Shareholders to make a proposal at
general meeting

The following shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal (which
may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a general
meeting of the Company:

(@) any members representing not less than one-twentieth (1/20)
of the total voting rights of the Company on the date of the

requisition; or

(b) not less than 100 members holding shares in the Company.
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The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the shareholders
concerned, together with a statement with respect to the matter
referred to in the proposal must be deposited at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong. The Company would
take appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements, and
the shareholders concerned would be responsible for the expenses
incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the requirements
under Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act once valid documents
are received.

As regards proposing a person other than the retiring Director
for election as a Director in a general meeting, please refer to the
procedures available on the Company’s website.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns to the
Board in writing through the Company Secretary at 5th Floor, Tin On

Industrial Building, 777-779 Cheung Sha Wan Road, Kowloon, Hong
Kong.

Hong Kong, March 8, 2018
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The Directors are pleased to submit their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended December 31, 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
business of the Group is the retail and distribution of men’s, women’s
and children’s fashion apparel under Giordano and Giordano Junior,
Giordano Ladies, BSX as well as other owned and licensed brands.
Although targeting different market segments, the brands all strive to
deliver excellent quality, value and service to consumers.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance by geography and by brand
for the year ended December 31, 2017 is set out in Note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business is provided in the Management
Discussion and Analysis section on pages 8 to 23 of this annual report.
Description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
can be found throughout this annual report, particularly in Note 3 to
the consolidated financial statements. No important event affecting the
Group has occurred since the end of the financial year under review.
The outlook of the Group’s business is discussed in the Management
Discussion and Analysis section on pages 8 to 23 of this annual report.
Certain financial key performance indicators which complement and
supplement our financial disclosures are set out on pages 2 and 3
as well as in the Management Discussion and Analysis section. An
account of the Company’s relationships with its key stakeholders and
discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and performance are
included in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages
ESG. 1 to ESG. 29 of this annual report.

The above sections form part of the Directors’ Report.

Compliance with the applicable laws and regulations

We have in place compliance procedures to ensure adherence to
the relevant laws and regulations that are relevant to the Group. The
Board is responsible for reviewing and monitoring the Group’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
with the support and assistance of the legal and company secretarial
department.
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The Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance and the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) as well as their subsidiary legislation,
codes and guidelines are the principal sources of our compliance
obligations. Laws in other jurisdictions may also apply to our non-Hong
Kong operations, and both in Hong Kong and elsewhere, we rely on the
assistance of external law firms and professional advisers to manage
our legal and compliance risks.

We communicate information on relevant new laws or changes in laws
and regulations to our staff to ensure compliance, and also regularly
remind our staff of their compliance obligations.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2017 and
the financial position of the Company and of the Group as at that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 74 to 154
of this annual report.

DIVIDENDS

An interim dividend of 15.0 HK cents per share was paid to
shareholders of the Company on September 22, 2017.

The Directors has recommended a final dividend of 20.0 HK cents per
share for the year ended December 31, 2017. Subject to the approval
of the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming AGM, the final
dividend will be payable on June 22, 2018 to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on June 8,
2018.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at December 31, 2017, the retained profits of the Company together
with the contributed surplus available for distribution amounted to
HK$391 million (2016: HK$765 million).

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at December 31,
2017 are set out in Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.
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TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
ten fiscal years is set out on pages 2 and 3 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are shown in Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws
although there are no restrictions against having such rights under the
laws of Bermuda.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Company’s share option schemes as disclosed under
Share Option Information in this annual report, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or
that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or
may result in the Company issuing shares were entered into by the
Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The aggregate percentages of purchases attributable to the Group’s
major suppliers during the year are as follows:

Purchases
The largest supplier 43%
Five largest suppliers combined 64%

The percentage of the sales attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers is less than 10% during the year.

None of the Directors, their close associates, or any shareholders,
which to the knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
issued share capital of the Company, had any beneficial interest in the
Group’s five largest suppliers and customers.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in book values of property, plant and equipment during the
year are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Donations made for charitable purposes by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$248,000 (2016: HK$462,000).

BANK LOANS

As at December 31, 2017, the Group had bank loans of HK$298 million
(2016: HK$298 million) that were repayable within one year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter (Chairman and Chief Executive)
Dr. CHAN Ka Wai

Mr. Mark Alan LOYND!

Mr. Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI?

Non-executive Directors
Dr. CHENG Chi Kong up
Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT

Mr. KWONG Ki Chi GBs, JP

Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu)
Mr. Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH?

! Appointed as Executive Director on March 9, 2017
2 Resigned as Executive Director on March 9, 2017
8 Resigned as Independent Non-executive Director on August 30, 2017

In accordance with Bye-Law 98 of the Bye-Laws, Dr. CHAN Ka Wai
and Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) shall retire by rotation at
the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election.
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In accordance with Bye-Law 101(B) of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Mark Alan
LOYND, who had been appointed by the Board on March 9, 2017 as
Executive Director, retired and was re-elected at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on May 26, 2017.

Each of Mr. Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI and Mr. Simon Devilliers
RUDOLPH resigned as Director due to their decision to devote more
time to other business commitments. Each of the aforesaid Director
confirmed that they have no disagreement with the Board and there
is no other matters that needed to be bought to the attention of the
shareholders of the Company and the Stock Exchange in relation to
their resignation.

Biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this report are set
out on pages 24 to 28 of this annual report.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to rule 13.51(B)(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in
information of our Directors since the report date of the Company’s
interim report for the period ended June 30, 2017 are set out below:

EEpnA ER2y
Name of Directors Changes in information
2B H2018F1 1R - AR R EFRITHAHZIE LI EEF H ¢ /53,596,4868 7T °

LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter

Dr. LAU, the Chairman and Chief Executive of the Company, is entitled to an annual salary of

HK$3,596,486 with effect from January 1, 2018.

PR3z 4E

CHAN Ka Wai
EEX

Mark Alan LOYND

20176128280 - BT REFXELER T FRRAEST 2B :
On December 28, 2017, both Dr. CHAN and Mr. LOYND were appointed as directors of our
subsidiaries as follows:

° Besswood Limited

e  Dragonmart Holdings Limited

° Hawthorne Enterprises Limited

° Giorplus International Limited

e Global Synergy Investments Limited
e |egend Capital Holdings Limited

o Netsgold Limited

e  Sinobest Holdings Limited
e  Super Bliss Investment Limited

e  Welking Limited

e  World Chambers Holdings Limited
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BEEnA EREE
Name of Directors Changes in information
20 75 20178 H26H @ BB LB EBRKNEELERBER AR (—HRBRIMAER LT ZAR) Z3E

CHENG Chi Kong

WITESREEF

Dr. CHENG resigned as non-executive director and vice chairman of Modern Media Holdings

Limited, a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange, on August 26, 2017.

R201749A160 BB L RZERERRMBEAER AR (—HRBRXAER LT ZRR) Z

FHITESE -

Dr. CHENG was appointed as non-executive director of i-CABLE Communications Limited, a
company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange, on September 15, 2017.

=8

MR2017F8A30H  EUREZTAARRRETMEESEFE -

WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) Professor HUANG was appointed as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company on August 30, 2017.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
do not have any service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Bye-Laws provides that each Director or other officer of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities which he or she may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his or her office or
otherwise in relation thereto. In addition, the Company has maintained
appropriate directors and officers liability insurance in respect of
relevant legal actions against the Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at December 31, 2017, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company and their respective
close associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFQO), as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO; or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

REQXTRGRAEBERG ZHFR
Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company
FEEBEREA
Number of ordinary shares held
FTETAER
(BB BAFR
(HaF1k2) BoH
BARERS Derivative (Ft23)
(HeE1) interests Approximate
= Personal (share &% percentage of
Name of Directors interests options) Total shareholding
(Note 1) (Notes 1 & 2) (Note 3)
20k 27,318,000 - 27,318,000 1.73%
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
PR3z 48 600,000 7,700,000 8,300,000 0.52%
CHAN Ka Wai
EEX 236,000 6,064,000 6,300,000 0.40%

Mark Alan LOYND

BisE -

(1) ZERBmIIEHBEFEREn BFEANFENE s

(2) ITETARERZIHERG IR D AERAS BRESZT
iif%&%/iﬁ% BB EMBIR A EHE156H 2 E

(8)  #ZR2017F12H31H A 2 7] £ #1778 171,670,630,5188%
iTE -
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Notes:

(1) This represents interests held by the relevant Directors as beneficial owners.

(2)  Derivative interests are share options granted to the Directors pursuant to the share
option schemes of the Company and details of which are set out on pages 155 to

163 of this annual report.

3) Based on 1,570,630,518 shares of the Company in issue as at December 31, 2017.
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Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2017, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their close respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Details of the continuing connected transactions and material related
party transactions are respectively disclosed under section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” on pages 60 to 63 and in Note
36 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Save for the above, no other transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
or any its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or his
connected entity had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under Share Option Information section on pages
155 to 163 to this annual report, at no time during the year under
review was the Company, or any of its holding companies, fellow
subsidiaries or subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors (including their spouses and children under 18 years of
age) to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors is interested in any business,
apart from the Group’s businesses, which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s businesses.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to the Directors or chief executive of the Company,
as at December 31, 2017, the following persons (other than Directors
7% and chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions
= in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the

FOABMT ¢ register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO:
REATRGREBEARGZHFR
Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company
. BAERES
FiEEERHE (H33)
Number of Approximate
FERREE g1 ordinary percentage of
Name of substantial shareholders Capacity shares held shareholding
(Note 3)
BlackRock, Inc. ZREEE R 208,515,470 12.95%
Interest of controlled corporation (M3 Note 2)
BlackRock Global Funds EnEE A 92,257,000 5.87%
Beneficial owner
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) ZEEHEE 2 s 384,830,000 24.50%
Limited (4 Note 1) Interest of controlled corporation
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings II) XEGHDEEZ #w 384,830,000 24.50%
Limited (47 Note 1) Interest of controlled corporation
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited (% Note 1) REGER 2 = 384,830,000 24.50%
Interest of controlled corporation
AXREER) BRAR (AREER]) 3k PN 384,830,000 24.50%
Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited Interest of controlled corporation
(“CTF”) (#7:# Note 1)
AREREAERAF (AXKEREAL REHER 2 R 384,830,000 24.50%
Chow Tai Fook Nominee Limited Interest of controlled corporation
(“CTFN?”) (4¢3 Note 1)
Sino Wealth International Limited EmEB A 384,830,000 24.50%

(“Sino Wealth”)
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Notes:

(1) As at December 31, 2017, 384,830,000 shares of the Company were held by
Sino Wealth which is a wholly-owned by CTFN, which in turn controlled by CTF.
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited and Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings i)
Limited held approximately 49.0% and 46.7% interest in Chow Tai Fook Capital
Limited respectively, which in turn held an approximately 81.0% interest in CTF and
accordingly each of Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited, Cheng Yu Tung Family
(Holdings Il) Limited, Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited, CTF and CTFN is deemed to
have an interest in the shares of the Company held by Sino Wealth.

(2) 203,515,470 shares of the Company were held by BlackRock, Inc. of which 142,000
shares were cash settled unlisted equity derivatives.

(3)  Based on 1,570,630,518 shares of the Company in issue as at December 31, 2017.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2017, the Company had
not been notified of any interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Material related party transactions entered into by the Group during the
year, which do not constitute connected transactions under the Listing
Rules, are set out in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group conducted the following continuing
connected transactions, which are subject to the announcement
and reporting requirements, but are exempt from the circular and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the following continuing
connected transactions. When conducting the continuing connected
transactions during the year, the Company has followed the relevant
internal leasing evaluation policy.
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Pre-existing Agreements

Members of the Group and members of New World Department
Store China Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “NWDS
Group”) have in the past entered into leasing agreements which
include those that completed during the calendar year and those
that remain in force as immediately prior to the execution of
the Master Leasing Agreement (as defined below) regarding the
leasing of premises and/or concessionaire counters in the People’s
Republic of China (the “P.R.C.”) by members of the Group
from members of the NWDS Group (the “Pre-existing Leasing
Agreements”). Most of the Pre-existing Leasing Agreements
comprise of short-term leases of one year or less, and as all of
the Pre-existing Leasing Agreements are subject to ordinary and
market rental terms based on calculation of turnover rent, (which in
turn is based on a percentage of the respective monthly turnover),
the monthly payable amount to be made by the Group to NWDS
Group will vary month by month.

Qianhai Transaction

On June 27, 2016, a member of the Group and Shenzhen Qianhai
Chow Tai Fook Hong Kong Goods Centre Co., Ltd. (“Qianhai
CTF”) have entered into a written leasing agreement for the leasing
of premises in the P.R.C. for a term commencing from August 7,
2016 to December 6, 2018 (the “Qianhai Transaction”). Such
leasing agreement is subject to ordinary and market rental terms
based on calculation of turnover rent.

Master Leasing Agreement

On December 29, 2017, the Company and NWDS entered into
a master leasing agreement (the “Master Leasing Agreement”)
pursuant to which the parties (i) recorded their mutual
understanding to enter into future lease agreements with respect
to the lease of premises and concessionaire counters in the P.R.C.
from members of the NWDS Group; and (ii) set out the underlying
principles of such future leases for a term commencing from the
date of the Master Leasing Agreement up to December 31, 2019.

The Master Leasing Agreement will expire on December 31,
2019 and will be automatically renewed for successive periods of
3 years thereafter, subject to, among others, the Listing Rules,
unless terminated earlier in accordance with the Master Leasing
Agreement.
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As (i) Sino Wealth, a substantial shareholder of the Company, held
approximately 24.50% interest in the Company. Sino Wealth is wholly-
owned by CTFN, which is in turn controlled by CTF. Also, NWDS is a
subsidiary of New World Development Company Limited (“NWD”) and
Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited is a controlling shareholder of NWD
as well as a wholly-owned subsidiary of CTF; and (ii) Qianhai CTF is
owned as to approximately 50%, 30% and 20% by Chow Tai Fook
Enterprises Limited, Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited and NWD,
respectively and Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited is a subsidiary
of CTF; accordingly, each of the NWDS Group and Qianhai CTF is a
connected person of the Company and the transactions under the Pre-
existing Leasing Agreements, all future and renewals of the existing
leasing agreements contemplated under the Master Leasing Agreement
and the Qianhai Transaction constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

For details of the Pre-existing Agreements, Qianhai Transaction
and Master Leasing Agreement, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated December 29, 2017.

The annual caps in respect of the continuing connected transactions for
the years ending December 31, 2017, 2018 and 2019 are HK$6 million,
HK$10 million and HK$14 million, respectively.

For the year ended December 31, 2017, the turnover rent paid or
payable to NWDS Group and Qianhai CTF by the Group amounted to
approximately HK$4.4 million, which is within the annual cap of HK$6
million.

These continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by
the Independent Non-executive Directors who have reviewed and
confirmed that the transactions were entered into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on

terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s independent auditor was
engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
stated in the above paragraphs in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group in accordance with rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by
the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any connected
transactions which were subject to the reporting requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the year.

SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

A summary of the Company’s share option schemes and details of the
movement in share options of the Company during the year are set out
on pages 155 to 163 of this annual report.
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BE HEeEBEEALAT 2 LTH%% PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

HZE2017FE12A31B LFER - AR FIREZFE  During the year ended December 31, 2017, a total of 7,442,000
O A 7,442,000 BFEEE - AATIERE%EI  ordinary shares were repurchased by the Company on the Stock
HATERELERD - EFRA BOHRMXEA AR  Exchange. Al the repurchased shares were subsequently cancelled by
WHREZBISZ2EZ0  RRBAKRKATAE%KE  the Company. The Directors believe that the repurchases reflect the
= WAKARRERAIEEE - BEAARERLRRKR  Company’s confidence in its long term business prospects and would

2z BT ultimately benefit the Company and create value for the shareholders of
the Company. Details of the repurchases of shares of the Company are
as follows:
BEAE
(N BRBE X A
BERAEE BERBESERK Aggregate
Number Highest SRBREE®R  purchase price
BE A% of shares price per Lowest price (before
Month of repurchase repurchased share per share expenses)
BT BT BT
HK$ HK$ HK$
6 H 1,318,000 4.46 4.20 5,698,360
June
7H 4,094,000 4.52 4.29 17,839,500
July
8AH 416,000 4.63 4.36 1,875,580
August
9H 694,000 4.60 4.46 3,148,780
September
11H 652,000 4.44 414 2,781,200
November
124 268,000 4.16 4.05 1,097,620
December

B EXFTIREE SN B E2017F12831HILFE  Save as disclosed above, there was no purchase, sale or redemption
A RARSKETRMEBEARMEREE - HEE by the Company or any of its subsidiaries, of any listed securities of the
EARRNGERETES Company during the year ended December 31, 2017.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float required under the Listing Rules, based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance so as to ensure better transparency and protection of
shareholders’ interests. Information on the Company’s corporate
governance practices is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 29 to 50 of this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The employees of the Group are selected, remunerated and promoted
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence. Please refer
to Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements for details of the
retirement benefits provided to employees of the Group.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee of the Company, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market standards.
Particulars of the emoluments of Directors on a named basis for the
year are set out in Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution to re-appoint
PricewaterhouseCoopers as independent auditor of the Company and
to authorize the Directors to fix their remuneration will be proposed for
approval at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
Chairman and Chief Executive

Hong Kong, March 8, 2018
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TO THE MEMBERS OF
GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Giordano International Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 74
to 154, which comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at December 31, 2017;

e the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

e the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
December 31, 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
e Goodwill impairment and valuation of put option liability

e  Valuation of inventory

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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BERETSE
Key Audit Matter

BMNEANEEERENSE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BERERBHBLHEEENHE
Goodwill impairment and valuation of put
option liability

BRHE U BHEEN 16 EE] - Wider 7L
WHHIEERE]  BEEEF ML) 20) K E
E@at G RAErF 8957 iF40) K% (i) -

Refer to note 16 “Gooadwill”, note 27 “Put Option
Liability”, Accounting Policies notes 2(j), 2(t) and
Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
in note 4(i) & (i) to the consolidated financial
statements

HITREMEERERNMBHIS46EET &
5 41EB TR E R UEE TR AP R ER (LAT RS
BIPRERK] - WBOHAEBERSIBE—HRSE
EEBTT(ATHBIReESRET]) ETH
ZREAHR - BN RERAHRTFERTRER
BFEEESIEIRR TR BV RIsr R P - RAHIES
ENEBHEEEAGRANUARETR - R20174F
12ABREEENREHEABR/127TRB T

Of the HK$546 million goodwill on the
consolidated balance sheet, HK$541 million arose
from the acquisitions of the Giordano Middle
East businesses (the “Middle East Business”),
which has been allocated to a group of cash
generating units (“CGUs”) for the purpose of
goodwill impairment testing. In addition, put
options exist over the remaining interests held by
the non-controlling shareholders of the Middle
East Business. The put option liability is stated
at fair value at each balance sheet date, and as
at December 31, 2017, amounted to HK$127

million.

WiE P R XA S B e TR S & §E AT B R04
HEBENHEAUNERERHNRSREAR
Bt WERARBEREHEKARLTE -

The assessment of the recoverable amount of
the goodwill and the put option liability valuation
for the Middle East Business were based on
the same cash flow projections prepared by
management, using fair value less costs to sell
calculations.

BMAIZSHEEARGEERSIREEEM
PR E B H) R R EGEPTEN E 2 2K -

We focussed on these balances because the
valuation models involve significant judgements
made by management about the future results of
its Middle East Business.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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BMBBFEERENEHERAKMRANMGERE  HERZEMG
EEHNEEERTHEGERE  THERGAEESTSHENR
MREETHR - RN BMERELEREREHE 7 RINFAEETL
BUTHEREENTRAESE -

We evaluated management’s valuation models by assessing the
appropriateness of the valuation methodology, the process and
controls by which the models were drawn up and compared the
underlying inputs to the latest Board approved budget. We also
compared historic actual results to those budgeted to assess the
quality of management’s forecasting.

BHRZHEEN T REMZERTRNETHRSESET  BRKEEE
WE - PIUARMESEIAEPRANBRBRERA - KA
Given the uncertainty in the macro-economic environment for a number
of the CGUs in the Middle East, which has led to difficult trading
conditions, we have focussed on the key assumptions and inputs used
in the calculations, particularly:

o HAMERFBFTRE  WREHABLRNITELEREENA L
ERNERNKAEZ SR EEITM
the risk adjusted discount rates used, and assessed these against
the cost of capital of the relevant companies and industry and
country specific comparable entities;

s WEHFEHEERXERGEABTANRKERE BRELAZR
WRABPREBHENZ OIS - BRI ESEHEEEMEN
Tl RBEINSTZETENSRENER AL E L RIERET
TH&R-
the projected annual sales growth rates and the terminal growth
rates for the CGUs, as these were considered to be the key
drivers of the valuation of the Middle East Business. We compared
management’s assumptions of these against external retail
industry outlook reports and country specific economic growth
forecasts from different sources.
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FEME

Valuation of inventory

BRHEHHBHRENF21[FE] S5 HEF
BB 5E2(n) & B Z & 511 5 R A B A B9 HT iE4(i) ©
Refer to note 21 “Inventories” and Accounting
Policies note 2(n) and Critical Accounting
Estimates and Judgements in note 4(iii) to the
consolidated financial statements

R2017F12 A1 H E S B8 /317 B8R %8 R5.24(8
BT - FERKAEAERFENREEITNE
B MmE - RETEF G A F R FEHE AL
5t BRIBE R B S EAS & PTIE H O AS B AR R B IA
NREF mWK M FE F R AR5 G4 AT
RERITSHNBCATE -

The net inventory balance at December 31, 2017
was HK$524 million. Inventory is carried in the
consolidated financial statements at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. The net realisable
value of inventory in the apparel industry is difficult
to estimate and could be impacted by changes in
economic conditions in places where the Group
operates, as well as changes to customer taste
and competitor actions in response to changes in
market conditions.

BPEIZEARARMIMEFEEBTREE
GFEEAENEMMEY BFEEZED HE -
We focused on this area due to the inherent
complexity and judgement in estimating the
amount of inventory provisions required.
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BMESTEREBNGRILARATATT BCV8RMAIE - ELtBRR
PHEMEARRERET —EAEMNAESEE  UEEEMER A GE
BRI R ) = R AR -

We reviewed management’s sensitivity analysis and performed our own
sensitivities, where we flexed the key assumptions within a reasonable
range, to determine at what level the headroom in the model would be
eliminated.

ERRBER - IR
THFe

We were satisfied that management’s judgements and assumptions
used in the valuation were supportable, based on the available
evidence obtained.

AREEENHEREABNHBMRREREEE

BIARATZFERRTIAZTH ) ENTFESRSE - WERFE S FAEER
RHEEN  WERBSEAENTE T AEBEEL HIRER -
We tested a sample of inventory items categorised into different
seasons of the year to gain comfort over the categorisation and ageing
of inventory and recalculated, on a sample basis, the mathematical
accuracy of the provision percentage applied.

ARSERLPEELSR  RMUEEEHENBREFNBTERKNE
AIREERE - Ul EFEEENAEE - BB FFEREE KR
HEREERHEEHETLR KA TFEEEN IR -

We assessed the reasonableness of the provisions by challenging
management’s projections on current trends and demands for the
remaining inventories, with reference to historic sales experience.
We also assessed the reasonableness of the inventory provisions by
comparing a sample of inventory items to actual post year end sales.

ERBEERERE RMRAEERENGERKANRRERGRBEIR -
We found the assumptions made by management in respect of the
inventory provisions were supportable based on the available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Tse Ming Yee.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, March 8, 2018
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

HZE2017E12A31BEFE

For the year ended December 31, 2017

(2R & Foh - (In HK$ million, Wi aE

KB EETAEN) except earnings per share) Note 2017 2016
SHE R Sales 5 5,412 5,145
5 AR Cost of sales 7 (2,191) (2,090)
ES Gross profit 3,221 3,055
HElg A MEMUE - F5E Other income and other gains, net 6 112 85
HIEEA Distribution expense 7 (2,390) (2,299)
THER Administrative expense 7 (254) (273)
482 F Operating profit 7 689 568
mEER Finance expense 8 (4) 1)
JEfh & &R Fa A Share of profit of joint ventures 17 59 43
bR BT 15 B0 A 4 Profit before income taxes 5 744 610
FS Income taxes 11 (175) (122)
REERFTEHRERET Profit after income taxes for the year 569 488
FEAE 3 F) - Profit attributable to:

PiN/NES 1) 23 Shareholders of the Company 500 434

FE P72 ) 1 FE 7 Non-controlling interests 69 54

569 488

ARNFREENRF 2 Earnings per share for profit attributable to

ERAET shareholders of the Company 12

AR GEN) Basic (HK cents) 31.8 27.7

g OB) Diluted (HK cents) 31.7 27.7

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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EHEERER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE2017E12A3MALEE

For the year ended December 31, 2017

(X EFEEBTREN) (In HK$ million) 2017 2016
KEERFAEHEBET Profit after income taxes for the year 569 488
Hinhir e W= Other comprehensive income:
S nEEEBERZ2ER Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
At HESHEE Fair value change on available-for-sale
RRBEZZE (HE18) financial asset (Note 18) (6) 22
HEHIESHEE Disposal of available-for-sale financial asset (9) -
BHINB AR - AEAE R Exchange adjustments on translation of overseas
DRERE ZIERAE subsidiaries, joint ventures and branches 126 (35)
TEEHARE RS Total comprehensive income for the year 680 475
s a W Total comprehensive income attributable to:
AQBE Shareholders of the Company 611 416
FEVESIME R = Non-controlling interests 69 59
680 475
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EHEERER

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

201712 A831H
December 31, 2017

M12A31H
As at December 31
Jiokza

(X B EETAEN) (In HK$ million) Note 2017 2016
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
YIs - HEs MR Property, plant and equipment 14 234 221
"EME Investment properties 15 28 -
SRS Goodwill 16 546 546
BERNAEDR Interest in joint ventures 17 563 480
AIEHEemEE Available-for-sale financial asset 18 16 35
REBEZEREZEARE Financial asset at fair value

REZEMEE through profit or loss 19 28 28
THE T # R & T8 38 Leasehold land and rental prepayments 20 147 192
HERe Rental deposits 135 127
EEFRIBE E Deferred tax assets 28 51 50

1,748 1,679
REEE Current assets
FE Inventories 21 524 447
ME L RSB RIE Leasehold land and rental prepayments 20 58 51
JFEE K B K % L th FE L K Trade and other receivables 22 527 544
Re RRITES Cash and bank balances 30 1,465 1,393
2,574 2,435

EEHE Total assets 4,322 4,114
ERREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
BAREE Capital and reserves
fi% 2 Share capital 23 79 79
@& Reserves 26 2,528 2,470
R B B Proposed dividends 13 314 236
iN/NET ) 51 Equity attributable to shareholders

FEAG R 2= of the Company 2,921 2,785
e I MR S Non-controlling interests 24 220 182
BT Total equity 3,141 2,967

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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EHEEREER (R)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (continued)

2017F12A31H
December 31, 2017

R12831H
As at December 31
iz
(X B EETAEN) (In HK$ million) Note 2017 2016
FERBEE Non-current liabilities
RERGEH#EAE Put option liabilities 27 6 19
ELERIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 28 127 103
133 122

G IR=R Current liabilities
FETBR 70 N2 H fih FE 70 Trade and other payables 29 484 538
B ZHEEA A Put option liabilities 27 121 102
RITER Bank loans 31 298 298
FER R R Income tax payable 145 87

1,048 1,025
B8R Total liabilities 1,181 1,147
EnRkBEEE Total equity and liabilities 4,322 4,114
BEREBEE Net current assets 1,526 1,410
EERERRBAR Total assets less current liabilities 3,274 3,089
2B R =&
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter CHAN Ka Wai
Ea Ea
Director Director
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EHEETRER
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

BZE2017F12A31ALLFE
For the year ended December 31, 2017

Wi aE

(X B &EETHEN) (In HK$ million) Note 2017 2016
K Operating activities:
R BT 15 550 A s A Profit before income taxes 744 610
T Adjustments for:
JE1E & & R R A Share of profit of joint ventures 17 (59) (43)
ZEWRE-—MWE AR ZKE  Gain on bargain purchase of a subsidiary 6, 32 4) -
HERHEELREE Y Gain on disposal of available-for-sale

financial asset 6 (9) -
HE+TH RBLEMNKIE#S  Amortization of leasehold land and

rental prepayments 20 73 67
M EHA Interest income 6 (16) (12)
M WRERETE Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment 7,14 102 118
HEME - BBLRE Net loss on disposal of property,

ZFEE plant and equipment 6 2 _
M - W R ERE Impairment loss on property,

Z R EEE plant and equipment 14 1 1
AR 8 Reversal of provision for doubtful debts 22 2) @)
EIREBE Provision for doubtful debts 22 1 -
mEEHA Finance expense 8 4 1
BREER Share option expense 9 7 1
& N A% Exchange difference 29 (10)
LEES  MERMERZE R Operating cash inflow before changes

ZEEIE R in working capital, interest and income

taxes 873 731
FEz0Em R (Increase)/decrease in inventories (68) 44
JiE U BR T N E At FE UM R 2 Decrease/(increase) in trade and

A () other receivables 25 21)
FERTBR R R H A FE (5 2B 4>  Decrease in trade and other payables (67) (21)
KEFRSFEELE RS Cash generated from operations 763 733
AR Interest paid (4) (1)
DN EENER Hong Kong profits tax paid (26) (20)
BN ELE Overseas tax paid (83) (94)
REEBRES Net cash inflow from operating

RAFE activities 650 618

78 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED CASH

EHRERER (&)

FLOW STATEMENT (continued)

BHZ=E2017F12A31ALLFE
For the year ended December 31, 2017

iogza
(X EETHRENN) (In HK$ million) Note 2017 2016
REFEK: Investing activities:
BEME  HWERRE Purchase of property,
plant and equipment 14 (104) (104)
HEE - %A%EQ& Q2 Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
FIECEe! and equipment = 4
& A] i tlj ELRMEEL Proceeds from disposal of available-for-
Fri5 308 sale financial asset 13 -
W i — Bﬁ% Acquisition of a subsidiary
CRBRIRTT 4 T_&EE% £18) (net of bank balances and cash
equivalents acquired) 32 (4) -
& — A WJE NFEE D HEZR 2 Proceeds from disposal of partial interest
FT 837 of a subsidiary 6 -
fﬁfii’@&ﬁ(ﬁ?ﬁiﬁ%ﬂﬁz Increase in leasehold land and rental
#n prepayments 20 (57) (59)
ME®ESZ (EM mHD (Increase)/decrease in rental deposits () 1
RITEBFRZEM Increase in bank time deposits 30 (78) (100)
=R &N Interest received 16 12
BElaEERBRE Dividends received from joint ventures 17 42 33
REXKZHS Net cash outflow from investing
R R activities (174) (213)
R K Financing activities:
BT A FTIS 5RIA Proceeds from issue of shares 25 2
Bedn [ 3 Share repurchase (32) -
[N ;IH I R S AR B Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (31) (53)
21 E Dividends paid (471) (424)
ILIRITER Addition of bank loans - 298
MEXEHeREFE Net cash outflow from financing
activities (509) (177)
fﬁ%&ﬁﬁ%fﬁz (Decrease)/increase in cash and
W) b0 cash equivalents (33) 228
fﬁ?)] ReRESEELER Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year 1,156 939
ReRESEENEEER Effect of foreign exchange rate
BEoHE changes on cash and cash
equivalents 27 (11)
FRESRESSELER Cash and cash equivalents at
the end of the year 1,150 1,156
RERREEEREFEZIN ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
e RIRITH Cash and bank balances 30 1,465 1,393
B FRAR= 1I ALA EFIEI 2 Less: Bank deposits with maturity over
RITFR three months, from date of deposits (315) (237)
1,150 1,156
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE2017F12A31HILFE
For the year ended December 31, 2017

RNARRELES
Attributable to shareholders of the Company

(NBEATAEN)
(In HK$ millon)

R

Share
capital

E P81
Contributed

surplus

-t
ROGH
Capital
redemption

reserve

R EE
Share

premium

BRE
1
Share
options

reserve

EXRE
Exchange

reserve

A%
Other

reserves

AfHEs
REERR
Available-for-
sale financial

asset reserve

RRER
Retained

profits

o>
i

Total

FEHE
B
Non-
controlling

interests

ERAE
Total

equity

R2017E1 A1 F
At January 1, 2017

79

383

920

(80)

74

2

1,370

2,785

182

2,967

RERRARREEN
Profit after income taxes
for the year
Hthiala -
Other comprehensive income:
-TRLESREELLEZ 2D
Fair value change on available-
for-sale financial asset
-HEMRTESREAE
Disposal of available-for-sale
financial asset
~ENHBAR  AEAT
RARBBEZEN AR
Exchange adjustment on
translation of overseas
subsidiaries, joint ventures

and branches

126

Q)

)

500

500

Q)

2

126

69

569

(6)

()

126

gheua

Total comprehensive income

126

(19)

500

611

69

680
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

HE2017F12A31HILFE
For the year ended December 31, 2017

RNARRELES
Attributable to shareholders of the Company

R

HARH

(HEEETAEN) Share  Contributed

(In HK$ millon) capital

surplus

-t
ROGH
Capital
redemption

reserve

ERE TitEs FE5I
L BEERE i
RiEE Share EiGk R Available-for- eyl Non- EHAE

Share options Exchange Other  sale financial Retained A

>
e

controlling Total

premium reserve reserve reserves asset reserve profits Total interests equity

BREERS :
Transactions with owners:
ke
Transfer among reserves -
D HE
Share option scheme
-BiREREMETZRA
Shares issued upon exercise of
share options -
-EREER
Share option expense -
Gk ERRE
Dividends to non-controlling
interests -
RHE-RWRLAPHERNE
E7REREDEEE
Recognition of put option liability
arising from disposal of partial
interest of a subsidiary -
Rl &-AHELRDHER
F-HEEMEL L E
Recognition arising from disposal of
partial interest of a subsidiary to
an ex-director -
W16ERBRE (W 150)
2016 final dividend (Note 13(b)) -
N17ERBRE (i 136)
2017 interim dividend (Note 13(a)) -
BORTE R (i2230)
Shares repurchased and cancelled
(Note 23(c)) -
REERTHZRA Wi250)
Shares repurchased but not yet
cancelled (Note 23(c)) -

25 - - - - - 2 - 2

- - - - - - - 1) )

; . - - - (236) (236) - (236)

; . - - - (235) (235) - (235)

. - . - - (31) (81 - (31)

ARAREALERMALE
EEAPRLE
Total contributions by and
distributions to owners of
the Company -

25 5 - (4) - (501) (475) (31) (506)

BfEELERS
Total transactions with owners -

% 5 - @ - (501) (45) (31) (506)

R2017£12531R
At December 31, 2017 79

383

945 19 46 70 7 1,369 2,921 220 3,141
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EHEZED R (R)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

HE2017F12A31HILFE
For the year ended December 31, 2017

ARARRERESR
Attributable to shareholders of the Company
BE B g S
BEHHE i HAERR 5
K GABRE Capital hiEE Share ELEE EfEE  Avalable-for- EREH Non- EnfE
(HEEETAEN) Share  Contributed  redemption Share options Exchange Other  sale financial Retained Af controling Total
(In HK$ million) capital surplus resernve premium reserve resernve reserves  asset reserve profits Total interests equity
1201651 A1A
At January 1, 2016 79 383 3 918 22 (40) 4 - 1,351 2,790 176 2,966
RERRAERERT
Profit after income taxes
for the year - - - - - - - - 434 434 54 488
At ek
Other comprehensive income:
~ARHELHEEDAR
Fair value change on available-
for-sale financial asset - - - - - - - 22 - 22 - 2
-ENHEBRAA AERAR
ARAREZELAE
Exchange adjustment on
translation of overseas
subsidiaries, joint ventures
and branches - - - - - 40) - - - (40) 5 (35)
fFaks
Total comprehensive income - - - - - (40) - 2 434 416 59 475
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

ARFRRERER

HE2017F12A31HILFE
For the year ended December 31, 2017

(HEEETAEN)
(In HKS$ millon)

k&
Share

capital

YR
Contributed

surplus

EOfA
Capital
redemption

reserve

hiEE
Share

premium

Bl
i
Share
options

reserve

ER&RE
Exchange

reserve

HthfR
Other

reserves

iHES Sl

BEELE R
Available-for- EREH Non- EnfE
sale financial Retained A contraling Total

asset reserve profits Total interests equity

BREER S
Transactions with owners:
FREzE
Transfer among reserves
EDC R
Share option schemes
-BfREREMETZRA
Shares issued upon exercise of
share options
-BREER
Share option expense
FEHEERRE
Dividends to non-controlling
interests
165 RERE (Wit 130)
2015 final dividend (Note 13(b))
N165HERE (W 130)
2016 interim dividend (Note 13(a))

- - - (53 (53

- (228) (228) - (228)

- (196) (196) - (196)

ARREEALERAAAT
BEADRLE

Total contributions by and
distributions to owners of

the Company

- (415) (421) (63) (474)

HFEZEERS
Total transactions with owners

- (415) (421) (53) (474)

120165127318
At December 31, 2016

79

383

920

(60)

74

22 1,370 2,785 182 2,967
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

201712 A831H
December 31, 2017

1.

—RER

ENDEBRAERAR(ART]) REMBA
Al (I AEE]) #B— @%E 42,400 /5
WY EBMIOZERREME 2 TERE DKL
4 EGiordano K. Giordano Junior ~ Giordano
Ladies « BSXk BB B RFEELE Z Mg -

AR RN1995F3A3H R I A R IE19814F
RAVAEBREAMA L ERRBRET
NAE) e AP EEM PN Canon’s Court, 22
Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM12, Bermuda °
ERBTELEEMBUNBEBENERDEE
TI7-T7T9R R L TE RESE - KA a2 K’
FTERBABERSABR AR ([BAAM])
FRET (BB RS - 709) ©

BRAEFRIGERRSIN  REHB BHRRUABEE T
BB - LA MK REKXE KR2018F3H8H
EExe([E5g)BB-

FTESFEE
BRAGHYBBRREANEIES TR
RTX - BRRERBIN  WEBREMTHH
PIEFERNEBER -

(a) MBEE
AEHMBRRDVIZBELESAMAE
(BREEHMAE]) B2 BEAMBR
SR ([EEMBREEMDHR - K
AP BRRIZBELKAERE - Bl
EfRAHEHE((AAREEDEREE
REBmEEAAERE ([RBERKERQ
AEREDZEBREEARITESRT
B2 RAEFFEMIELER -

R E SRS AR R
BEIEA —LEB R - EREN
FEE B AR E Y BB Eil Y
i - — BB AR S R
S A GRS EAKE 2 BRA
fi R B4R -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Giordano International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) distribute and sell fashion apparel under the
brand names of Giordano and Giordano Junior, Giordano Ladies,
BSX as well as other owned and licensed brands through an
extensive network with approximately 2,400 shops spanning over
30 countries and regions.

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on March 3, 1995 as
an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda. The address of its registered office is
Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM12, Bermuda.
The address of its principal place of business in Hong Kong is 5th
Floor, Tin On Industrial Building, 777-779 Cheung Sha Wan Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company has its primary listing on the
main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 709).

The consolidated financial statements have been presented in
million of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$ million) unless otherwise
stated. These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the board of directors (the “Board”) on
March 8, 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-
for-sale (“AFS”) financial asset, financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL”) and derivative financial
instruments, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2017F12A31H
December 31, 2017

2. FEESHHE (F) 2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b) MERBBERAZERNETE (b) Impact of new and amended standards
AEEERTEEHER - W R2017 The Group has applied the following amended standards
FIARR BB s AEEMBEE which are effective for the Group’s financial year beginning on
AR or after January 1, 2017:

- WEEZE-AFFgHEN(RES Disclosure initiative — Amendments to Hong Kong
\‘E

SHER ) B7SRAE kR Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) 7;

- XRELEBENELEHEEE 2 ® - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized
R—B BT ERF129 A Losses — Amendments to HKAS 12; and
54

— EFBBE RS %ERI2014-201674 i -  As part of annual improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016
N FERE-—BESTEAE cycle — Amendments to HKAS 12.

125K BE 2 o

FRNZ EEE 2 A AR A B & The adoption of these amendments does not have any
ATE BAKRAGE U RRAMESE material impact on the current period or any prior period and
' is not likely to affect future periods.

(c) EEMENEREMMVIERZEHE (c) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
RZERBYBREZEL effective
AEEWAKRRBAFKAZESEMEAE R The Group has not early applied the new and amendments to
ERR IS RS ER BB mEE HKFRSs and interpretations that have been issued but not yet
AlkZE ZEEANEHTIEUAEER effective. These are not expected to have a material impact
ARV BRRBRERATE HHEIE on the consolidated financial statements of the Group, except
TXPEE to note the following:
EBYEHREERFEIE 2T A HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
HEMRENSHEHEREENSREEN The new standard addresses the classification, measurement
DHE - FFEMKREER WAl AY P and derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities,
MFRENEMEENTREER - introduces new rules for hedge accounting and a new

impairment model for financial assets.

AEBERREcMEENRAE THE The Group has reviewed its financial assets and liabilities and
EAR2018FE1 A1 H RN Z L &R KA is expecting the following impact from the adoption of the
VIN-2 new standard on January 1, 2018:

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 85
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B %R M EE ()
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201712 A831H
December 31, 2017

2. FESEFBE (&)
(c) © %8 1B Isf K 4 RO H7 48 |2 8 48

R2BRUBREERD (F)
BB BIREERFINTHMT R (&)

BEDBRAAIHEENERKRE #1546
REMEANREZERIABERE ([REM
RAEWSEARERE] WD BERAE
AUZRAEEN ST REREZS - =
REEDESNBaREAAEREN
EREE  REFEVHREERFENR
RAERRBREETE - At - AEEE
HFEI ST e ERTEREEND
BLEHE - AT WEREMERS KSR
AAERENEREEERMN WS NE
B RHERKITEERERER M
ER-ETHAREMERREZANE
REFEENDBERFEH - 102017
FHBRFERN FHEAHRLEESRE
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

The equity investment that is currently classified as AFS will
satisfy the conditions for classification as at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) and hence there will
be no change to the accounting for this asset. The financial
asset that is currently classified at FVPL will continue to be
measured on the same basis under HKFRS 9. Accordingly,
the Group does not expect the new guidance to affect the
classification and measurement of these financial assets.
However, gains or losses realized on the sale of financial
assets at FVOCI will no longer be transferred to profit or loss
on sale, but instead reclassified below the line from the FVOCI
reserve to retained profits. During the 2017 financial year,
HK$9 million of such gains were recognized in profit or loss in
relation to the disposal of AFS financial assets.

There will be no impact on the Group’s accounting for
financial liabilities, as the new requirements only affect the
accounting for financial liabilities that are designated at
FVPL and the Group does not have any such liabilities. The
derecognition rules have been transferred from HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and
have not been changed.

The new impairment model requires the recognition of
impairment provisions based on expected credit losses rather
than only incurred credit losses as is the case under HKAS
39. It applies to financial assets classified at amortized cost,
debt instruments measured at FVOCI, contract assets under
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, lease
receivables, loan commitments and certain financial guarantee
contracts.

The new standard also introduces expanded disclosure
requirements and changes in presentation. These are
expected to change the nature and extent of the Group’s
disclosures about its financial instruments particularly in the
year of adoption of the new standard.

The new standard is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after January 1, 2018. The Group will
apply the new rules retrospectively from January 1, 2018,
with the practical expedients permitted under the standard.
Comparatives for 2017 will not be restated.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The HKICPA has issued a new standard for the recognition of
revenue. This will replace HKAS 18 which covers contracts for
goods and services and HKAS 11 which covers construction
contracts. The new standard is based on the principle that
revenue is recognized when control of a good or service
transfers to a customer. The standard permits either a full
retrospective or a modified retrospective approach for the
adoption.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures.
However, they do not anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 will have a material impact on the timing and
amount of revenue recognized in the respective reporting
periods. HKFRS 15 is mandatory for financial years starting
on or after January 1, 2018. The Group intends to adopt the
standard using the modified retrospective approach which
means that the cumulative impact of the adoption will be
recognized in retained profits as of January 1, 2018 and that
comparatives will not be restated.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 will result in almost all leases being recognized
on the balance sheet, as the distinction between operating
and finance leases is removed. Under the new standard, an
asset (the right to use the leased item) and a financial liability
to pay rentals are recognized. The only exceptions are short-
term and low-value leases. The accounting for lessors will not
significantly change.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for Group’s
operating leases. As at the reporting date, the Group has
non-cancellable operating lease commitments of HK$1,303
million. However, the Group has not yet determined to what
extent these commitments will result in the recognition of
an asset and a liability for future payments and how this will
affect the Group’s profit and classification of cash flows.

The new standard is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after January 1, 2019. At this stage,
the Group does not intend to adopt the standard before its
effective date.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Subsidiaries

(i)

Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are de-consolidated from the date that control
ceases.

Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. ldentifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognizes any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis.
Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are measured at either fair value or
the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognized amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognized in profit or loss.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F



B HmRMEE (&)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. TESTHEE)

(d) B

(i)

B4R (&)

SO BHRR (&)
EBEO ()

Prid s S8 - U 75 R IR
s R TT E R ERER
WEEHZAABEBLAEEEE
FEIAREBZEZRBNIEREET
ReBHEFTMBEZBRT  ME
EUE CEAFEHEESERD
AEZBEREREDRATKER
BRABAIZEEREAAE EZ8E
BEREHFNBERAER -

SERARARZEANRS - BRI
HRZARERNEG T ALHE - RER
BRTTUHE  RIFZRI DB
RBPEEZREREERE -HBA
AZBRREREZBEN TCHEE
7] DAREGR BN SR (B P ER A 2 IR
_ﬁO

TEHK L BRI B L A
#5

NGRS H B SRR M AR E T T
BHRREEGIRONIZ AR D E
X -HEMEENEERAE
EHMETHRS o I HEA S
(EEOATR R El ) R R
NAFEERMENZRLHRSE
e MFEHERANEENERE
IRk FERE RS T -

HERE R A

EAKRETESAESE £ER
MERNREREZEFAEELAN
B REENEZHEREPER -
RABERLREESNREARM
ERBMERR AERRRETME
EOMRKREE- b ZRTEHR
A WMATEREZEREHN
TReEBENAKRECERHEMN
MEEMBBERARK - EABERT
Z B B A AR S U RERR Y BRER

BN EERS -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F

2017F12A31H
December 31, 2017

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Subsidiaries (continued)

(i)

Consolidation (continued)

Business combination (continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured
is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealized
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the transferred asset. When necessary, amounts
reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform
with the Group’s accounting policies.

Change in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners
in their capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposal to non-controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at
the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognized in profit or loss. The fair value is the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognized in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognized in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Subsidiaries (continued)

(ii) Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost,
less impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

(e) Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements.
Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint arrangements
are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures
depending on the contractual rights and obligations each
investor have. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint
arrangements and determined them to be joint ventures. Joint
ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognized at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognize the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income. When the Group’s share of losses
in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interests in the joint
ventures (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
joint ventures), the Group does not recognize further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf
of the joint ventures.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Joint arrangements (continued)

Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group and
its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the joint ventures. Unrealized losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of the
joint ventures have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the senior decision-
makers. The senior decision-makers, who are responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, have been identified as the directors and
senior management that make strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s companies are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the company
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(HK$), which is the Company’s functional and the
Group’s presentation currency.

(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the transaction dates or valuation where items are re-
measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognized in the consolidated income statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through
profit or loss are recognized in profit or loss as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-
monetary financial assets, such as equities classified as
available for sale, are included in other comprehensive
income.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
companies (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
balance sheet date;

- income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average rate is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case, income and
expenses are translated at the exchange rate on
transaction dates); and

— all resulting exchange differences are recognized in
other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entities and translated at the
closing rate. Exchange differences arising are recognized
in other comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
equity holders of the company are reclassified to profit or
loss.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Property, plant and equipment

Buildings, leasehold improvements and other fixed assets
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Cost represents the
purchase price of the asset and other costs incurred to bring
the asset into its existing use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate cost over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

- Freehold land is not amortized.

—  Buildings situated on freehold land are depreciated over
their estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years
after the date of completion.

— Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease or their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years after
the date of completion.

-  Plant and equipment 5 years

—  Other property and equipment 3 -5 years
Assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognized in
the consolidated income statement.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Investment property

An investment property is a property which is held for
long term rental yield or for capital appreciation, or both.
Investment property comprises buildings held under finance
leases. It is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Cost represents
the purchase price of the investment property and other
costs incurred to bring the property into its existing use.
Depreciation of investment property is calculated using
straight-line method to write off its cost over the unexpired
period of the lease.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed in the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they
have been disposed of or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss
arising from derecognized of the property (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss
in the period in which the property is derecognized.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1)

(k)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures and represents the excess of the
consideration transferred, the amount of non-controlling
interest in the acquire and the acquisition-date fair value of
any previous equity interest in the acquire over the fair value
of the net identifiable assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the cash-
generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGUs, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
a potential impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is
compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher
of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any
impairment is recognized immediately as an expense and is
not subsequently reversed.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortization and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortization are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value-in-use. For the purpose
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
level for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(CGUs). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
() Financial assets
Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, and available-for-sale. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives are also
classified in this category as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to be settled
within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-
current.

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12 months after the
balance sheet date. These are classified as non-current
assets. The Group’s loans and receivables comprise
“trade and other receivables” and “cash and bank
balance” in the balance sheet.

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated in this category or not classified
in any of the other categories. They are included in
non-current assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within 12 months of
the end of the reporting period.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

Financial assets (continued)
Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognized on the trade-date — the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially
recognized at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognized at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed
in the consolidated income statement. Financial assets are
derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
“financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” category
are presented in the consolidated income statement within
“Other income and other gains, net” in the period in which
they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognized in the consolidated
income statement as part of other income when the Group’s
right to receive payment is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available for sale are recognized in
other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available for sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognized
in equity are included in the consolidated income statement
as “gains and losses from investment securities”.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Impairment of financial assets

(i)

Assets carried at amortized cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss
event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of
the loss is recognized in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has
a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As a practical expedient,
the group may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognized (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognized
impairment loss is recognized in the consolidated income
statement.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(n)

(o)

(ii) Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. In the
case of equity investments classified as available for
sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of the security below its cost is also evidence that the
assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognized in profit or loss — is removed from equity
and recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses
recognized in the consolidated income statement
on equity instruments are not reversed through the
consolidated income statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis.
Cost of purchased goods is invoiced prices plus procurement
costs.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price at which
inventories can be sold in the normal course of business, less
applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other receivables
is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognized initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

(a)

(r)

(s)

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with
banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within bank loans in current liabilities on
the consolidated balance sheet.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method.

Bank loans

Bank loans are recognized initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and are subsequently stated at
amortized cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognized
in the consolidated income statement over the period of the
bank loans using the effective interest method.

Bank loans are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t)

(u)

(v)

Put option arrangements

The potential cash payments related to put options issued
by the Group over the equity of subsidiary companies are
accounted for as financial liabilities when such options may
only be settled other than by exchange of a fixed amount of
cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of shares in
the subsidiary. The amount that may become payable under
the option on exercise is initially recognized at fair value with a
corresponding charge directly to equity.

The Group recognizes the cost of writing such put options,
determined as the excess of the fair value of the option over
any consideration received, as a financing cost. Such options
are subsequently re-measured at fair value as a result of
the change in the expected performance at each balance
sheet date, with any resulting gain or loss recognized in
the consolidated income statement. The charge arising is
recorded as a financing cost. In the event that the option
expires unexercised, the liability is derecognized with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the consolidated income
statement in the period in which they are incurred, except
to the extent that they are capitalized as being directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale.

Current and deferred tax
(i) Current tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognized in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognized in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognized
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v) Current and deferred tax (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Current tax (continued)

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries and regions
where the Company’s subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on interests in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, except for deferred income tax
liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F



B HmRMEE (&)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. FESEFBE (&)
(v) EMRIELESR IR (&)

(ii)

(iii)

i S IE (4]

SEEE ()

BB HEERMB AR  BE
RNE R AR RBEATE LS Z AR E
FUEZERER EXEREEZE
AREBRREERRED  BAEEH
ERB R MM A AERIEZEMA -

&
ERATEANATEOSEHNHEE
EREHRGAERE  BETM
BREEMBEY kbR —HHEH
BUERT BT RERTEE
BEBRAFREEGERBHE
B AR REEMSHEERSR
EEMEEH -

(w) EERR

(i)

RAKEEE

R B EZRINFTE LN AEE
RITBERERMNEERETREMRNK
ek (mEm) 28 RAEH#
RAEEE - RERAFTEZE
ERAKECEELHATE LA
BUESEE -RBIHEEEBESY
AR Far BIEHR - M KE TS
BOARNEEHEZBEDL &5 A
20% -

AN B BLRZ R E A IRGT B K os Il 1
NESHEMEL 2 EREBE AR
ERBRAYHE MEIEREZH
BES 2 FIRATR HAt 8 Mgz
BEEZTE S AEMDRILER - K
EENEHERE  FHEEWDA
BT -

AEE2EMBRARZEEN QA
RIEBBEHEELXGI2E TR
REsHE (TEH)) - Rk - 52005
FTAER  RKEGESTERASE
P28 ZRAEEE (TFH]) -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F

2017F12A31H
December 31, 2017

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(v) Current and deferred tax (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Deferred tax (continued)

Outside basis differences (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognized on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements only to
the extent that it is probable the temporary difference will
reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit
available against which the temporary difference can be
utilized.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is
an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

(w) Employee benefits

(i)

Pension obligations

Except for the pension scheme arrangements in Taiwan,
the Group operates defined contributions schemes and,
if applicable, participates in central defined contribution
provident fund schemes for all qualified employees. The
assets of the said schemes are held by independently
administered funds separated from those of the Group.
Contributions to these schemes are made by both the
employers and employees at rates up to 20% on the
employees’ salaries.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
plans and mandatory provident fund scheme are
expensed as incurred and, if applicable, are reduced
by contributions forfeited by those employees who
leave the scheme or the plan prior to vesting fully in
the contributions. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been made.

The branches of wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group
in Taiwan have a defined benefit scheme (“Old Scheme”)
governed by the Labor Standard Law and a defined
contribution scheme (“New Scheme”) governed by the
Labor Pension Act which became effective on July 1,
2005.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w) Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Pension obligations (continued)

Under the Old Scheme, the Group has an obligation
to ensure that there are sufficient funds in the scheme
to pay the benefits earned for the service years of all
employees before the New Scheme was effective and
the subsequent service years of employees who chose
to continue to participate in the Old Scheme. The
branches currently contribute at 2% of the total salaries
of participating employees as determined and approved
by the relevant government authorities. The assets of the
Old Scheme are invested by the Bank of Taiwan.

Under the New Scheme, the branches contribute each
month at 6% of the salary of employees, with a cap of
NTD9,000 who choose to participate in the New Scheme
into individual pension accounts at the Bureau of Labor
Insurance.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognized as an expense. The total amount
to be expensed over the vesting period is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options granted,
excluding the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth
targets). Non-market vesting conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to become exercisable. At each balance sheet
date, the Group revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to become exercisable.
[t recognizes the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in the consolidated income statement
and a corresponding adjustment to equity over the
remaining vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium when the options are
exercised.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x)

(v)

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be
made.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for goods supplied, stated net of discounts, rebates, returns
and value added taxes. The Group recognizes revenue when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it
is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’s activities, as described below. The Group
bases its estimates of return on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction
and the specifics of each arrangement.

(i) Sales of goods - retail

Sales of goods are recognized when products are sold
to the customer. Retail sales are usually in cash or by
credit card. The recorded revenue is the gross amount of
sales, before netting off credit card fees payable for the
transactions. Such fees are included in distribution costs.
Revenue is shown net of returns, rebates and discounts.

(ii) Sales of goods - wholesale

Sales of goods are recognized when products are
delivered to the customer, the customer has accepted
the products and collectibility of the related receivables is
reasonably assured.

(iii) Interest income

Interest income is recognized on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method, taking into account
the principal amount outstanding and the interest rates
applicable.

(iv) Royalty income

Royalty income is recognized on an accrual basis
in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreements.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(y) Revenue recognition (continued)
(v) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive
payment is established.

(vi) Rental income

Rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

(z) Leases (as the lessee)
Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Rental payments applicable to such
operating leases are charged to the consolidated income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease periods.

(aa)Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognized as a liability in the Group’s financial statements in
the period in which the dividends are approved.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE

The Group’s activities exposed it to a variety of financial risks: a(i)
foreign exchange risk, a(ii) credit risk, a(iii) liquidity risk, a(iv) cash
flow interest rate risk, (b) capital risk management and (c) fair value
estimation. The Group’s overall risk management program seeks
to minimize potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. The Group uses derivative financial instruments to
manage certain risk exposure when necessary.

(a) Financial risk factors
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed
to foreign exchange risk arising from commercial
transactions, recognized assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations. Foreign exchange
risk arises when future commercial transactions or
recognized assets or liabilities are denominated in a
currency that is not the entity’s functional currency.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

As at year end, the foreign exchange risk of the Group
mainly arises from purchases from a Renminibi-based
supply chain and sales proceeds in local currencies of
the relevant group entities. Foreign exchange risk arising
from recognized assets and liabilities is considered to be
insignificant. This is due to the balances denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the
relevant group entity are generally settled promptly
leaving minimal outstanding foreign currency position as
at the balance sheet date.

To manage foreign exchange risk arising from
commercial transactions, recognized assets and
liabilities, companies in the Group may use forward
foreign exchange contracts when major fluctuation in the
relevant foreign currency is anticipated.

The Group has certain investments in foreign operations,
whose net assets are exposed to foreign currency
translation risk.

Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group is primiarily attributable to
balances with bank, trade and other receivables and
rental deposits. The carrying amounts of these balances
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
in relation to financial assets. The credit risk on deposits
with banks is limited as the Group mainly places the
deposits in banks with high credit rating.

Retail sales are usually made in cash, bank transfer,
through credit cards or through reputable and dispersed
department stores. The Group’s credit sales are only
made to wholesale and franchise customers, with an
appropriate credit history and on credit terms of 30 to 60
days. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts
is not significant.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

Credit risk (continued)

The table below shows the major types of debtors of the
Group as at December 31, 2017 and 2016.

(WX B & T BE) (In HK$ million) 2017 2016
HESYE Counterpart:
AERQF Department stores 207 181
IR Franchisees 63 73
JEUZ B RERFX Credit card receivables 24 17
HAih Others 7 3
JEURBR 3k (A it22) Trade receivables (Note 22) 301 274
¥=x Landlords 203 212
504 486

WETHFRBAELEBERDH -
AEEWEFEREFBEL ZRT
R (2016 ¢ ) o

MREE < E

AEBEEBEFTHRRITRENAR
KEREHeREMRERSRE
METRRSFEY  REFR
BBk -

(iii)

FAREZELRBEMERER
—FRAHI AEREREARAER
2017412 H31H 2016512 A31
AZE2HHBREIR —FARIH -
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(iii)

These counterparts have no default history in the past.
The Group holds nil bank guarantees (2016: nil) from
landlords.

Liquidity risk
The liquidity risk of the Group is controlled by maintaining
sufficient banking facilities and cash and cash

equivalents, which is generated from the operating cash
flow and financing cash flow.

As at December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016,
except for the Group’s put option liability which is
due after one year, all of the Group’s and Company’s
financial liabilities are due within one year.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)
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(iv) Cash flow interest rate risk

Except for the bank balance of HK$1,465 million (2016:
HK$1,393 million) and short-term bank loan of HK$298
million (2016: HK$298 million); the Group has no other
significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities. The
bank balance and short-term bank borrowings at floating
rate expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk
which is insignificant to the Group. The Group’s income
and operating cash flows are substantially independent
of changes in market interest rates. Management does
not anticipate significant impact resulted from the
changes in interest rates.

(b) Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives on managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern as well as
maximizing returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders.

The Group’s capital structure consists of equity, cash and
bank balances and bank loans as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In order to improve the capital structure, the Group may
raise long term debts, adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders and issue new
shares.

The Group monitors capital by maintaining a net cash position
throughout the year. Net cash positions is calculated by
cash and bank balances net of interest bearing bank loans.
As at December 31, 2017, the Group maintained a net cash
position of HK$1,167 million (2016: HK$1,095 million).
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(c) Fair value estimation

Financial instruments that are measured at fair value are
disclosed by the level of the following fair value measurement
hierarchy:
Level 1 — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3

inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
is based on quoted market prices at the date of the statement
of financial position. A market is regarded as active if quoted
prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The
quoted market price used for financial assets held by the
Group is the current bid price. These instruments are included
in Level 1. The Group’s available-for-sale financial asset
measured at fair value are included in Level 1 of the fair value
measurement hierarchy (Note 18).

As at December 31, 2017, if there had been a 5% change in
the fair value of available-for-sale financial asset and financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s equity would have increased/
decreased by HK$0.8 million (2016: HK$1.76 million) and
net profit would have increased/decreased by HK$1.4 million
(2016: HK$1.4 million).

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market is determined by using valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximize the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as little as possible
on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required
to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument
is included in Level 2. No financial instrument is included in
Level 2 as at December 31, 2017 and 2016.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in Level
3. The Group’s financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss are included in Level 3 of the fair value measurement
hierarchy (Note 19).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.

(i) Assessment of impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in Note 2(j). The recoverable amounts of CGUs have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations or its fair value
less costs of disposal, whichever is higher, and both bases
require the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the CGUs and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, an impairment loss may arise
(Note 16).

(ii) Fair value of written put option liabilities

Certain of the Group’s business combination activities
involved put options issued by the Group over the equity of
subsidiary companies. The Group recorded such written put
option liabilities at their fair values which are determined in
accordance with the terms under those relevant agreements
and with reference to the estimated post-acquisition
performance of the acquired subsidiaries. Judgement is
required to determine key assumptions (such as growth
rate, margins and discount rate) adopted in the estimation
of post-acquisition performance of the acquired subsidiaries.
Changes to key assumptions can significantly affect the
amounts of future liabilities. Put option liabilities shall be re-
measured at their fair value resulting from events or factors
emerge after the acquisition date, with any resulting gain or
loss recognized in the consolidated income statement.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

(iii) Net realizable value of inventories

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Net realizable value of inventories is the estimated selling
prices in the ordinary course of business less estimated
selling expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of selling
products of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of changes in economic conditions in places
where the Group operates and changes in customer taste
and competitor actions in response to changes in market
conditions. Management reassesses these estimates at each
balance sheet date.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in determining
the worldwide provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Assessment of impairment of non-current
financial assets

The Group conducts impairment reviews of non-current
assets that are subject to depreciation and amortization
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Management
assesses the recoverable amount of each non-current asset
based on its value in use or on its fair value less costs of
disposal (by reference to market prices), depending upon the
anticipated future plans for the assets. These calculations
require the use of judgments and estimates.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets.
The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets
regularly in order to determine the amount of depreciation
to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives
are based on the Group’s historical experience with similar
assets. The depreciation for future periods is adjusted if there
are material changes from previous estimates.
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OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group determines its operating segments based on its
development strategies and operational control. There are two
major operating segments: Retail and Distribution and Wholesales
to Overseas Franchisees. Management manages the Retail and
Distribution operating segment geographically and by brand.

Geographically, the Retail and Distribution operating segment in
Mainland China and the Middle East comprise directly operated
stores (“DOS”) and franchised stores. Hong Kong and Macau,
Taiwan and the rest of Asia Pacific do not have material local
franchised stores. Group stores span most of Asia Pacific and the
Middle East.

As for brands, the Group presently operates Giordano and
Giordano Junior, Giordano Ladies, BSX as well as other owned
and licensed brands.

Segment operating profit is before finance expense, share of
profit of joint ventures and income taxes. This is the measurement
basis reported to management and the senior decision-makers for
the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance.

Analysis of sales and operating profit of the Group’s operating
segment by geographic regions is as follows.

2017 2016

"ERT mE R
HEHE Operating $HEZ  Operating
(UBEETEEN) (In HKS million) Sales profit Sales profit

ZERAH Retail and Distribution
REAR Mainland China 1,307 118 1,285 102
B5 LR Hong Kong and Macau 969 95 927 87
g Taiwan 642 64 615 39
SREMME The rest of Asia Pacific 1,502 204 1,388 164
HE The Middle East 673 121 626 108
5,093 602 4,841 500

HENMBEE B Wholesales to

Overseas Franchisees 319 57 304 54
PHEE Segment results 5,412 659 5,145 554
ekl 17 Corporate functions 30 14
HEER Finance expense @ (1)
ElEAENRGET Share of profit of joint ventures 59 43
BRETER AR Profit before income taxes 744 610
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5.
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OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)

Further analysis of the Retail and Distribution operating segment
by brand is as follows.

2017 2016

"R S

HEHE Operating $EZ  Operating

(UEEETAEN) (In HK$ million) Sales profit Sales profi
TERDHE Retail and Distribution

Glordano K Giordano Junior Giordano and Giordano Junior 4,331 522 4,130 422

Gloraano Ladies Giordano Ladlies 423 67 401 65

BSX BSX 142 9 147 9

Eth Others 197 4 163 4

5,093 602 4,841 500

RARHREE - HRBEBRBFISESEIINE
FZHEREAR12.88E 87T (20164 : 12.3118
Bot) s R B KRRE £13.07/88 7T (20164 -
12.85EF ) s MAREMTHEHINEF ZHE
%8 22817188 7T (20164 : 26.20(8 8 7T)

DEbZ 7 $EE%E11.657E B T (20164 ¢
1012 L) ETFTAEHYEH -

PEAKEEREHEER A2,2008 8T
(20164 : 2,6008870) : &8 &EFIA1,700
BB (20164 11,5008 T) + B/ //1,700
E870 (20164 : 1,800&8/870) 5 b KH Mt
& 53,9008 78 7T (20164F : 4,3008 8 7T) + &
R 51,5008 78 7T (20164F : 2,400& 8 7T) °

FRE K BE 2 BT 1S T & B 52,6008 78 7T (2016
F 01,4008 8 70) BB REFIB1,4008 %
7T (20164 : 1,100& B L) + & & 51,0008
BT (20164F : 6008 B 7T) + B A E M [E &
5,6008 & 7T (20164 : 4,700& B 7T) : i
/41,0008 7 7T (20164 : 9008 ) °

REeERMTARBREEREEEN REBR
B2 BB A E L% A1.868 8 T (2016
F 197 B L) R B KEA0.82E 8
gL (20164 : 0.7218870) + MR HMTIE A
13.85(8 7% 7T (20164F : 12,9788 L) -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

The Company has its domicile in Hong Kong. Sales to external
customers recorded in Hong Kong and Macau were HK$1,288
million (2016: HK$1,231 million), Mainland China, HK$1,307 million
(2016: HK$1,285 million); and external customers from other
markets, HK$2,817 million (2016: HK$2,629 million).

Inter-segment sales of HK$1,157 million (2016: HK$1,012 million)
have been eliminated upon consolidation.

Depreciation and amortization charged related to Mainland China
was HK$22 million (2016: HK$26 million); Hong Kong and Macau,
HK$17 million (2016: HK$15 million); Taiwan, HK$17 million (2016:
HK$18 million); the rest of Asia Pacific, HK$39 million (2016:
HK$43 million); and the Middle East, HK$15 million (2016: HK$24
million).

Income taxes charged related to Mainland China was HK$26
million (2016: HK$14 million); Hong Kong and Macau, HK$14
million (2016: HK$11 million); Taiwan, HK$10 million (2016: HK$6
million); the rest of Asia Pacific, HK$56 million (2016: HK$47
million); and the Middle East, HK$10 million (2016: HK$9 million).

The total of non-current assets other than financial instruments
and deferred tax assets located in Hong Kong and Macau was
HK$186 million (2016: HK$197 million); Mainland China, HK$82
million (2016: HK$72 million); and other markets, HK$1,385 million
(2016: HK$1,297 million).

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F



M maRE (&)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

EE D (&)
AEEZBERBEY DS ZHWMT -

2017F12A31H
December 31, 2017

OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)

Analysis of the Group’s assets by geographic regions is as follows.

PHEE
Segment assets
(KB EETRENL) (In HK$ million) 2017 2016
D ENEE Segment assets

H B K e Mainland China 853 775

B MR Hong Kong and Macau 981 1,064

= Taiwan 193 184

25 K H At i [& The rest of Asia Pacific 779 658

hR The Middle East 858 840

3,664 3,521

AENFIER Interest in joint ventures 563 480

AHPEzZEmMEE Available-for-sale financial asset 16 35
REZEEAAEBREZEREE Financial asset at fair value

through profit or loss 28 28

RIETIEE E Deferred tax assets 51 50

BEEHEE Total assets 4,322 4,114

Htt AR E bz - 8

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS, NET

(X BEETEEN) (In HK$ million) 2017 2016
ISR TN Royalty income 36 37
FLEU A Interest income 16 12
el A Rental income 15 13
B 5 W R 5 58 Net exchange gain 10 -
HEAHNESRHEE 2 WS Gain on disposal of available-for-
sale financial asset 9 -
ZEKE—MENBAR 2K Gain on bargain purchase of a
subsidiary 4 -
¥V ON Dividend income 3 3
HEMX BERZEZFEE Net loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment (2) -
HAh Others 21 20
112 85
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201712 A831H
December 31, 2017

7. BEEA
EEEFIER

OPERATING PROFIT
Operating profit is after charging:

(KB EETRENL) (In HK$ million) 2017 2016
$HE R Cost of sales
FEHEKR Cost of inventories sold 2,169 2,083
REFEEFEMIFEME Provision for obsolete stock and
stock written off 22 7
2,191 2,090
2HER Distribution expense
THREFILEHEEERR Operating lease rentals in respect
of land and building
—HEEEIH — Minimum lease payments 822 832
—AREESER - Contingent rent 231 229
B TR Staff cost 783 728
MEERE BINEZ0WAAREXER Building management fee,
government rates and utilities 127 124
EBEEEE - HERYEEE Advertising, promotion and
incentives 122 100
M BERBERTE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 96 109
BEKER Packaging and deliveries 54 49
RITEREARKE Bank and credit card charges 34 28
HE T A FRIBHE S Amortization of leasehold land
prepayments 6 6
H b Others 115 94
2,390 2,299
THER Administrative expense
BIA Staff cost 158 172
FEREEER Legal and professional fee 23 19
THREFIEEHEER Operating lease rentals in respect
of land and building
—HEESIH — Minimum lease payments 16 17
E¥ DS =L Computer and telecommunication 7 9
% Gl Auditor’s remuneration 7 6
W B REBERE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 6 9
ZRE Travelling 5 7
BN H IR Business and other taxes 2 3
T E £ b I8 5 FRIE 5 Amortization of leasehold land
prepayments 2 2
H ity Others 28 29
254 273

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2017F12A31H
December 31, 2017

8. MBEEH 8. FINANCE EXPENSE
(X BEEETAEENT) (In HK$ million) 2017 2016
RITERH E Interest on bank loans 3 1
B EEA Other interest expenses 1 -
4 1
9. BEI A 9. STAFF COSTS
(X B EETAENT) (In HK$ million) 2017 2016
FehkIA(BEEEMS) Salaries and wages (including
Directors’ emoluments) 856 830
BREER Share option expense 7 1
BRE - A EHERETE Pension cost — defined
contribution plans 78 69
941 900
KEFEAN AEBEEHERAREEN ZHEHRK During the year, no unvested benefits were utilized by the Group
(20164F : &) LUBE M FUKE « ;R2017F & to reduce the level of contributions (2016: Nil). As at December 31,
20165F12H31H - BB A RFFE A2 Kae 2017 and 2016, no unvested benefits were available to be utilized
SHELHE K - in future years.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201712 A831H
December 31, 2017

10.EEPVFFZFAELRS 10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(a) EEE £ (a) Directors’ emoluments
EXEhe
#3
Employer’s
BEkEa*  EfKE*  contribution
He %%  Discretionary Other  to pension &it
ESpg Name of Directors Fees  Salaries Bonuses™  benefits* schemes Total
BEFr  EB¥FR AEFT  BETR AEFT  BETR
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$7000 HK$’000 HK$7000
2017
2B v LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter®t - 3,543 17,269 1,931 18 22,761
4l CHAN Ka Wai* - 2,258 1,494 518 18 4,288
BEYL Mark Alan LOYND? - 2,075 1,245 441 18 3,779
Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI®®  Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI® - 134 - - ok 144
A CHENG Chi Kong' 200 - - - - 200
Bt & CHAN Sai Cheong" 200 - - - - 200
=2 Barry John BUTTIFANT* 400 - - = 5 400
BES KWONG Ki Chi* 350 - - - 5 350
Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH* Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH™ 350 - - - - 350
)i WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu)* 350 - - - - 350
1,850 8,010 20,008 2,890 64 32,822
2016
2B et LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter! - 3,470 14,183 1,715 18 19,386
Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI®  Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI® - 1,351 3,270 21 49 4,691
R CHAN Ka Wai® - 2,003 497 33 18 2,551
p§:L: Dominic Leo Richard IRWIN ! - 715 - - 5 720
BER CHENG Chi Kong" 200 - - - - 200
BRig CHAN Sai Cheong’ 200 - - - - 200
2R Barry John BUTTIFANT* 400 - - - - 400
BHEE KWONG Ki Chi* 350 - - - - 350
Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH* Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH** 350 - - - - 350
9] WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu)* 350 - - - - 350
1,850 7,539 17,950 1,769 90 29,198
f FREITHER T Chairman and Chief Executive
s WITES o Executive Directors
" HHMITES " Non-executive Directors
* BUFRITES * Independent Non-executive Directors
# HEm R ERRER - BRE  BEEMN # Other benefits include insurance premium, share options, housing
Hup 2 REYkE ([HEMdks]) allowance, other allowances and benefits in kind (“Other Benefits”)
o TEAT IR M D ER b B TB e R E 208 Kl B 18 > Discretionary bonuses are determined based on profit sharing ratio or
KR FTATE pre-determined achievement rate of profit targets.
o WIEE SR OE ***  Pro-rata up to the date act as a Director
! MR2016F3ACHEBI T AE S i Resigned as a Director on March 3, 2016
2 HR2017F3 AR ELZ T AES 2 Appointed as a Director on March 9, 2017
8 R2017F3AOHBIT AE S 3 Resigned as a Director on March 9, 2017
¢ M2017F8A30B B ERES ¢ Resigned as a Director on August 30, 2017
118 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(a)

(b)

EEME ()

REAFER MEEZN2Me 80
T

%R (E)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2017F12A31H
December 31, 2017

10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

The aggregate amount of emoluments payable to Directors

during the year is as follows:

(BT or BENr) (In HK$’000) 2017 2016
we Fees 1,850 1,850
EMi e - Other emoluments:
AR MHE MU 25 Basic salaries

and Other Benefits 10,900 9,308

RS EIHK Contribution to pension
schemes 64 90
)15 TEAT Discretionary bonuses 20,008 17,950
32,822 29,198

TNBREHFBE

RAFEER  AEEBRUSZSHBRE S
B3 (20165 : 3 ) EE  HBi& ~
HBEERLEHE - AFER - R T2
(2016%F : 2fi1) X ¥ B B Z BN B < 10
-

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments

the Group for the year include 3 (2016:

were the highest in
3) Directors whose

emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above.
The emoluments payable to the remaining 2 (2016: 2)

individuals during the year are as follows:

(LB FTREN) (In HK$’000) 2017 2016
AR & RHE MG Basic salaries and Other
Benefits 4,954 4,720
RIKEFHEIH R Contribution to pension
schemes 85 34
By IS HE4T Discretionary bonuses 4,986 1,920
10,025 6,674

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F
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B %R M EE ()
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201712 A831H
December 31, 2017

10.EEMNEMER (&)

(b) EUBEFBE (&)

(c)

BRTEEHFBRELRMSERFENT

10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (continued)

The emoluments of the remaining highest paid individuals fell
within the following bands:

< 48 5l AE
Emolument bands Number of individuals
2017 2016
HK$
2,000,001-3,000,000 - 1
3,000,001-4,000,000 - 1
4,000,001-5,000,000 1 -
5,000,001-6,000,000 1 -

MES XZFESFEHNEA
EREEZESNEETBREHD
EX - EERNMEMAXZHNESR

ARG EI S GFEARRRES -
SHZEEREAEABRRKEZ
EEAMENTEBATTAZER
ERREMTS  BEFREEBLAK
151 55383(1)(d)fiE & 5622GE F =¥ H 1
R (20164F © &) ©

&=
~F
%

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

(c) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of Directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and connected entities with
such Directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour
of the Directors, their controlled bodies corporate and
connected entities for disclosure pursuant to section 383(1)(d)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of 622G
(2016: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

11. Fr 8%

EAFESHEBEBEAFE Z At ERFEF
1£16.5% (20164F : 16.5%) 2 T R+ E - BB
LA SN g B 2 FE SR AT 18 1 T 1% 8 Bl &) 5% 1b (& i3
BZzMEFTE -

2017F12A31H
December 31, 2017

1. INCOME TAXES

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5% (2016:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year. Income
taxes on profits assessable outside Hong Kong is calculated at the
rates applicable in the respective jurisdictions.

(K FEETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2017 2016
KEEFREH Current income taxes
BE Hong Kong 27 20
E B LASN Outside Hong Kong 97 72
BAFETR (B85 #E Under/(over) provision in
prior years 16 2
MEiE Withholding taxes 27 27
167 117
EEFTER Deferred income taxes
REHEER 2ITEREE Origination and reversal of
temporary differences 8 5
175 122

ST HTREAFEREEE AR ZMER
1,6008 B 7L (20164 : 1,1008 L) - RN&
HFBERP ZEEESERREF TR Z A
R EER Z SRR -

FA - BEERBRYASE —RHERRBG
EFEZRBBERAREE - HERHHERKRE
BT —OEMRARBENE YO RFAR
e A 81,5008 87T 2 — R & B -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F

This charge excludes the share of joint ventures’ income taxes for
the year of HK$16 million (2016: HK$11 million). The share of profit
of joint ventures in the consolidated income statement is after
income taxes accrued in the appropriate income tax jurisdictions.

During the year, the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department
initiated a review on the prior years’ tax affairs of a subsidiary of
the Group. An additional tax assessment was subsequently issued
and a one-off tax provision of HK$15 million was made during the
year.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A X EKAERLF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201712 A831H
December 31, 2017

11.

12.

Fre® (&
$0 B R T A 2 7 5 B4k 719 1 A ik )
EAERIH 2 BHRAT -

11.

INCOME TAXES (continued)

Reconciliation of the Group’s profit before income taxes at the tax
rate of Hong Kong to the income tax charges is as follows.

(XGEETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2017 2016
BREFEBADEN (T BEEREE R aDEN) Profit before income taxes (before

share of profit of joint ventures) 685 567
RTS8 T & 16.5% (20164 : 16.5%) 51 & Calculated at a income tax rate

of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) 113 94
EMEARTRBE 2 ZE Effect of different tax rates in other

regions 20 18
Az Expenses not deductible for tax

purposes 30 11
FED BRI RIBEE Deferred tax assets not recognized 4 10
BERB 2 BA Income not subject to tax (33) (38)
FRENREERZHIE Utilization of previously

unrecognized tax losses (2) (2)
mngrm Withholding tax 27 31
BEEERR (GBZE) BE& Under/(over) provision in prior years 16 ()
Ry Income tax charges 175 122
BRER 12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

BREXRBERBFHRAFEQARRIE
16 BR BT 15 B 1% )4 F15.0018 %8 7T (2016 : 4.3418
BIL)EHE -

EREABINDIEAFERNE BITRMD
Z INHE 19 Ik B1,570,885,493 0% (2016 :
1,570,561,4030%) 5+ & o

ERBEFERANDEAAFEANDETRS
2 I #EF 19 % 811,570,885,493M% (2016 :
1,570,561,4030%) O _ERERAR 5 A 5] 88 A% 42
BRI AERTEBRESDITHEME
172 D 2 Nk ¥ AR 24,749,102% (2016
F 1 527,8480%) 5T E -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based
on the profit after income taxes attributable to shareholders of the
Company for the year of HK$500 million (2016: HK$434 million).

The basic earnings per share is based on the weighted average
of 1,570,885,493 shares (2016: 1,570,561,403 shares) in issue
during the year.

The diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average of 1,570,885,493 shares (2016: 1,570,561,403
shares) in issue during the year by the weighted average of
4,749,102 shares (2016: 527,848 shares) deemed to be issued
if all outstanding share options granted under the share option
schemes of the Company had been exercised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

13. R B
(@) XFEERBWT :

(U B BETBE)

(a)

2017F12A31H
December 31, 2017

13. DIVIDENDS

Dividends attributable to the year:

(In HK$ million) 2017 2016

BERZFHRE AFR15.0%81
(20164 : & 12.5781l)

REBEBHEES 2 KR E A E20.081L
(20164 + |A%15.0/81L)

Interim dividend declared and

paid of 15.0 HK cents per

share (2016: 12.5 HK cents

per share) 235 196
Final dividend proposed after

the balance sheet date of

20.0 HK cents per share

(2016: 15.0 HK cents per

share) 314 236

549 432

R201843H8H ' EF @ RFERHME
RERR20.081 - AR EREARBRR
BFRE ERSBIRIE - bR # K X
BHEAHEAVERRBRAE - BHIKK
BZERINERZZREBZARAE

BITRMEBBAE -

b) BRE—FE IREFERE
BERKBENRE

(B EETREI)

(b)

On March 8, 2018, the Board has recommended a final
dividend of 20.0 HK cents per share and is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. The proposed dividend has not
been recognized as a liability at the balance sheet date. The
amount of proposed dividend was based on the shares of the
Company in issue as at the proposed date.

Dividends attributable to the previous year,
approved and paid during the year:

(In HK$ million) 2017 2016

B E KR ZE2016F R EAK B A& I15.05 1
(20154 + F14.5%81l)

2016 final dividend approved
and paid of 15.0 HK cents
per share (2015: 14.5 HK
cents per share) 236 228
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B3 8RR MY R ()
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2017912 A31H
December 31, 2017

14. Y% - B RRE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(HEEETAEl) (In HK$ millon)
RAE Cost
R201751818 At January 1, 2017
BhEES Translation difference
WE-BRBLA (H22) Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 32)
NE Additions
Eh Transfer out
k3 Disposals
#2017612A318 At December 31, 2017
2RNE Accumulated depreciation
R2017E1A18 At January 1, 2017
BEER Translation difference
hE-RRBAR (Wis2) Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 32)
HE Impairment
TEEME Charge for the year
g1 Transfer out
k3 Disposals
2017512318 At December 31, 2017
120175128318 Net book value at

ZEAFE December 31, 2017

al

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
& o BB R 2D
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

14. Y% - SR 1E (E)

201712 H31H
December 31, 2017

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

HEMR
2B BILR
KAER ENAIL
LI Leasehold
REF B2 improvements,
Freehold FET: furniture HE
land & EF Plant & & office Motor At
(WEEETAEN) (In HK$ millon) buildings Buildings equipment equipment vehicles Total
HAE Cost
R2016%1 A1H At January 1, 2016 52 26 52 1,077 20 1,227
HOEE Translation difference 1 - - (16) - (15)
NE Additions - - 1 101 2 104
feE Disposals - - ®) (96) ?) (101)
R2016%F12 4318 At December 31, 2016 53 26 50 1,066 20 1,215
2ENE Accumulated depreciation
#2016%1 A1H At January 1, 2016 12 7 52 900 17 988
HEZR Translation difference - - 1) (15) . (16)
Al Impairment - - . 1 _ :
AEEHE Charge for the year 1 1 - 114 2 118
& Disposals - - 2 93) @ 97)
R2016%E12A31H At December 31, 2016 13 8 49 907 17 994
#2016512731A Net book value at
ZEERE December 31, 2016 40 18 1 159 3 921
15. REW = 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
REERFAYMEERPUA - The Group had properties which held for long-term rental yields.
(A BEE TTREN) (In HK$ million) 2017 2016
A E Cost
M1A1H At January 1 - _
A Transfer in 64 -
M12A31H At December 31 64 -
REBNE Accumulated depreciation
®1A1R At January 1 _ _
=N Transfer in 36 -
M12A31H At December 31 36 -
M12A31B ZREFE Net book value at December 31 28 -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 %

R

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= X E B AERXF

125



MEHmRMEE (&)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201712 A831H
December 31, 2017

15. REWE (&)
ZIREYENR2017FE12A31B 2 AL EH B
Y EEZHERQARTE o MENRBEREEAR
fbi7% BSBRAMNARSTHER S MEERE
BAOREENERMBEMSENEBEEAR
bR - $FIRARBERE N TFLLE AL - (&
EFRANBITMSHESE2EE@WERN
Ha a9y sa B B S ARR o 782017
F12A31H ' ZWE(BREEELT W REFEH
D) 7 HN R ER4,9008 T - A M FE
ZHPOREZIREME 2HS WA BIB0EE
5T o

REAMEZRARER AP EZEE MK
ERRERERKAE -

PR EMERERERATERINE -

HEL# HEHR

BF HEHR KT ZMN605F (ABE
ERE)

REWMEZREFESNET

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The fair value of the investment properties at December 31, 2017
was assessed by an independent professional valuation firm.
Valuation was based on income capitalization method which is
based on the capitalization of the net income and reversionary
income potential by adopting appropriate capitalization rates,
which are derived from analysis of sale transactions and valuers’
interpretation of prevailing investor requirements or expectations.
The prevailing market rents adopted in the valuation have
reference to recent lettings, within the subject properties and
other comparable properties. The total fair value of the properties,
including leasehold land and the building portion, was HK$49
million as at December 31, 2017. In the consolidated income
statement, rental income relating to investment properties of
HK$3.3 million was included.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best
use of the properties is their current use.

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line
basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold Land Over the term of the lease
Buildings Over the shorter of the term of the lease or no
more than 50 years.

The net book value of the investment properties is analyzed as
follows:

(K BEBETREN) (In HK$ million) 2017 2016
EEBLINEE Outside Hong Kong, held on lease
10F Z50F M4 of between 10 and 50 years 28 -

REMENAAERRBENBURTIER T
BEmS LREBHNER (THBREHA) R
BEEEVBREEANBETRO D LB RA
BOBRE=F-

126 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

The fair value of the investment properties was based on inputs
that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs), which is categorized as level 3 under the fair value
hierarchy pursuant to HKFRS 7.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

16. &

2017F12A31H
December 31, 2017

16. GOODWILL
(UG EETHBE ) (In HK$ million) 2017 2016
MW1A1H &R12H31H At January 1 and December 31 546 546

BEOCREBEXBMEMHREBOHBIEE
AEEZEERNReELSBM(TCGU]) - &
BREEDHOTWT ¢

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash generating units (“CGU”)
identified according to the location of operation and business
segment. The goodwill analyzed by operating segment is as
follows:

(X B EETAENT) (In HK$ million) 2017 2016
TE kD H Retail and Distribution
— D KEAM @ — The rest of Asia Pacific 5 5
—H R - The Middle East 541 541
546 546
EESNERER: R Impairment test for goodwill

PRMENHEESEERSELSE LA
BADEEIBAEEWEEIENIE R
AglsREX - AJlREemIIRERARE
BEERARAE (FE=E) - ZBAEHZEU
EEEHEZSFUBTEEUNERERESR
E-EEERBEBAPRERERREHMHEE
RTEEIREETESE - PR - LEGEHE -
A EFIHEERB3.5% - SEHBUE 2R
DRE AR BEREGFI0%MHE -
R RBEERE (MBS - FIEA 2
FRATARIR R B11.8% @ HhRIEAFHA 2
AR T B181%E14.7% M E R A K
B e R

BEERER20174F K20165F12A318 (7 &
EESERIEI

AEERTHEEFERENANERBR
EITHRMEST - ARAEERENRAERER
REEMES KT eS| BREMNBESELEEN
FREESRE BB YE S5 - R2017F12 431
B WHREMEEGHSTFHEERETMF.2
BEDE - KA IR R .8l E » & -
ANERBEREA  FRENRE S E S
R E AT e £ o
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The Middle East goodwill has been allocated to a group of CGUs,
which represents the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored
internally. The recoverable amount is determined based on
fair value less costs of disposal calculation (Level 3 hierarchy).
These calculations use post-tax cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period. Management determines the financial budgets of Middle
East based on past performance and its expectations of market
development. The annual sales growth in the forecast period is
estimated to be 3.5%. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using the estimated terminal growth rate of 3.0% per
annum. The pre-tax discount rate used for United Arab Emirates
(“UAE”) is 11.8% while other Middle East Regions use between
183.1% to 14.7% and they reflect specific risks relating to the
current market assessment of risks specific to such assets.

The Directors are of the opinion that there was no impairment of
goodwill as at December 31, 2017 and 2016.

The Group has performed a sensitivity analysis on key
assumptions used for the annual impairment test for goodwill.
A reasonably possible change in key assumptions used in the
impairment test for goodwill would not cause any CGU’s carrying
amount to exceed its respective recoverable amount. As at
December 31, 2017, had Middle East’s forecasted annual sales
growth rate dropped by 1.2 percentage points, or the pre-tax
discount rate increased by 1.8 percentage points, with all changes
taken in isolation, the Middle East’s carrying amount will exceed its
recoverable amount.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A X EKAERLF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201712 A831H
December 31, 2017

17. 88 DAl ER
TXHFIZALATZRAR AT BB -
ELTHARATZERNT -

17. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES

The joint ventures listed below have share capital consisting solely
of ordinary shares, particulars of the unlisted joint ventures are as

128

follows:
ERTRZHAERE
BYREE HEMER
BENREE Place of BERBEAILE  Issued and fully
Name of incorporation Percentage of paid share capital FTEEK
joint venture and operation equity holding or registered capital Principal activities
2017 2016
Giordano Corporation A # K 48.5 485  5,150,000,000% BETERERERA®
Limited* Republic of Korea KRW5,150,000,000 Retail of apparel and accessories
SECEERAT  ER 490 490 200000%7 HEBRDHES
Cheong Yiu Enterprises Hong Kong HK$200,000 Trading of packaging products
Limited*

* BEEECEENE * joint ventures held indirectly
(KB ZEETAENMN) (In HK$ million) 2017 2016
®1A1R At January 1 480 503
FEAG & Share of profit 59 43
BlEE R TIRE Dividends received from joint

ventures (42) (33)
T ER Translation difference 66 (33)
M®12A31H At December 31 563 480

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

B WE B ER LSS
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B3R M aE ()
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2017F12A31H

December 31, 2017
17. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

Summarised financial information for joint ventures

Set out below is the summarised financial information for joint

ventures.

EEEERE® Summarised balance sheet
(A FEETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2017 2016
TE Current
BWE LIRS EELETR Cash and cash equivalents 602 434
HibmEh & E Other current assets 603 576
BB EMRE Total current assets 1,205 1,010
Hithn#am Other current liabilities (115) (95)
TEBREAERE Total current liabilities (115) (95)
B Non-current
BE Assets 76 82
=R Liabilities (6) 9)
BEEFE Net assets 1,160 088
B 2% 5 8% Summarised income statement
(KB EETRENL) (In HK$ million) 2017 2016
g 3% Revenue 1,499 1,463
e ey Depreciation and amortization (30) (29)
# Expense (1,313) (1,323)
BETE R ATER Profit before income taxes 156 111
B R Income taxes (34) (22)
BR P15 B 18 5 M R B 4R & W A Profit after income taxes and total

comprehensive income 122 89

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 %
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201712 A831H
December 31, 2017

17. 8 A A Ex= (&)
M ER SRR
ARARREEBEZMEANBEADHE -

17.

INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)
Reconciliation of summarised financial information

Reconciliation of the summarized financial information presented to
the carrying amount of the interest in the joint ventures.

(A B BT AE ) (In HK$ million) 2017 2016
1R1RBE%EE Opening net assets at January 1 988 1,085
TN JE 35 F Profit for the year 122 89
s, Dividends (86) (68)
MEER Translation difference 136 (68)
12831 B EEE Closing net assets at December 31 1,160 988
EIEEE AR R Share of interest in joint ventures 563 480
EERE 7 EE Operating lease commitments 1,924 258
AEEBFIFBZAERRIZERIEBE S R There are no material contingent liabilities and capital

ERRABBEREREE MZSEERR
AETEERKARBE R EARAE -

AtHEceMEE

AEEZEMEEENARRRKERS
RAal ([REIRIK]) 3.21% 2 # 25(2016:
4.85%) c 2B ERWBILEE - RERHNS
RKBUEET  RASENETBHERZ— -

18.

18.

commitments relating to the Group’s interest in the joint ventures,
and the joint ventures have no contingent liabilities and capital
commitments themselves.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET

Available-for-sale financial asset represented 3.21% interest in
Speedy Global Holdings Limited (“Speedy”) (2016: 4.85%) and is
denomiated in Hong Kong dollars. Speedy is engaged in garment
manufacturing business and is one of the key suppliers of the
Group.

(X BEETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2017 2016

®1A1H At January 1 35 13
BARBEESHEATHEE 2 Fair value change transfer to
TREE KB available-for-sale financial

asset reserve (6) 22

HE Disposals (13) -

M12A31H At December 31 16 35

MR2017F12831H  AIEHEE 2 EMEEZ
DRABEBRBREBEBIMZBREET  2EAS
_,,g&o

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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As at December 31, 2017, the fair value of the available-for-sale
financial asset are determined using its quoted price on the Stock
Exchange, which is categorised as Level 1.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

19. RERRBRANEREEZESHEE

M2008F6H27H  AEBEI L EERHELE
Placita Holdings Limited ([ Placita]) 21.0%%#
o BIEZ W% 0 6,055,440 FRBR AR KA
EEBAHRTI0.0%E BT 2RABEN DL
£6,055,440%Placitaz 85L& ([ME SRR ])
BEAN  REE R TE LR 2 RIGERE -

ZEEREREHHRENEZRARIAE
e - ARECREFREE  MERERZ
BFEFARABLEXGBERRENNMGE -

MR2017F12A3 VB ZE AR R EBEE 2
A Jt 1B B2,8008 % 7L (20164 : 2,8008 /&
L) c RIEBEEFREARERE SREESZA
hEEZHEREHFBRIZSAEMEA -

ZANBEEREATFEREZEMEELR
EEREBEMHFARSR  RERHZRENSE
HERAABEMS ERENEN (T #RE
A) - REBEEEVBREEL 7 AR B
MAB D BERE =L

2017F12A31H
December 31, 2017

19. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS

On June 27, 2008, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose of its 21.0% interest in Placita Holdings
Limited (“Placita”). As part of the agreement, 6,055,440
ordinary shares representing the Group’s remaining 30.0%
of the total issued share capital of Placita were redesignated
into 6,055,440 preference shares of Placita (the “Preference
Shares”). Furthermore, the Group was granted a put option on the
Preference Shares.

The Preference Shares and the related options are measured at
fair value through profit or loss. The fair value has been and will be
re-assessed by an independent professional valuation firm at year
end and the end of each subsequent period.

The fair value of the Preference Shares and the related options is
HK$28 million as at December 31, 2017 (2016: HK$28 million).
Changes in the fair values of financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss are recorded in other income in the consolidated
income statement.

The fair value of the financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss is determined based on discounted cash flow, using inputs
that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs), which is categorised as level 3 under the fair value
hierarchy pursuant to HKFRS 7.

(KB EE TAENMN) (In HK$ million) 2017 2016
M1 A1R &R12H31H At January 1 and December 31 28 28

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201712 A831H
December 31, 2017

20.BEL+HRHEELFENTHIE 20. LEASEHOLD LAND AND RENTAL PREPAYMENTS
HELH He
BAARE BARE
Leasehold land Rental &%
prepayments  prepayments Total
(UG EETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2017 2017 2017 2016
M ATE 2 REFE Net book value at January 1 154 89 243 252
MEZE Translation difference 1 3 4 (1)
NE Additions - & 57 59
AEEZ# Amortization for the year (8) (65) (79) (67)
E- Transfer out (26) - (26) -
R12A31E 2 REFE Net book value at December 31 121 84 205 243
HHLS Current portion (6) (52) (58) (51)
=BEHD Non-current portion 115 32 147 192
21. 178 21. INVENTORIES
(KB EETRENL) (In HK$ million) 2017 2016
BUPK o Finished goods 524 447
GEEEERAERAUREREHEENAFT A The cost of inventories recognized as expense and included
21.691848 7T (20164 : 20.831B/# L) ° in cost of goods sold amounted to HK$2,169 million (2016:

HK$2,083 million).

132 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

22, & I AR R B2 L At BB WK

2017F12A31H
December 31, 2017

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(K EEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2017 2016

FEUAR K Trade receivables 301 274

OB R Less: Provision for impairment (7) (8)

FEUBR FURE Trade receivables, net 204 266
Hi g - BFEsile RBENHIE Other receivables, including

deposits and prepayments 233 278

527 544

AR E B RE MR RREEERRAE
RAZZERAN - AEBELEEBRTET
B0E60REEHI o AR S Ho Al B U 3R 2
REEEEQAERS -

FEWER R HEaERGIAMEMBERNLE S
SEREEE -
(a) BRER D 4T

B4 S RO 3 (AR B 5 ) AR08
HEAZERSFDT :

Trade receivables comprise mainly amounts due from franchisees,
licensees and retail proceeds due from department stores. The
Group normally allows a credit period of 30-60 days. The carrying
amounts of trade and other receivables are stated approximately

at their fair values.

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not

contain impaired assets.

(a) Ageing analysis

As at the balance sheet date, the ageing analysis from the
invoice date of trade receivables (net of allowance for doubtful

debts) is as follows:

(X BE#TREN) (In HK$ million) 2017 2016
0£30H 0-30 days 211 180
31260H 31-60 days 44 50
61290H 61-90 days 20 17
#190H Over 90 days 19 19

294 266

AASEZEED MR REH  8E
EKERY EEFEZEERR

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade
receivables as the Group has a large number of internationally

dispersed customers.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201712 A831H

December 31, 2017

22 EWERF R Hfth FEUWRFR (1)

(a) BR#: 7 47 (48)

R2017F12A31H » @ BB ERE 2
U HR 3k A 4,200& 5 7T (20164F : 4,100
BB mETEERFPERALEER
BRAcek - RIFEI R B D 2R DT

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a)

Ageing analysis (continued)

As at December 31, 2017, trade receivables of HK$42 million
(2016: HK$41 million) were past due but not impaired. These
relate to a number of customers for whom there has been no
recent history of default. Their ageing analysis from the due

T date is as follows:

(KB EETREN) (In HK$ million) 2017 2016

0%&30H 0-30 days 22 21

#30H Over 30 days 20 20
42 41

(b) P& U AR =X A9 IR B
U R R HREEIR - TIABERP A
R BRIFAEEZ /B EEROEEE
o FEUERT - REB R ERERK

FRERBREEZDY (BRETMRERE

(b)

Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment loss in respect of trade receivables is recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied
that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade receivables
directly.

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the

BEED) T year, including both specific and collective loss components,
is as follows:

(K EEBTREN) (In HK$ million) 2017 2016
»1A1H At January 1 8 11
AR R Reversal of provision for

doubtful debts @ 2
AN EE S B] Y (5] JE s BR RRER 19 2 it Receivables written off during

the year as uncollectible - (1)
NG L Provision for the year 1 _
MW12A318 At December 31 7 3

18 51 2 8% B 2 78 Ui B 5 B2 o 3R B B
MEF KEEENGEHR A KEE
D EUERSR - R R R EIRARERE -
AEEYERABRRFEEEAEIRRD o

134 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

The individually impaired receivables relate to customers that
are in financial difficulties and management assesses that
only a portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.
Consequently, specific allowances for doubtful debts were
recognized. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2017F12A31H
December 31, 2017

23. I A 23. SHARE CAPITAL
(U BB TAEN) (In HK$ million) 2017 2016
EE Authorized:
2,000,000,000% 2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
FREESEIZ TBR HK$0.05 each 100 100

ERTERE2EAR :
1,570,630,5180% (20164 : 1,570,952,518/%)
S ESEIz L@k

Issued and fully paid:
1,5670,630,518 ordinary shares
(2016: 1,570,952,518 ordinary
shares) of HK$0.05 each 79 79

RAFER  BRITRAZEHBERET

Details of the movement in the issued share capital during the year
are set out below:

BHEE
Number of shares
2017 2016
FREBESSIL Ordinary shares of
2 E AR HK$0.05 each
W1A1H At January 1 1,570,952,518 1,570,394,518
17150 Ax i Issue of shares upon
[E:EERE8%) exercise of share
options 6,852,000 558,000
AN S S E = o4 Shares repurchased and
cancelled (7,174,000) -
W12 H31H At December 31 1,570,630,518 1,5670,952,518
(a) ZITR® (a) Issue of shares

BARAZBRAEE - ARRINAE
EREBRESE ATEBRERTZ
REA T 31T B EESB Il 2 37 & AR
19 #£6,852,0000% °

ARBETZABEHEBRELARAE
BRARNDESTEYZFE RS

(b) BREER

B E 2 E R AR B B ER A
FEAZEHFEHNFE1558F 1638 °

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F

(b)

During the year, the Company issued 6,852,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.05 each in the capital of the Company
to option-holders who exercised their rights attached to
share options pursuant to the share option schemes of the
Company.

All the new ordinary shares issued by the Company ranked
pari passu with the then existing shares of the Company in all
respects.

Share option information

Summary of the share option schemes and details of the
movement in share options of the Company during the year
are set out on pages 155 to 163.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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201712 A831H
December 31, 2017

23. kA& ()

(c)

(d)

BE KRG

REAR  REAQFRREOEETSREM
—BEE AR ERBXERA X
7,442,000 A E BN BRER
3,200& & L » & H7,174,0008 B B 2
BHEREEEAQRTEBITRAS KX
FRD 2 EEHDR © #2 T #268,000% &
7 B 12 72018F 1 A #E 5 © 7% 268,000
% B 10 A2017F12 A31B AEFMK - 5
BREMRENZEEBEFTARRTZ
ElEmA o MEREFHEBROBEEZR
HORRFAMNEEEZEARERRE -
BERRMMNELZLENFNFCAEEREESR
[BE -  HEFRBERIARRZ LHEHF] -

H2018F1A1BE M A B2 FEE£E
ZMER KRQEEA R FTIE [ &
B -

—BEEQAMBEENRS

MN2017512A31H  — &AL REA
782 &)1,800,000% 78 A% B 19 (20164F -
1,800,000 @A X 10) ©

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

23. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(c)

(d)

Repurchase of shares

During the year, pursuant to the general mandate granted by
the shareholders of the Company to the Board, the Company
repurchased a total of 7,442,000 of its ordinary shares on
the Stock Exchange at a total consideration of HK$32 million,
in which 7,174,000 repurchased shares were cancelled and
the issued share capital of the Company was reduced by
the nominal value of the cancelled shares accordingly. The
remaining 268,000 shares were subsequently cancelled in
January 2018. These 268,000 shares were recognized as
treasury shares at December 31, 2017. The premium paid
and payable on repurchase was charged against the retained
earnings of the Company. An amount equivalent to the
nominal value of the shares cancelled was transferred from
retained earnings to the capital redemption reserve. Further
information to the share repurchase is set out on page 64
under the heading “Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities”.

From January 1, 2018 up to the approval date of this annual
report, the Company did not repurchased its ordinary shares
on the Stock Exchange.

Shares held by a joint venture

As at December 31, 2017, 1,800,000 ordinary shares (2016:
1,800,000 ordinary shares) were held by a joint venture.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2017F12A31H
December 31, 2017

24, ERFEEHI MR 24. MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

B ZE2017F12A31 L v EEREZ B
B2 20 B L (20164 : 1.8218 % L) -
H FPT. Giordano Indonesia ([ Giordano
Indonesial) 161.6 E& 7T (20164 : 1.3(8%
7t) * Giordano Fashions (L.L.C.) ([ Giordano
UAE ) 151,700 &8 7T (2016%F : 1,600 /8
JC) ' MTextile and Ready Garments Co. Ltd.
([ Giordano KSAJ) 152,000 &5 7T (20164 :
2,0008%87T) - EM AR 2 IEIERER I T
EKRe

The total non-controlling interests as at December 31, 2017 is
HK$220 million (2016: HK$182 million), of which HK$160 million
(2016: HK$130 million) is for PT. Giordano Indonesia (“Giordano
Indonesia”), HK$17 million (2016: HK$16 million) is for Giordano
Fashions (L.L.C.) (“Giordano UAE") and HK$20 million (2016:
HK$20 million) is for Textile and Ready Garments Co. Ltd.
(“Giordano KSA”). The non-controlling interests in respect of the
rest of the companies is not material.

EEEERER® Summarised balance sheet
Giordano Giordano Giordano
Indonesia UAE KSA
(UG EETHBENT) (In HK$ million) 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
E Current
BE Assets 238 182 62 62 116 110
Bf&E Liabilities (37) (35) (30) (34) (37) (35)
mEFEERRE Total current net assets 201 147 32 28 79 75
ERE Non-current
B Assets 66 68 25 24 28 26
EREFEELT Total non-current
net assets 66 68 25 24 28 26
FEE Net assets 267 215 57 52 107 101

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F
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201712 A831H
December 31, 2017

24 EXFFEFIMER (F)

24. MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(continued)

SN E S K4 Summarised income statement
Giordano Giordano Giordano
Indonesia UAE KSA
(U B BB T BB ) (In HK$ million) 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
WA Revenue 554 491 242 224 339 311
K FIT 15 %54 BT g8 A1) Profit before income taxes 94 79 26 31 58 47
FriS i Income taxes (24) (20) - - (10) 9)
R PiT 15 4 1 355 R Profit after income
taxes 70 59 26 31 48 38
H 4R 6 Was Other comprehensive
income (1) 5 = - - -
BEEWR Total comprehensive
income 69 64 26 31 48 38
FE 12 )1 R 2 Total comprehensive
IR G W as income allocated to
non-controlling interests 40 38 5 6 12 10
I ) 4 RE 25 Dividends paid to non-
B E controlling interests 10 28 4 9 12 11

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

B B E B ER

n

Gl
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2017F12A31H
December 31, 2017

24 ERIEEHIMRES () 24. MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(continued)
HEREREH Summarised cash flows
Giordano Giordano Giordano
Indonesia UAE KSA
(B EE TAENT) (In HK$ million) 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
REETE 2 Net cash inflow from
HWEMAEER operating activities 58 42 15 57 47 51
REXEBKZ Net cash outflow from
Bemt 558 investing activities (15) (20) (6) (4) (5) (10)
BEHEBE Net cash outflow from
B m L FaR financing activities (17) (55) (21) (46) (42) (36)
RekBe&EE Increase/(decrease)
zEm,/ Crd) in cash and cash
equivalents 26 (83) (12) 7 - 5
M A1RZR S Cash and cash
EReFEET equivalents
at January 1 18 50 35 28 60 55
NS [ RSB v F B Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes - 1 = — - _
M12A31BZ2HBE £ Cash and cash
LHRESEEEF equivalents
at December 31 44 18 23 35 60 60
P BB ARTEBR AR ZEHIHEANESEE - The information above is the amount before inter-company
eliminations.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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201712 A831H
December 31, 2017

5. NRIEEEERNERSBX

THE COMPANY

25. BALANCE SHEET AND EQUITY MOVEMENTS OF

NAEEEER Balance sheet of the Company
M12831H8
As at December 31

(U B BB T BB ) (In HK$ million) 2017 2016
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
M B NERE Property, plant and equipment 6 7
WEB AR R Interest in subsidiaries 817 817
HELMHESENFE Leasehold land and rental

prepayments 103 109
HEEe Rental deposits 1 -
REREEZANEREBZEMEE Financial asset at fair value through

profit or loss 28 28
JFE Ui B /BB A B FRIB Amounts due from subsidiaries 185 181

1,140 1,142

REBEE Current assets
MEL S BN FRIE Leasehold land and rental

prepayments 5 5
JE UK BR X M E At FE Uk 3 Trade and other receivables 5 6
JE U Bt B A Rl 3k I8 Amounts due from subsidiaries 1,323 1,312
Re& MIBTET Cash and bank balances 447 524

1,780 1,847

EEHE Total assets 2,920 2,989
ERRAE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
AR FiE Capital and reserves
& 7 Share capital 79 79
fE Reserves 1,044 1,466
¥R A% B Proposed dividends 314 236
RSB Total equity 1,437 1,781
REBEE Current liabilities
JE 1T BR K % H th B A5 3K Trade and other payables 4 4
JE <} B B8 A R) 5178 Amounts due to subsidiaries 1,478 1,203
FERT TSR Income tax payable 1 1
BE8HE Total liabilities 1,483 1,208
EankBEBESE Total equity and liabilities 2,920 2,989
BERBEE Net current assets 297 639
EEHABRRBEE Total assets less current

liabilities 1,437 1,781
2| 5 REE
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter CHAN Ka Wai
EZE EZE
Director Director

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2017F12A31H
December 31, 2017

25 NREEEEBREELS®E R (&) 25. BALANCE SHEET AND EQUITY MOVEMENTS OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

NEEREBER Equity movements of the Company
Ex B
RE G e
kA #ARR Capital  R{AEE Share  REEN  EEAE
Share Contributed  redemption Share options Retained Total
(HEEATAEN) (In HKS milion) capital surplus reserve  premium  reserve profits equity
#201781A1R At January 1, 2017 79 540 3 920 14 225 1,781
REEET Profit for the year o o c o - 127 127
Y Total comprehensive income = = - = - 127 127
Rl E Transfer among reserves - - = - P 2 -
B3 Share option schemes
-RATEEREMZT 2R - Shares issued upon exercise of share options - - - 2% - - 2%
-EREER - Share option expense - - - - 7 . 7
16ERBRE (WF190) 2016 final dividend (Note 13(b) - - - - - (236) (236)
1TERARE (HF135) 2017 interim dividend (Vote 13(a)) - - - - - (235) (235)
BOREHEBG Shares repurchased and cancelled - - - - - (81) (31)
BOERTH KD Shares repurchased but not yet cancelled - - - - - (1) 1)
- - - % 5 (501) (4n)
R2017E12A31R At December 31, 2017 79 540 3 945 19 (149) 1,437
2016 F 2k BREFTAAT The comparative figures for 2016 are set out as follows:
REEE BE
BE HARH Captl 3B Share  EEAEN  ERES
Share  Contributed ~ redemption Share options Retained Total
(HEEETAENL) (In HK$ milion) capitel surplus reseve  premium reserve profits equity
201651718 At January 1, 2016 79 540 3 918 22 280 1,842
REERH Profit for the year - - - - - 360 360
astls Total comprehensive income - - - - - 360 360
fEEE Transfer among reserves - - - . ] 9 _
BREE Share option schemes
-RTEEREMLTZRG - Shares issued upon exercise of share options - - - 2 - - 2
-BREER - Share option expense - . - _ 1 B} i
15ERAREHF13) 2015 final dividend (Note 13(b) - - - - - (28) (228)
65T ERE (H196) 2016 interim dividend (Note 13(3) - - - - - (196) (196)
- - - 2 8) (415 (421)
R2016%E12A31H At December 31, 2016 79 540 3 920 14 225 1,781
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201712 A831H
December 31, 2017

26. ##E
R2017F12A8318 - AEB 2 REES LT

26. RESERVES

The reserves of the Group as at December 31, 2017 are analyzed

as follows :

(KB EETAENT) (In HK$ million) 2017 2016
AR Contributed surplus 383 383
&N HE O Capital redemption reserve 3 3
% 1 )% 8 Share premium 945 920
BIRERE Share options reserve 19 14
E 5 Exchange reserve 46 (80)
HE MG Other reserves 70 74

AHTECSREERE Available-for-sale financial asset
reserve 7 22
BT Al Retained profits 1,369 1,370
2,842 2,706
BORK BB B (M1 15(a)) Proposed final dividend (Note 13(a)) (314) (236)
GREGE Total reserves 2,528 2,470

AEEZHBABBDIEREEEEAMEEZ
HERREE - MEBEEATIIRIER1995%5H529H
TR et M T - BIE B RIE1981F
NEE (BHER])  BARBA DR FRE -

HifEm < EBHBFRET

(@) RETPEANEBBEZEIZRMBESR +
BAEZMBAB O EERBEES A
RBETEEE (NE) RAAENZSE
MEBARZEARRE -

(b) RIEFRE ML R AP N iR B %
R RBREZAERFEEMEE
o REMRHER A BEEERRER
HEFEAR - MARAER SR E IR -

) REMEEERHRDRED - F B g 2 I
BRABIZEAERHEBES BREHAERE
Sh - RAMED B ZA °

(d BHZLYHEZERMKEE1.27E)
7T (20164 : 1.211887T) - (H7E27)

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

The contributed surplus of the Group represents a credit arising
from a group reorganisation pursuant to a scheme of arrangement
which was completed on May 29, 1995. Under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus is
distributable to the shareholders.

Details of the main items in other reserves are as follows:

(a)

According to the relevant laws and financial regulations,
the statutory reserve funds of the subsidiaries in Mainland
China are used to make up prior years’ losses, if any, and to
increase the capital of the subsidiaries.

In accordance with the Korean Tax Incentive Limitation Law
and Korean Commercial Code, the statutory reserve fund and
other reserves of the joint venture in the Republic of Korea
may only be used to offset a future deficit or be transferred to
capital stock, but not for cash dividends.

According to the UAE Commercial Companies Law, the
statutory reserve fund of the subsidiary in the UAE is not
available for distribution except as provided in the Federal
Law.

Put option financial liabilities recognized of HK$127 million
(2016: HK$121 million). (Note 27)
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27. RHER LA E

R2012%F - K& [E 5t mGiordano UAER
Giordano KSAZ JE¥ZE RS MG 3R IR L 5200 B4 -
DHEEHERRERAZHRTERETAER
FIEENPTKaEMERBEN1.02EE T -
2 5% RO B A PR 72N £ [ 52 AKX U BB Giordano
UAE K Giordano KSAZ i% {734 1 BE 5 Al 17
- mMEEIBAN - ZEUBEEVISER
AREER  AEFEDSENRS - HER
HEIERBUELERINARBEE -

M20154F + ZN & B 3t [AIGiordano Fashions
W.L.L. ([ Giordano KW ]) & GIO Fashions
W.L.L. ([Giordano QA ) Z FE4Z AR R % H R
JHERRE U ENARER TN E TASEME
HH RSB AR B EL1,9008 8 T © %
5 3R OM HR A 7 £ [ 52 A U BE Gilordano KW
X Giordano QAZ B3 F & BERFAI{T(E +
BEmIHAN 2SYBAGNIIREAR
BRR AHFTERSENRS - RERLH
BEENELTERI AR EE -

MR20174F - A& B 5t AGiordano Middle East
FZE ([ Giordano MEF |) 2z JE#Ei% B 3 % H
AohEAKE - LA H EGiordano MEF 2%z T
AEBETEANEY A E R A E4600
EBT ZELRLBEAEAEE TR TEE
Giordano MEFZ I3 F & BERFRI77fF - B
IO ZEUBKEEVSEEARE
R AAFHEE @ EMIRE o KRG HE
BENETFERY AR EE -

ZEOREREAAEERBEMBBRBESIR
RENEZRENTHER A ERETS LA
SHER(THEREBA)  REFEVKE
A7 AR ENERABIBERE=R -
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27. PUT OPTION LIABILITIES

In 2012, the Group recognized financial liabilities of approximately
HK$102 million in relation to the financial liabilities arising from
the put option granted to the non-controlling shareholders of
Giordano UAE and Giordano KSA to sell their remaining interests
in these companies to the Group. Such put option is exercisable
any time after 3 years from completion of the Group’s acquisition
of the shares in Giordano UAE and Giordano KSA and has no
expiry date. Such financial liabilities are initially recognized at their
fair value, which is the present value of the estimated redemption
amount. The put option liabilities are denominated in U.S. dollars
and are classified under current labilities.

In 2015, the Group recognized financial liabilities of approximately
HK$19 million in relation to the financial liabilities arising from
the put option granted to the non-controlling shareholders of
Giordano Fashions W.L.L. (“Giordano KW”) and GIO Fashions
W.L.L. (“Giordano QA”) to sell their remaining interests in these
companies to the Group. Such put option is exercisable any time
after 3 years from completion of the Group’s acquisition of the
shares in Giordano KW and Giordano QA and has no expiry date.
Such financial liabilities are initially recognized at their fair value,
which is the present value of the estimated redemption amount.
The put option liabilities are denominated in U.S. dollars and are
classified under current liabilities.

In 2017, the Group recognized financial liabilities of approximately
HK$6 million in relation to the financial liabilities arising from the
put option granted to the non-controlling shareholder of Giordano
Middle East FZE (“Giordano MEF”) to sell 2% interests in Giordano
MEF to the Group. Such put option is exercisable any time after 3
years from the completion of the Group’s disposal of the shares
in Giordano MEF and has no expiry date. Such financial liabilities
are initially recognized at their fair value, which is the present value
of the estimated redemption amount. The put option liabilities are
denominated in U.S. dollars and are classified under non-current
liabilities.

The fair value of the put option liabilities is determined based
on discounted cash flows, using inputs that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable inputs), which is
categorised as level 3 under the fair value hierarchy pursuant to
HKFRS 7.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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28. ELEBEA B
ELHEEBERBAEsR O ZERE
PN AR 2 B SR T 1E 2 BURHE -

AEERFAZECHEEERBBEZED
(ER—#BE 2 AR AT 0T -

EEB R (EE) AfF

28. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Deferred tax liabilities is calculated in full on temporary differences
under the liability method at the rates applicable in the respective
jurisdictions.

The movement in the Group’s deferred tax assets and liabilities
(prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction)
during the year is as follows:

Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities

MEGHE  RDRZ
Accelerated  RFEA

accounting Unremitted i &t
(U BEEBTBEN) (In HK$ million) depreciation profits Others Total
201741 A1A At January 1, 2017 (6) 103 (44) 53
BEEE Translation difference - 13 (1) 12
RABRBEAHE11) Charged to income
statement (Note 11) 1 11 (@) 8
REMEGE NG A Credited to other
comprehensive income - - 3 3
M2017F12A318 At December 31, 2017 (5) 127 (46) 76
7201651 A18 At January 1, 2016 6) 104 (35) 63
BELE Translation difference - (5) (10) (19)
RABERPA M) Credited to income
statement (Note 11) - 4 1 5
20164127318 At December 31, 2016 6) 103 (44) 53

RNEE B K MERIE LT 18 & E8,5008 8 T
(20164 : 7,0008 8 0) T ERMNFIE - E
RERELETIEE E & 14,3008 % 7T (2016
F:4,1008%70) #Br2017F12 A31 B E54F
NEm BRI ETEHBMREENEAR
Al ERHATRIB S B

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

B B E B ER

N

Gl

The Group has unrecognized deferred tax assets of HK$85
million (2016: HK$79 million) arising mainly from tax losses. These
unrecognized deferred tax assets to the extent of HK$43 million
(2016: HK$41 million) will expire within 5 years from December
31, 2017. The remaining portion is mainly related to the losses of
subsidiaries in Australia and Germany which have no expiry date.
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28. EEHRBRE ()
REERF AT  BETEHERSRE—
BYBCM R M IE R R A 2 ] SR IE B R B
HARES - THIS WA B EBE - HE
BrEERMERNTE -

28.

2017F12A31H
December 31, 2017

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the
same fiscal authority. The following amounts, determined after
appropriate offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance
sheet.

(X BEEETAEENT) (In HK$ million) 2017 2016
IR IEE E Deferred tax assets (51) (50)
IR IE B (& Deferred tax liabilities 127 103
76 53
2. ETERF R EENF 29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

(X B EEFETAENT) (In HK$ million) 2017 2016
JE 1~ BR R Trade payables 90 205

EtEARRENER Other payables and accrued
expense 394 333
484 538

AT BENRRZRE DT

The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows:

(X BEEETAEEN) (In HK$ million) 2017 2016
0E30H 0-30 days 66 185
31E60H 31-60 days 6 9
61£290H 61-90 days 5 4
#90H Over 90 days 13 7

920 205

RNER  EENREENERZREE
BEANRERSE -
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The carrying amounts of trade payables, other payables and
accrued expense are stated approximately at their fair values.
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30. B4 RBTEE 30. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
(UG EETHBE ) (In HK$ million) 2017 2016
HeMReEE Cash and cash equivalents 1,150 1,156
T3k B #E =18 A A 5|8 Bank deposits with maturity over
ZIRITEHFR three months from date of
deposits 315 237
1,465 1,393

REBM 2R e RIRITETBIESE4.09E
BIT (20165 : 321BB L) 2 ARBIH S KX
BITEETE -

AEETEHFRNERMNESEF2.0% (2016
Fi17%)  FREZEFFERZFHIHHARS
ZR=EA -

Included in the cash and bank balances of the Group were cash
and bank balances totaling HK$409 million (2016: HK$321 million)
denominated in Renminbi.

The effective interest rate on bank deposits of the Group was
2.0% (2016: 1.7%) per annum; these deposits have an average
maturity of more than 3 months as at year end.

31. B TEX 31. BANK LOANS
(UG EETHBEN) (In HK$ million) 2017 2016
MEIRITE R - |IEE - B ILEHE Short-term bank loans, unsecured,
HK dollars denominated 298 298

MR2017F12A31H  AEBZRITERNE
BRI R E1.1% (20164F 1 1.1%) - ZHRTE
FR—FERNEE -

RHRTERNREEEERAAEMREE -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

The effective interest rate of the Group’s short-term bank loans as
at December 31, 2017 was 1.1% (2016: 1.1%); these bank loans
are repayable within one year.

The carrying amounts of short-term bank loans are approximately
at their fair values.
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F20174 - 4 % @ K BGIOR Fashion
Company Limited ([ GF ) 100%## & °

TERBEHUINCGFHREMERE A HEA
MEEMBEFENAAE:-

2017F12A31H
December 31, 2017

32. BUSINESS COMBINATION

In 2017, the Group acquired 100% economic interests in GIOR
Fashion Company Limited (“GF”).

The following table summarises the consideration paid for GF and
the fair value of net assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the
acquisition date.

(KB EFTHENMN) (In HK$ million)
RELE Total consideration 9
WEER ZEEFE: Net assets acquired:
P - IR KRR Property, plant and equipment 5
FE Inventories 9
JE LS BR 50 % L At B R Trade and other receivables 7
Re LIB1THH Cash and bank balances 5
JE 1~ AR 3R B HL L JE 1 5K Trade and other payables (13)
13
EEUWEE 2 Wk (K it6) Gain on bargain purchase (Note 6) (4)
9
WiE—HEHNEBARMSIBZREEREFEIN Analysis of the net cash outflow in repect of
the acquisition of a subsidiary:
ERRENKE Cash consideration paid 9)
FritE 2 iR1T T RIR & Bank balances and cash acquired 5
WE—-EHBARIMI B sESRE EE 22 Analysis of the net cash outflow from acquisition of
a subsidiary (4)

WHEFTE XN BRAN128 B Tit AZ20174F
12A31AAGHABRFNITRER -

ZEREREANESTHTETHREERK
REEMEBEEEFEZIER

B U BB #E - GFE [Bf4,0008 7 JT $4 & 58 &600
EBBTTHEA -

B EGFE2017F1A1IB R A AKR &
2017612 A1 HW A A B R M HE B K12
h06,6008 7 It & 4 )38 h01,0008 B 7T ©
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Acquisition-related costs approximately HK$120,000 have been
charged to administrative expenses in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended December 31, 2017.

The gain on bargain purchase was the variance between the
consideration and the net asset value acquired after commercial
negotiation with the vendor.

GF contributed HK$40 million sales and HK$6 million profit since
acquisition.

Had GF been consolidated from January 1, 2017, the consolidated
income statement for the year ended December 31, 2017 would
show an increase in sales of HK$66 million and profit of HK$10
million.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A X EKAERLF
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33. & IE

REHEZAE

(a) M2017F12831H  AEERTEE
HORRAERERZAIRKREBEZ
KERENTEENHEEBRNOT

33. COMMITMENTS

Commitments under operating leases

(a)

As at December 31, 2017, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease charges payable under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of retail shops, office premises

and warehouses as set out below:

(X B EETREN) (In HK$ million) 2017 2016

1F R Within one year 632 724
1F B ESFNA After one year but within five

years 652 794

5F LA E Over five years 19 26

1,303 1,544

KREMEANBETEEREGN He
EAmEREEE - ETATZEER
EHEIRERERERSHINHER
FEZEE (ABRSE/E) - LalRE
DREEREHESE -

(o) F20175E12A310 » KEE KT EEH
M ARZAARAREE 2 ELHE
MREEREEWRANT

The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and
renewal rights. The operating lease rentals of certain outlets
are based on the higher of a minimum guaranteed rental or a
sales level based rental. The minimum guaranteed rental has

been used to arrive at the above commitments.

As at December 31, 2017, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease income receivable under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of retail shops and office premises

as set out below:

(U GEE TTAENN) (In HK$ million) 2017 2016
1F R Within one year 15 21
1612 185F A After one year but within five
years 38 9
59 A+ Over five years 9 -
62 30
34. EAREIE 34. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

R20174 201654 12A31H » KEBWESE
AEARHEDERE EARETEEZE
RAEHE o

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Group had no material
capital commitments in respect of leasehold improvements,
furniture and fixtures.
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. RETHELE2EEYHER 35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
TRHFLAEBRERMELZINEAEEE - The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
BIERSMIERSEY MEGTHMELD from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
BEDNABSRENY  KAKBRSRER changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
REEBGAVBRERTOPEERETHIME which cash flow were, or future cash flows will be classified in
EHIRERE o the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows from financing
activities.
mEXKEzEE

Liabilities from
financing activities

BRUINR-—FZ2ER

Borrowing due

(UG EETHBE ) (In HK$ million) within 1 year
M2016F1 418 2 # &% Net debt as at January 1, 2016 -
REeneE Cash flows (298)
2016512 A31H 2 FEH Net debt as at December 31, 2016 (298)
ReRE Cash flows -
2017612 4318 2 F&H Net debt as at December 31, 2017 (298)

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 149
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6. EXEBRALRS
BEMALRTERERMEENS —F &
EEHMBREERREHS - FTHEX
WENZAT - HRAZHARHAZMAS

WENZATNEREWEAL -

(a) BEBALTZXE
REAFER  ETHWEBRBR—KRHA
FEBRBREAEARETLEERERK
RRP - BEZEXZHFLAET ¢

36. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,
directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related
if they are subject to common control or common significant
influence.

(a) Transactions with related parties

During the year, certain subsidiaries traded with joint ventures
in the ordinary and usual course of business on normal
commercial terms. Details relating to these transactions are

as follows:
(K EEE TAEN) (In HK$ million) 2017 2016
HETFT—HEERT Sales to a joint venture 141 124
KEBEGERT Purchases from joint ventures 2 2
BHERAE —HEeE AR Royalty income from a joint
venture 31 29

(b) EEREEE A L 248k
A12 4318 FE B A 508 -

(b) Balances with related parties

Amounts due from these related parties at December 31 are:

(LB BB T RE) (In HK$ million) 2017 2016
W& & NFIFIE Amounts due from joint

ventures 6 5

R2017412/831H @ i fE U BE B A +
FRIE T 7 Bl 5o bk 75 JE U BR 71 &2 4t fE Uk
R - BRESH AR E « B RER

ZREEE -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

As at December 31, 2017, the above amounts due from
related parties are reflected in trade and other receivables.
The receivables are unsecured in nature, bear no interest and
are repayable on demand.
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6. EXRBEHBALTRE (8) 36. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(c) EEEEE KN (c) Key management compensation
FMEHNTEEHYREATEESERE  § Executive Directors are considered as key management and
FHNMEE R E O B R W E10R B their emoluments have been disclosed in Note 10 to the
B -HUWTEZEHEERMOMESOT : consolidated financial statements. The emoluments payable

to other key management are as follows:

(LB F o BE) (In HK$’000) 2017 2016
EAFH & M EMmlkz= Basic salaries and
Other Benefit 9,519 4,720
RIREFHEIH R Contribution to pension
schemes 116 34
B IS IEAL Discretionary bonuses 6,416 1,920
16,051 6,674
37.XAREE 37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
R20174F K%2016F 128318 » REE W EE As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Group did not have any
AIERKABE - significant contingent liabilities.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 151
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38. T EHE A T 38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
RARR2017F12A31B Z EZ B QA A U0 The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries of the Company
N as at December 31, 2017:
BRIR2EAR
R/ EmER/
BER®Z HEER
ERES% Issued and fully paid
Bt Effective share capital/
WEARERE Place of percentage of registered capital/ IEER/KEHE
Name of subsidiary incorporation equity holding quota capital Principal activities/place of operation
2017 2016
ENBERAA % 100 100 3,000,000 T BETERABRERERAL/ BB
Bluestar Exchange Limited* Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 Retail and distribution of
apparel and accessories/Hong Kong
Fast Jean Limited" & 100 100 1,000,000%7C BeTERERERARL/AE
Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 Retail of apparel and accessories/Taiwan
GIO Fashions W.L.L.* ~EB 40 40 200000FERETR METERERERAR/F4R
State of Qatar QAR200,000 Retail of apparel and accessories/State of Qatar
GIOR Fashion Company Limited* ~ #i#& 60 - 260000000008 BETERERERAR/ B
Vietnam VND26,000,000,000 Retail of apparel and accessories/Vietnam
Giordano (Australia) Pty. Limited* & 92.8 92.8 700,000 7T BLTERELEBRAR/ AN
Australia AUD700,000 Retail of apparel and accessories/Australia
Giordano Fashions 0E 50.9 509 100,000,000 &L  BETERHHRERERAR/HE
(Indlia) Private Limited* India INR100,000,000 Retail and distribution of
apparel and accessories/India
Giordano Fashions L.L.C.* k3 49 49 3000000MEEEAE LETERERERAL/
UAE AED3,000,000 E
Retail of apparel and accessories/UAE
Giordano Fashions Company W.LL* Rlgi# 40 40 300,000REEEME RETEREREEAR/MEE
State of Kuwait KWD300,000 Retail of apparel and accessories/State of
Kuwait
ERARERAE Bk 100 100 5,000,000 7T BETERAHRERERAR/BH
Giordano Limited* Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 Retail and distribution of
apparel and accessories/Hong Kong
Giordano (M) Sdn. Bhd. BRAED 100 100 5000005KAESE METEREREBAR/ERAL
Malaysia RM500,000 Retail of apparel and accessories/Malaysia
ERRRABRA A 4 100 100 50,000 F9 % BeTERRRERAL/RM
Giordano (Macau) Limited* Macau MOP50,000 Retail of apparel and accessories/Macau

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BRTR2EAR
R/ dmER/
BERBZ HEEX
ERENE Issued and fully paid
K% Effective share capital/
WEARER Place of percentage of registered capital/ IEEY/LEHE
Name of subsidiary incorporation equity holding quota capital Principal activities/place of operation
2017 2016
Giordano Middle East FZE* P A1 98 100 1,000,000ME E A LEHHRERERBR/
Dubai — UAE AED1,000,000 PR -1 7
Distribution of apparel and accessories/
Dubai - UAE
Giordano Originals Eipbd 100 100 1,900,002%7 M3 T BETERBSREREBAR/ MK
(Singapore) Private Limited Singapore SGD1,900,002 Retailing and trading of apparel and
accessories/Singapore
Giordano Vietnam Limited" % 60 60 802,000% T RERR/B%
Hong Kong USD802,000 Investment holding/Hong Kong
Giordano (Cambodia) REE 80 80 4000000R BEER  LLTEREREEAR/FHE
Enterprises Limited* Cambodia KHR4,000,000 Retail of apparel and accessories/Cambodia
PT. Giordano Indonesia* e 40 40 2,500,00000060BE  KETERE KAAm
Indonesia IDR2,500,000,000 rEBBER/DR
Retail of apparel, accessories and related
products/Indonesia
R REEK hEARENE 100 100 210,100,000\ R REBR RER
BRAF People’s Republic of China RMB210,100,000 HEREREHERAR,/TAKXE
Shenzhen Tiger Investment holding, manufacturing and
Garment Ltd.* retailing of apparel and accessories/
Mainland China
REACEERATF e 100 100 60,001,000 REAR KKEHR
Tiger Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$60,001,000 REEERS,/ PEAE

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 %

Investment holding, trading of garment products
and provision of management services/
Mainland China
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38. T EME A (F)

38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

RELES i
R/ dmER/
BERBZ HEEX
ERESE Issued and fully paid
gk Effective share capital/
WEARER Place of percentage of registered capital/ IEEY/LEHE
Name of subsidiary incorporation equity holding quota capital Principal activities/place of operation
2017 2016
Textile and Ready PRWARE 75 75 27,0000000KB%  HETEREREBAR/
Garments Co. Ltd * Kingdom of Saudi Arabia SR27,000,000 PREEAETE
Retail of apparel and accessories/Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia
Walton International Ltd.* Gy 100 100 10257t REEEERE/ BE
Cayman Islands UsD102 Licensing of trademarks/Hong Kong
HaE - Notes:

FRAR AN EBERE
FRERAZMEBEAT

30. iz 2L E
A GMARCHR2018F3ASHEZS=2 L E -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

# This is a wholly foreign owned enterprise
*  Subsidiaries held indirectly

39. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved by the Board on March 8,

2018.
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SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On June 9, 2011, the Company terminated its share option scheme
adopted on January 24, 2002 (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) and
adopted a new share option scheme (as amended on May 22, 2012)
(the “2011 Share Option Scheme”) on the same date. No options may
be and have been granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme after
the expiry date. Under the 2011 Share Option Scheme, the Directors
may, at their discretion, grant to any eligible participants (as defined
below) share options to subscribe for the Company’s shares, subject
to the terms and conditions stipulated therein. Notwithstanding the
expiry of the 2002 Share Option Scheme, the share options which had
been granted during the life of the scheme shall continue to be valid
and exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue and in all other
respects its provisions shall remain in full force and effect.

A summary of the principal terms of the 2002 Share Option Scheme
and 2011 Share Option Scheme is as follows:

(1) Purpose

As incentives or rewards for the contribution or potential
contribution to the Group from the selected eligible participants.

(2) Eligible participants
(i) (a)

any Director or proposed Director (whether executive or
non-executive, including any independent non-executive
Director), employee or proposed employee (whether full

time or part time) of, or
(b) any individual for the time being seconded to work for;

any member of the Group or any controlling shareholder
or any company controlled by a controlling shareholder;
or

(i) any holder of any securities issued by any member of the
Group or any controlling shareholder or any company
controlled by a controlling shareholder; or
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(i) any member of the Group or any controlling shareholder or a
company controlled by a controlling shareholder;
(@) any business or joint venture partner, franchisee,
contractor, agent or representative of,

(b) any person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support or any advisory,
consultancy, professional or other services to,

(c) any supplier of goods or services to,
(d) any customer of, or
(e) any landlord or tenant (including any sub-tenant) of;

and, for the purposes of the 2002 Share Option Scheme and 2011
Share Option Scheme, shall include any company controlled by
one or more persons belonging to any of the above classes of
eligible participants.

Total number of shares available for issue under the
schemes

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all share options to be granted under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme and 2011 Share Option Scheme must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares in issue on the respective dates of
approval of each of the schemes. The 10% limit may be refreshed
with the approval of the Company’s shareholders. Following the
expiry of the 2002 Share Option Scheme, no further share options
can be granted thereunder.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding share options granted and yet to be
exercised under the 2012 Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of
the total number of shares in issue from time to time.

As at March 8, 2018, the total number of shares available for
issue under the 2011 Share Option Scheme is 77,327,451
shares (representing approximately 4.92% of the shares in issue)
and a total of 5,544,000 and 163,440,000 shares (representing
approximately 0.35% and 10.41%, respectively, of the shares in
issue) may be issued upon exercise of all options which had been
granted and yet to be exercised under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme and 2011 Share Option Scheme respectively.
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Maximum entitlement of each eligible participants

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the share options granted or to be granted to each
participant (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
Company’s shares in issue unless the same is approved by the
Company’s shareholders in general meeting.

In addition, any share options to a substantial shareholder and/or
an independent non-executive Director of the Company or any of
their respective associates, and where the total number of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted or to
be granted to such person in any 12-month period exceed 0.1%
of the Company’s shares in issue and with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the shares on the date of grant) in excess
of HK$5 million, are subject to the Company’s shareholders’
approval in general meeting.

Time of exercise of option

An option may be exercised under the terms of the 2002 Share
Option Scheme and 2011 Share Option Scheme at any time
during a period commencing on such date on or after the date
on which the option is granted as the Board may determine in
granting the option and expiring at the close of business on such
date as the directors may determine in granting the option but in
any event shall not exceed 10 years from the date of grant.

The minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised

As determined by the Board upon the grant of an option.

Acceptance of offers

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within 30 days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount
payable on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is
HK$1.00.
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C)

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price is determined by the Board which shall be at
least the highest of:

(i)  the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date when an option is offered;

(i)  the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date on which an option is offered;
and

(i) the nominal amount of a Share.

The remaining life of the schemes

The 2002 Share Option Scheme was terminated on June 9, 2011.
No further options shall thereafter be offered under the 2002 Share
Option Scheme but the options which had been granted during its
life shall continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with
their terms of issue and in all other respects the provisions of the
2002 Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect.

The 2011 Share Option Scheme shall be valid for a period of 10
years from the date of adoption until June 8, 2021.
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MOVEMENT OF SHARE OPTIONS

Movements of share options under the 2002 Share Option Scheme and
2011 Share Option Scheme during the year ended December 31, 2017

are set out below:

2002 IR RE 5T &
2002 Share Option Scheme
RER RER RER RER R
20175 R i 3 i 20178 FE
1A1H Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled 12A31A Exercise
LERSTE As at during during during during As at price RHAH TEHR
Eligible person 11172017 the year the year the year theyear  12/31/2017 pershare  Date of grant Exercisable period
AT (/B/E) (F/B/E)
HKS  (MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)
#Eo0ES 98,000 - 66,000° 32,000 - - 3.89 11/27/2007  11/27/2008 - 11/26/2017
Continuous 120,000 - 38,000" 82,000 - - 3.896 1/27/2007  11/27/2009 - 11/26/2017
Contract 158,000 - 90,000" 68,000 - - 3.896 1/27/2007  11/27/2010 - 11/26/2017
Employees 996,000 - 124,000° - - 872,000 3.520 07/30/2008  10/01/2008 - 09/30/2018
676,000 - - - - 676,000 3.840 07/30/2008  10/01/2008 - 09/30/2018
676,000 - 80,000° - - 596,000 4,160 07/30/2008  10/01/2008 - 09/30/2018
700,000 - - - - 700,000 3.340 07/07/2010  03/22/2012 - 06/30/2020
3,700,000 - 1,000,000° - - 2,700,000 3.340 07/07/2010  03/01/2013 - 06/30/2020
ait
Total 7,124,000 - 1,398,000 182,000 - 5,544,000
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BBRE2ST (B) MOVEMENT OF SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
2011 BB IR FET &
2011 Share Option Scheme
RER RER RER RER =
20175 Rit g % 2 R2017% kR
1B1A Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled 12A31H Exercise
RERSTE As at during during during during As at price ReBH TSR
Eligible person 1112017 the year the year the year theyear  12/31/2017 per share  Date of grant Exercisable period
AT (B/6/) (H/B/E)
HK$  (MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)
g3
Directors
(3 400,000 - - - - 400,000 5.200 10/07/2011 08/22/2012 - 09/30/2021
CHAN Ka Wai 600,000 - - - - 600,000 5.200 10/07/2011 08/01/2013 - 09/30/2021
1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 5.200 10/07/2011 02/28/2014 - 09/30/2021
100,000 - - - - 100,000 5.000 03/24/2014  03/04/2015 - 03/23/2024
150,000 - - - - 150,000 5.000 03/24/2014  03/04/2016 - 03/23/2024
200,000 - - - - 200,000 5.000 03/24/2014  03/10/2017 - 03/23/2024
250,000 - - - - 250,000 5.000 03/24/2014  JifiENote 1 - 03/23/2024
300,000 - - - - 300,000 5.000 03/24/2014  HiziNote 3 - 03/23/2024
- 1,666,000 300,000¢ - - 1,366,000 4180 01/06/2017  08/11/2017 - 12/31/2025
- 1,666,000 - - - 1,666,000 4,180 01/06/2017  Bif#Note 1 - 12/31/2025
- 1,668,000 - - - 1,668,000 4,180 01/06/2017  Bif#Note 2 - 12/31/2025
3,000,000 5,000,000 300,000 - - 7,700,000
E2X 200,000 - - - - 200,000 5.000 08/24/2014  03/04/2015 - 03/23/2024
Mark Alan LOYND 300,000¢ - - - - 300,000 5.000 03/24/2014  03/04/2016 - 03/23/2024
400,000 - - - - 400,000 5.000 03/24/2014  03/10/2017 - 03/23/2024
500,000¢ - - - - 500,000 5.000 03/24/2014  Bif3Note 1 - 03/23/2024
600,000 - - - - 600,000 5.000 03/24/2014  MiiziNote 3 - 03/23/2024
150,000 - 150,000 - - - 3792 04/09/2015  03/04/2016 - 03/31/2025
150,000 - 86,000* - - 64,000 3792 04/09/2015  03/10/2017 - 03/31/2025
- 1,332,000 - - - 1,382,000 4180 01/06/2017  08/11/2017 - 12/31/2025
- 1,332,000 - - - 1,382,000 4,180 01/06/2017  Bif&Note 1 - 12/31/2025
- 1,336,000 - - - 1,336,000 4,180 01/06/2017  MiziNote 2 - 12/31/2025
2,300,000 4,000,000 236,000 - - 6,064,000
160 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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2011 Share Option Scheme (continued)

SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

MOVEMENT OF SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

RER RER RER RER &h

R2017E bl it 3 B R2017E Gl

1B1A Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled 12A318 Exercise
RERSTE As at during during during during As at price ReBH TSR
Eligible person 1112017 the year the year the year theyear  12/31/2017 per share  Date of grant Exercisable period
AT (H/6/E) (F/A/%)
HKS  (MM/DDIYYYY) (MM/DDIYYYY)
BEANES 2,600,000 - - - - 2,600,000 5.200 10/07/2011  03/22/2012 - 09/30/2021
Continuous 4,930,000 - - 190,000 - 4,740,000 5.200 10/07/2011 08/01/2013 - 09/30/2021
Contract 12,500,000 - - 650,000 - 11,850,000 5.200 10/07/2011  02/28/2014 - 09/30/2021
Employees 432,000 - - 10,000 - 422,000 5.380 06/12/2012  03/01/2013 - 12/31/2021
2,720,000+ - - - - 2,720,000 7.650 04/110/2013  02/28/2014 - 03/31/2022
4,544,000 - - 204,000 - 4,340,000 5.000 03/24/2014  03/04/2015 - 03/23/2024
6,784,000 - - 306,000 - 6,478,000 5.000 03/24/2014  03/04/2016 - 03/23/2024
9,116,000 - - 410,000 - 8,706,000 5.000 03/24/2014  03/10/2017 - 03/23/2024
11,448,000 - - 514,000 10,934,000 5.000 03/24/2014  [ifiNote 1 - 03/23/2024
13,688,000 - - 616,000 13,072,000 5.000 03/24/2014  [itiNote 3 - 03/23/2024
6,196,000 - 1,226,000 64,000 - 4,906,000 3792 04/09/2015  03/04/2016 - 03/31/2025
6,730,000 - 1,236,000 64,000 16,000 5,414,000 3792 04/09/2015  03/10/2017 - 03/31/2025
500,000 - - - - 500,000 4,090 07/10/2015  03/04/2016 - 06/30/2025
500,000 - - - - 500,000 4,090 01/10/2015  03/10/2017 - 06/30/2025
1,164,000+ - - - - 1,164,000 4.340 09/19/2016  03/10/2017 - 06/30/2026
1,168,000+ - - - - 1,168,000 4.340 09/19/2016  HifiNote 1 - 06/30/2026
- 17,744,000 2,456,000 116,000 208,000 14,964,000 4180 01/06/2017  08/11/2017 - 12/31/2025
- 17,744,000 - - 1,146,000 16,598,000 4,180 01/06/22017  MirzENote 1 - 12/31/2025
- 19,142,000 - - 1,248,000 17,894,000 4,180 01/06/2017  BifiNote 2 - 12/31/2025
- 2,956,000 - 66,000 - 2,890,000 4,050 06/09/2017  08/11/2017 - 12/31/2025
- 2,956,000 - - 66,000 2,890,000 4,050 06/09/2017  MiziNote 1-12/31/2025
- 2,988,000 - - 68,000 2,920,000 4,050 06/09/2017  HifiNote 2 - 12/31/2025

85,020,000 63,530,000 4,918,000 2,080,000 3,882,000 137,670,000
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BREz2S2® (FE)

2011 BB IR FEST & (&)
2011 Share Option Scheme (continued)

MOVEMENT OF SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

RER RER RER RER &R
#0117 Ri 1% X% i Ro017% %@
1A1H Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled 12A31H Exercise
LERSTE As at during during during during As at price ReAH TSR
Eligible person 1112017 the year the year the year theyear  12/31/2017 per share  Date of grant Exercisable period
AT (/6/E) (F/8/E)
HKS ~ (MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)
it 340,000 - - - - 340,000 5.200 10/07/2011  08/22/2012 - 09/30/2021
Others 720,000 - - - - 720,000 5.200 10/07/2011  03/01/2013 - 09/30/2021
3,000,000 - - - - 3,000,000 5.200 100072011 02/28/2014 - 09/30/2021
510,000 - - - - 510,000 5,000 08/24/2014  03/04/2015 - 03/23/2024
768,000 - - - - 758,000 5,000 08/24/2014  03/04/2016 - 03/23/2024
1,020,000 - - - - 1,020,000 5.000 08/24/2014  03/10/2017 - 03/23/2024
1,282,000 - - - - 1,282,000 5.000 08/24/2014 i #Note 1 - 03/23/2024
1,530,000 - - - - 1,530,000 5.000 08/24/2014 Bii#ENote 3 - 03/23/2024
- 1,276,000 - - 332,000 944,000 4180 01/06/2017  08/11/2017 - 12/31/2025
- 1,276,000 - - 332,000 944,000 4,180 01/06/2017 BiEENote 1 - 12/31/2025
- 1,298,000 - - 336,000 962,000 4,180 01/06/2017 BiFENote 2 - 12/31/2025
9,160,000 3,850,000 - - 1,000,000 12,010,000
ait
Total 99,480,000 76,380,000 5,454,000 2,080,000 4,882,000 163,444,000
Htat - Notes:
1 2017F 2 FEBENMEH 1 the day after 2017 final results announcement
2 2018F PRI ENMEZH 2 the day after 2018 interim results announcement
3 2018 F 2 F £ E T H 3 the day after 2018 final results announcement
#at - Remarks:
L REEZFBREROFAY ROKTESZKLI5E & At the date immediately before these options were granted, the closing price per
JT e share was HK$4.15.
A REFZZHERERAFTALS  RGKTEBEZKRL11E 4 At the date immediately before these options were granted, the closing price per
JT ° share was HK$4.11.
0 REEBRESG7T@E AR RGINETFEHKTEZE o The weighted average closing price per shares immediately before the respective
4.41)ET - exercise date of the options was HK$4.41.
¢ REERBRESETTEARHZREMEFIRTESE %  The weighted average closing price per shares immediately before the respective
f84.62/8 T ° exercise date of the options was HK$4.62
A AREENIEER017TFIAIHELZ(FREE  ZHHH  + 2,000,000 options (granted on March 24, 2014) and 300,000 options (granted on
RGEEZS A IES ) H T.22,000,00017 58 B # (R20144F3 April 9, 2015) previously classified under “Continuous Contract Employees” were re-
H24H #2H41) k&300,00017 i & # (R2015F4/9H 1% 1) classified under “Directors” as a result of the appointment of Mark Alan LOYND as
EEHAEREE/ET - Director on March 9, 2017.
M # RIshwar Bhagwandas CHUGANISE £ R2017F3H9H  + 1,200,000 options (granted on April 10, 2013) and 566,000 options (granted on
HAEREE BREEDRIFEEHES ZHAERIE September 19, 2016) previously classified under “Directors” were re-classified
% /I T.21,200,00017 5 BR # (1R2013%F4 7 10H #4) & under “Continuous Contract Employees” as a result of the resignation of Ishwar
566,00017 8 R # (R20169F 9.4 19H #Z 1) B E % 77 F R Bhagwandas CHUGANI as Director on March 9, 2017 and he remains as employee of
[(BESHIES BT - the Group immediately thereafter.
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VALUATION OF SHARE OPTIONS

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Board granted options
to certain eligible participants (the “Grantees”) on January 6, 2017 and
June 9, 2017 which entitle the Grantees to subscribe for 67,480,000
shares and 8,900,000 shares at an exercise price of HK$4.18 per
share and HK$4.05 per share, respectively. The estimated fair values
of share options granted on January 6, 2017 and June 9, 2017 were
approximately HK$11 million and HK$2 million, respectively.

The Company has used the Black-Scholes Model for estimating the fair
value of options granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme. The
Black-Scholes Model is one of the commonly used models to estimate
the fair value of an option which can be exercised before the expiry of
the option period. The variables and assumptions used in computing
the fair value of the share options are based on the Directors’ best
estimate. The value of an option varies with different variables of certain
subjective assumptions. The inputs into the model are as follows:

B 20171H6H 201756 A9H
Date of Grant January 6, 2017 June 9, 2017
BRITEE 4188 7T 40587
Exercise price per share HK$4.18 HK$4.05
BREEE 67,480,000 8,900,000
Number of options

BREZEBRARE 0.157% 7T 0.2367%8 7T
Fair value per option HK$0.157 HK$0.236
ER R E (4 ) 1.48% 1.44%
Risk free interest rate (Note (a))

TEHE RS 0.41%& 7T 0.437%8 7T
Expected dividend per share HK$0.41 HK$0.43
T8 HA R 08 (Wt FE b)) 39.27% 36.79%
Expected volatility (Note (b))

T8 HA AR 4 4 7.5%F 7F
Expected life of options 7.5 years 7 years

() ERERFFERER L AR 25FHR10FHZEHITE
FELWNKRIE G EETE -

(b)  FEERMEEBERA L AR E R L F 7B NE o
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Notes:

(a) The risk free rate is based on linear interpolation of the yield of 5-year and 10-year
Hong Kong Government Bond on the date of grant.

(b)  The expected volatility is based on volatility of the stock price of the Company over
the past year.
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IMPORTANT DATES

Closure of Register of Members

Annual General Meeting

Final Dividend

Annual General Meeting
May 25, 2018

Dividends

Interim Dividend

Paid on

Proposed Final Dividend
Payable on

STOCK CODE

Stock Exchange
Bloomberg
Reuters

May 18, 2018 to May 25, 2018
(both days inclusive)

June 6, 2018 to June 8, 2018
(both days inclusive)

15.0 HK cents per share
September 22, 2017
20.0 HK cents per share
June 22, 2018

709
709 HK
0709.HK

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT

Giordano International Limited
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Welcome to the 2017 Environmental, Social and Governance (the
“ESG”) Report of Giordano International Limited (“Giordano”),
which updates our latest initiatives and achievements with respect to
sustainability. ‘World Without Strangers’ has been Giordano’s credo
since inception and reflects our vision to create a sense of familiarity,
regardless of ethnicity, nationality or culture.

Giordano has long been committed to being a responsible corporate
citizen, and formally adopted its Corporate Social Responsibility
policy statement in 2005. Since then we have continued to focus
on “doing well by doing good” in order to have a positive impact in
the communities where we do business, paying particular attention
to stakeholder relations, community involvement and environmental
protection.

With the onset of enhanced compliance requirements set by The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “HKEx”) on ESG Reports
and growing demand for corporate disclosure from stakeholders in
general, this Report primarily addresses our approach and performance
against ESG metrics, including the impact that we are making on
the environment and the community, the way we deliver responsible
products and exceptional service to our customers in a fair and
transparent manner, how we invest in our employees’ development and
foster an inclusive and supportive working environment, as well as our
framework to develop strong governance, effective risk management
systems and robust controls.

Reporting Standard and Scope

Prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide of the HKEx,
this Report provides an annual update of Giordano’s ESG performance
for the year of 2017, which covers our operations in Mainland
China, Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and Singapore (collectively, the
“Reporting Markets”), which contributed towards over 63% of
Giordano’s sales in 2016 excluding shops operated by our franchisees
and licensees. There are no significant changes in the reporting scope
of this Report from that of the last one in 2016. This Report is in
compliance with the “comply or explain” provisions, which also reports
on selected “recommended disclosures” of the HKEx’s ESG Reporting
Guide. A detailed References to “HKEx ESG Reporting Guide” has been
included at the back of this Report to aid readers and facilitate greater
transparency.

Stakeholders’ engagement is an integral part of Giordano’s business
development and commitment to global sustainable development.
In the preparation of this Report, we have continued to proactively
engage our key stakeholders (including our staff representatives,
our core suppliers as well as our customers), who play a critical role
in our business development. The stakeholders’ input, obtained via
questionnaires, provided us with a comprehensive assessment of the
key performance indicators (the “KPIs”) with respect to ESG issues
and helped us identify the priorities of our key stakeholders, which
consequently strengthens the coverage of this Report.

¢ w
e

o
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£ 7 GIORDANO:
B R E K MRV IR1E CARING FOR OUR ENVIRONMENT

BIEBEA : I BEHENEELURDHEER Environmental Aspect A1: Minimized Emissions
through Green-Minded Operations

1) FEESD - BB HEREELARRIES - ™A (1) At Giordano, we seek to ensure that our business operations

—

SEERNE—IRE  AEEENEE iﬁdf‘ﬁa’]M - &R are environmentally friendly, making every effort to reduce waste
— 1B TR E AR R HEN o and emissions from every aspect of our business activities,
from production at our suppliers through to our own business

operations.

@) FIHEE BENEETSMBELELMINTAMEE (@ We believe that our business activities and the faciliies of our
FIIRIRER o overall operations comply with the relevant laws and regulations
on environmental protection.

BIEETEA2: INER Environmental Aspect A2: Conserving Resources

™) %%*@%%?%ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ’]ﬁ DIERER R - &% (1) In active alignment with the Hong Kong governmental policy of
NERhERBERIB A EREEIR - KER - AR &R reducing “carbon footprint’, we are committed to reducing
MR OB BB - (RERRBERE - 10! carbon emissions and protecting and sustaining the environment

through efficient use of resources and reduced consumption of
electrical power, water, paper and raw materials by:

o EEMTI EMARFERNRRE e incorporating sustainable environmental practices into our
business principles;
. Eﬂ BMERMERER - Hlam R RM B8 e using resources wisely and efficiently, such as cutting the
; volume of raw materials and packaging consumed;
E%ﬁ%%ﬁl AR EEYI R EE e reducing waste generation within our operations;
HEHEBEEENSSNEHLSERERR R e promoting environmental protection, via supply chain
management and smart shop operations; and
s RARPMEBBEMRRER - e promoting environmental awareness among our customers
and business associates.
B A sER Saving Energy

HRENERESERNESREREMNETR  HMEAZMH  As electricity consumption is the biggest contributor to our GHG
E’J#JJ#’“*WE HEFET AR SIEA O RMIESEE/RMaE  emissions, various energy saving and efficiency measures have been
HIFEBE undertaken in most of our office premises and shops:

#1482 R #E IE Energy-saving initiatives

fREA 248 B2008F RBHEITREMEE - /IET/EHEREREE
Lighting A group-wide initiative to convert lighting in all shops to energy-saving lights since 2008

NEEHBN D RBAEZFHRARKTEHRSL
Replace chilled water air-conditioning with more efficient split-type air-conditioners

§ B R R §

72 i K 45 Reschedule the operating time of air-conditioning
Air-conditioning R =N TR E F£25-26°C

Maintain an average indoor temperature of 25-26°C

EHGEER  SEARERSRTES

Maintain and repair air-conditioners regularly for better performance

*TTE¥RA TN, 75

2GIOCRDANO W GREEN TEHM
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(2 ARBRAEBENRE  RAGETIERERNRE R
HEENIRIR - AR 5Rs RAI — B BAER - WF
HA  WEFSANRBEREMA  ERUEBEANTHET T
R - SRR EIRERE - RUCEL - LAROR A R
MEESL

o EMAEMEFRIE L RKERMER :

FEHRR B KBETR » W R IE(ERIAKER :
RIEMERELER]  EREFUE:

o HERMIARKERKLEDIIENNER

(o] Y5 % 22 HY 4RO
B3R A M B ARG
BEREBAEFENERE &
HERBRRBERBAREIRE -

e

HIREE MBS EEEF IR0 - 37 IR T —LER
BREMEARENEHEIIRA AR A — EEZFNE 2
2OK o EMREBRE  HE2ENRRRZISREE
RENEME RUSBBETARRL—2 ) WETEEE
FEIRIREAL ° 2010F HAPIE BB AR LK [ 42 B B |82
Heh — @RI T - [ EEEK | R T RPN REM
BRBER - KEBOREERLRE - EER2017FHITIA
T ARENZEE T2REETE -

() R IEBMR

BIRET —ORBRe TERNWHREE  REER
&R - 55| AIF M2 E— ERERERKAOBIS -

e
- . rkplace
Green the Workp!
s ‘?jl o T MR //‘

RERAELEENRRRRAM - BMA () & [RETEEHR] LERAARNBEHRESZSH

I (i) BT [RREELE] -

SAEEEEEEEEEEEEEE

Energy
Conservation

REE
Waste
Reduction

In our quest for excellence in environmentally-friendly pursuits during our daily business
operations, we (i) put our “Tips to Green the Workplace” on the Company’s Intranet; and
(ii) kicked off the “Green Awareness Contest”.

(2) Striving to create shareholders’ value, we are also concerned
with the conservation of ecological resources and driving
environmental protection. Based on the 5Rs principle — to
Replace, Reduce, Reuse, Recover and Recycle — Giordano
makes every effort to cut down on the use of resources, recycle
materials, as well as to reduce the generation of waste by
implementing different practices internally:

e  displaying notices and posters of water conservation at
offices and shops;
inspecting taps regularly and repairing any dripping promptly;
promoting the concept of “paperless meetings” with the
use of electronic copies of documents;

° pre-setting printers for double-sided and black-and-white

printing;

recycling used paper;

reusing and recycling carton boxes;

reusing shop furniture; and

reusing plastic packaging bags as bin bags.

Going Green at Work

Faced with the increasing threat to the environment over the years,
all of us undoubtedly owe a duty and responsibility to make Mother
Earth a cleaner and safer place to live in for ourselves and for future
generations. Acting in a socially and environmentally responsible way
is more than just a legal duty, and here at Giordano we encourage
our staff to adopt environmentally responsible behavior and promote
environmental protection in the workplace. The “Green Team”,
set up in our Hong Kong Headquarters in 2010, is a vivid example
bringing together representatives from different departments to initiate
programmes to promote low carbon living. In 2017, we also launched
the following initiatives to inspire and encourage staff’s green actions:

() Tips for greening our workplace

We put together and circulated within the Giordano Group a list of
tips to green our workplace, guiding staff to create a low-carbon
working environment.

e

iRt TEM

Awareness
& Engagement

Greenest

G
reen Workplace

Purchasing
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(i) TRERPDIETELLE ] (i) “Eco-Office Contest”
BRIEASN - BPIR2017F6 A =7 AERRINER 7 IR Our Mainland China market conducted an “Eco-Office Contest”
R|ANEFLE]  BEE I REAE  EEUNMAAEL during June to July of 2017, inviting staff to suggest creative ways
EEERIBR - LAT;EﬁfFﬁﬁ{ 1 %*ﬁ%éﬁk%%iﬁuﬁ to go green during their daily work. Below are the green ideas
BIEIRIR © from our 5 winners, sharing with you as to how to be eco-friendly

in office creatively.

Iﬂﬂii’ MR AR

Ll b L
[LET S0 L

e
A

e o

PEEM B X AR HE BRITBREME
Courier’s delivery box became a stationery Starting green actions from me
collection box

P L 1T

BENEEEEYHNESREER *um%ﬁiﬂ%ﬁgzﬁkﬁmﬁ%u
Old PA materials turned into a rucksack Using abandoned jeans for useful articles
(i) [RREELE “:.,
. ‘ SRR RIS EHE LS AR LR RBERRE

ERSREATRRFOUBL  RIRAA THREEANIFZREE - s e
Wit - ZAIHBRE2NEEEENRRBELE| - 25 () I A EEEEE '-T?,:l-:n-ﬂ-_m_;n?.‘._._.._._.‘lnrg_’:'
Eiﬁ{%ﬁl‘jﬁﬁ i QZ, (ii) E%W%Eﬁufﬂﬁ}gi§1%%n§% °© %glﬂf,ttg ’ E\Iﬁlé%@iﬂl o R )
FERERMERERAEE  SGEARBEERRNEHRT - WX RHEIGERA Green Meateness Contees [~ 09
BERMNBIR- -

N N N o o N - L EA l-ll'l'-ﬂ l:'.llljilﬂ"l.- 'l-l‘:‘F"l.:I.ﬂ.;!.l-I.Ijl.:lll:ﬂ
RIER0IBENDERAFTREANE RS - BRTRATISFAMER | |~ s
ERNGZEERI  BAEAERNREZERARITHNRRAIR W g

whmn i Tm e raa st e
(iii) “Green Awareness Contest” EE’.::_E;?:“ s
o BF RErRRIE PRTETE RERERL R

Recognizing that our staff’'s valued opinions and support are of paramount I s e A

importance to the critical challenge we face in reducing corporate carbon footprint, - ":“'.‘_,,f" "'.‘.'I,',"' e e

we called upon staff’s participation in the group-wide “Green Awareness Contest” T LT R TR et

by suggesting () green practices that we can adopt to be more environmentally- EE-um SNCENNEMS-AT! o amssEEEs

friendly or (i) green ideas on promoting environmental awareness within the Group.

Through this contest, staff are encouraged to contribute to our commitment SLLe m e wa e

towards sustainability in business operations and support Giordano in achieving its T m:’ -

sustainability goals. . T ——r—

The top three most practical and innovative suggestions will be announced and awarded prizes in early 2018. In addition to sharing
creative and practical green initiatives among staff, we target to adopt such feasible sustainable practices in the coming years.
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SHERRITH

20175  ER BB R SR T S EEBIAEERR -
EERBIRHEATHRRNER 0I5

@

(ii)

(iii)

[F 2 3 = W K1TE1](2/2017)

20174 » HPIEBE IR BATHNERERAEH - F
FEE THRRUERE - B DEMEHLKRER)E
TEMZH - BENNERERE RS ER  BRA
[FrEfMEH ] RBERBEETR -

(£ ERE - 1TE R 1K ]
(24/4/2017- 21/5/2017)

FITRIBIRGEMREENNREER L - AEERS
BEBRBAB O TIEMEES @ (EFRPRHER2017
FRRBTEH—EANSTHE - BISTNETERT
= TE PR B - R0 8% 0 [E 3R] 7E24/4/2017-21/5/2017 8 S &9
BEBRSH - £RR  AIBREEENSBELEE
417,145 ~ 404,066 J%2 341,3724 - MER R BIE AGE
FHELZHEIE (154,7775)

= &:

P |
W N

F

EREESEKRAITEI]
(7/2017)

RXFEAGEIEFUERETERERET O
REEBZFRIERRS - EFR2017FREEET
Y= W AR AR B IBEOARN E 7L -

Engagement in Green Activities

During the year of 2017, Giordano also arranged or participated in
a number of events to advocate environmental protection and raise
the environmental awareness of our staff and the community at large,
including:

(i) [Lai See Packet Collection Campaign] (2/2017)

In 2017, Giordano continued to support the Greeners Action’s
campaign to renew used Lai See packets. With the enthusiastic
response from our staff, over 1,000 Lai See packets were
collected from our offices and shops in Hong Kong, which were
distributed to the public for free after further processing.

(i) [Walking for health and low carbon]
(24/4/2017- 21/5/2017)

Walking is the easiest form of exercise to keep fit and reduce
stress. To encourage our staff to walk more in daily work and life,
Giordano held a month-long “Step-Count Challenge” in Mainland
China in 2017. 137 staff took the challenge by recording and
reporting their step-counts from 24/4/2017 to 21/5/2017. In
conclusion, the top three winners recorded their step-counts of
417,145, 404,066 and 341,372, respectively, and the East China
region achieved the highest average step-counts (154,777 steps).

EIORDBDA NGOG

(i) [Book Collection Campaign for World Vision]

(7/2017)
EEOREE

BOEHOE KM W R

To support World Vision’s charity sales for raising funds to run
the Tianjin Wuging Children Rehabilitation Centre for children with
disabilities, Giordano collected and donated over 50 books from
our Hong Kong staff in 2017.

2017 ESG Report
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Green Performance Overview

Graph 1

Below is a summary of our environmental performance with respect

to our operations in shops, offices and warehouses in the Reporting
Markets:

BEREHNE
Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions

#5t Total
P #3#E Scope (1+2)
‘ r (AM=F{CHER (CO,e)
8 Scope 2

(A= (%R (CO,e) e
i 38 Scope 1 2016 2017 ’ :
& Intensity e e 12,555 11,144
(A= EALREE | 5 AR THEE) (AB=S{LREE COe) -10.9%
(tCO,e/HK$1m sales) 2016 2017 - Y
199 225 _1 1 20/0 B LLEE
2016 2017 Eﬁl:.lf.ﬁ!ﬁ % Change
4.064 3.520 +12.8% % Change
B LS
% Change

-13.4%
BALLEH
% Change

BRRRESHAZRBHENEE (B AM-FHILHRER)
Total GHG Emissions by Category (Unit: tCO,e)

AEE DR EHLORHEER

Electricity Consumption

Corporate Vehicle Fuel Consumption

Y 11,144 225
(98%) (2%)

BEHERGEAN 2017 FEBEREHRE RN 08%
Electricity consumption accounts for 98% of our total GHG emissions in 2017

P8R Intensity . .

) » R ETER

STHK B BB T . .

ey ) ‘ ’ Vehicle Fuel Consumption
2016 2017

38.003 26.529

@ Total 3BEE Intensity BB Intensity
(W’Eﬂ Lire) | DI I B-EBEIHER) | (AM_StRER/ S-ARBTHER)
_28 2% _30 2% (Litre/HK$1m sales) (tCO,e/HK$1m sales)
TS LLEE o e 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017
% Change % Change 80,215 90,460 25.563 28.010

0.0635 0.0696

+12.8% +9.6% +9.6%

B LLEE BHOLLEE BSLLEE
% Change % Change % Change
FEE

Electricity Consumption

#5t Total 3 Intensity B Intensity
( F1EF E B kWh in *000s) (TR /S—EBBTHER) (AH—EtHER /S EEBTHER)
(kWh/HK$1m sales) (tCO,e/HK$1m sales)
2016 2017

2016 2017
6,190 5,386 4.001 3.451

2016 2017
19,423 17,394

-13% -13.8%
e L] EHLED

% Change % Change
2017 ESG Report
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W T
RN ER

38R Intensity
(DM / B—E8BTHEER)
(Tonne/HK$1m sales)
2017

#5t Total
( AW Tonne)

2016 2017 2016
17 20 0.00535 0.00629

+21.1% +17.7%
BALLEE HALLEE
% Change % Change

38[Z Intensity @%#@*ﬁhﬁ %%%
(AWM SHRRR)

(Tonne / Piece of
Finished Product)

2016 2017

%E Z\
0.00004 0.00004 EEREEIE

B8 125 Price Tag

( AW Tonne)
2016 2017
50 52 309

57 Flat

BRLL#E

% Change

+2.8%
aBALEn

% Change

. EH
EE}
e
iz s
g

1358
\}?_I;HH}

BiETE
BOF
o
Sapa
Edtgtnl
i
S

mgﬂ
ﬁ

BREER
Plastic Packaging Bag
(AT Tonne)
2016 2017

+3.1%
AR
% Change

y Paper Use A y

A
\ 4

Packaging Material Consumption

+6%
BALERH
% Change

B LEE

Notes:

% Change

4555 Carton Box
( AW Tonne)

2016 2017
319 837 898

+7.2%

BERZYHNE
(3% + WHS + BEWH)

Non-Hazardous Waste Generation
(Paper + Shopping Bags + Packaging Material)

#5t Total

+1.5%
HALLEE
% Change

3R Intensity
(PME/ B—EBBTHER)

(Tonne/HK$1m sales)

2016 2017
0.514 0.507

-1.4%
HALLEE
% Change

wysuEE 4
Shopping Bag Consumption
B Intensity

(AWM / B—EBBTHER)
(Tonne/HK$1m sales)

2016 2017 2016 2017
399 348 0.127 0.108
-12.8% -15.2%
BSLLEE BHSLLEE
% Change % Change

1. GHG Emissions

Due to our business nature, the significant air emissions of the Reporting
Markets are the GHG emissions arising mainly from the use of electricity and
fuels derived from fossil fuels.

GHG emissions data is presented in carbon dioxide equivalent (in tonnes) and
|(s) computed with reference to:

ENFRE2Y (AAMEA .
2 ([1PCC ) 7 #9 (20064

: fﬁj R TR R e TR CR
SRR RS

SR

(i)  EAFHTEE E%ﬁ%ﬁ*él#%%\&i%% REE B (F

st

=
S
gk
]

<
})‘HHE

Bl

=

I

i

s B
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St

(S|

o
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S

A
> o
I HETR
N
e

A
N
SRR
bl
D|RF

it
b=l
Sofda
i

BE -

B

&
%
B
Bt
B
[l
ESy
N%
Sjm
t
ot
<t
B
i
=
He

(i

2. BEREBME EARRBRBELGMNERNAZERY - 2.
P ZBEHRAKBERFEREBER 3

3t —¢t§'§¥£7ﬁf§§"7fu/‘}zﬁ%é§“
BT BORBERKBRAER

4. ERAREEBRDSHNETEEETR @ WESRERKRHRKE - 4.
5, HBREMBEFRNERMSAELETEBENARE (TRERE 5

BORMBEDH) -

6. BYRERBEERERTSEEMEHEANKENEHNBEYRA 6
B ]

(i)

(i)

)

v)

the “2006 IPCC Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas Inventories”
issued by the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (‘IPCC”);
the international reporting framework published by the World
Resources Institute and the World Business Council for Sustainable
Development, as reported in “The Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A
Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard”;

the “Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas
Emissions and Removals for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or
Institutional Purposes) in Hong Kong (2010 Edition)” issued by the
Electrical and Mechanical Services Department and the Environmental
Protection Department in Hong Kong;

the sustainability reports of the Hong Kong Electric Company Ltd,
the China Light and Power Company Ltd and the Companhia de
Electricidade de Macau; and

the data published by the International Energy Agency.

In order to provide a more comprehensive view of our GHG impact, we have
further classified the GHG emissions of Giordano into 2 scopes (as below),
which are defined in accordance with the international reporting framework
published by the World Resources Institute and the World Business Council
for Sustainable Development, as reported in ‘The Greenhouse Gas Protocol:
A Corporate Accounting and Repomng Standard”

()

(i

“Scope 1” covers direct emissions from operatlons that are owned
or controlled by the Reporting Markets, arising mainly from fuel used
by our own corporate vehicles (excluding the vehicle fleets of our
contractors);

“Scope 2" covers “energy indirect” emissions resulting from the
generation of purchased electricity consumed within the Reporting
Markets (excluding electricity consumed in some retail outlets in
departmental stores and/or shopping malls where electricity is not
separately charged).

In view of our business nature, Giordano is not aware of any significant generation of

hazardous waste.

Some retail stores operate in shopping malls and/or departmental stores where water

supply and discharge are controlled by the building management so the retrieval of
the relevant data is not feasible.

There is no issue in sourcing water that is fit for the purpose during the daily

operations of the Reporting Markets.

The amount of paper use is the amount of paper purchased to support the daily

operations of the Reporting Markets (excluding those of paper shopping bags and
packaging material).

The amount of shopping bags consumed is the amount of paper and plastic
shopping bags purchased for store use in the Reporting Markets.

e
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o HERENRRE SZEHREMHRNTZE

o THIRERMRE - N5 B RMEERRHEAR
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o EBURMIEHIHIRIBERNER o

@ EFHRAERERERREPRBEERNAIRFEEREE
TIBRRIERHERERENEETE 2 — - B+ OH
EEEBIEREIREH IR ERE R - 0EERE B
5o At - ERER MO HEERE - I EEERE
REREMEBNERREZZ — -

@ W B AZETERRMNESRY  Hh—@
B F 2 AR w1 AR G-Warmer 251 1&RBE X ) E e
—RBEEKD RS EREMEINLRBE TELE
7 mBASE2EW - BIRBA - RMESINFZE R
Lowe Alpine & 1ERES S’ Z 51| 7220174F A £ M £HE A
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Environmental Aspect A3: Minimizing Impact on the
Environment and Natural Resources for Sustainable

Development

(1)

Giordano places great emphasis on protecting the environment
and natural resources. We strive to improve our technical know-
how to minimize negative impact on the environment during
production and operations. We:

e take into account the environmental impact of our activities
and decisions;

e continuously improve the environmental protection initiatives
and strengthen target and responsibility assessments,
environmental protection supervision and management; and

e strictly control environmental risks.

Giordano follows strict sustainable development practices
throughout its operations, and places environmental protection
as one of its top priorities in the process of supply chain
management. We are concerned with the environmental risk
factors in production, such as emissions and waste discharge.
Thus, in the selection of our suppliers, their measure of protecting
the surrounding environment is one of our key selection criteria.

Moreover, we introduce green elements into our products. For
example, we use polypropylene as one of the major components
of our G-Warmer thermal base layer collection. Polypropylene
is degradable when exposed to heat and UV radiation, and is
also fully recyclable. For our premium crossover collection with
the outdoor wear brand, Lowe Alpine, we, starting from 2017,
used fabrics applied with Teflon-EcoElite finish, which is a non-
fluorinated fabric treatment for durable water repellency with 60%
of its raw materials being renewably sourced.

Furthermore, in support of environmental protection, we opted
to charge more per plastic shopping bag than that requested
under the Environmental Levy Scheme on Plastic Shopping Bags
of the Government of the HKSAR,; that is, from HK$0.5 to HK$1
effective from 1 January 2016, to discourage the use of plastic
bags and to encourage customers to bring their own bags.

In 2017, Giordano Ladies, one of our premium brands, created
a limited edition eco-friendly two-way shopping bag for its
members, who can redeem it at HK$30 upon any purchase.
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Social Aspect B1: Employment

(1) As an international apparel retailer, Giordano’s retail network
spreads across five continents of the world operating a total of
2,414 shops as at 31 December 2017, which enables us to
deliver our ‘World Without Strangers’ credo globally. For the
Reporting Markets, our headcount reached 5,016 talents as at 31
December 2017, with a 5% decrease from 2016:
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(2) Giordano believes that its long-term success depends on the
contribution of each and every individual in the organization.
As such, Giordano is committed towards treating its staff with
faimess and respect. We believe in co-operation, teamwork and
trust as the foundation of Giordano. We hire on the basis of ability
and merit, reward and promote on the basis of performance.

BEENEEZ L Respecting and Reflecting Diversity
BMRRAWHR D #E—EZ M ITIERR - JRR TEFH  We believe in diversity and endeavor to safeguard a diverse working
MYETHA : environment, which is reflected in the composition of our staff as
demonstrated below:
[E3 Graph 3
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(3) Employment Policy
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A series of policies, handbooks and protocols are in place in
Giordano to help build a workplace where our staff are treated
fairly and equally, with their rights and interests being protected.
These include:

@i

(ii)

(iii)

Staff Handbook

Giordano strictly complies with relevant labour laws
and regulations. All staff are treated equally, and their
employment, remuneration and promotion will not be
affected by their social identities such as ethnicity, race,
nationality, gender, religion, age, sexual orientation, political
faction or marital status.

Code of Conduct

Giordano believes that honesty, integrity and fairness
are important values, and are crucial to our long-term
development and success. Thus, the Code of Conduct
has been established to convey our expected standards of
conduct and practices to all staff, who are required to adhere
to the highest standards of business and professional ethics
so that we can eam the trust of our business partners and
customers and grow our business.

Whistle Blowing Policy

To create an open, transparent and safe working
environment where staff are able to speak up, we have a
longstanding whistleblowing policy in place that allows them
to raise concerns and for Giordano to follow up cases in a
systematic yet protective setting.

People Management

@i

(ii)

(iii)

Remuneration

Giordano offers competitive remuneration packages, share
options and generous goal-oriented or performance-based
bonuses tailored to different levels of staff, in order to reward
and retain a high-caliber leadership team.

Increasing Annual Leave Entitlement

In 2017, we largely increased the annual leave entitlement
of staff in the Hong Kong and Macau markets. This not only
allows them to have a better work-life balance and work
performance, but also helps retain and recruit talents and
finally enhance Giordano’s competitiveness.

Family-friendly Employment Practices
(@) Flexi-time Arrangement at Work

We want our staff to both enjoy and succeed at work
and at home. This is one of the keys to both retaining
high quality staff and allowing them to thrive. That is
why we strive to create a working environment which
caters for the needs of our staff and their families,
starting with the introduction of flexi-time work
arrangements for office staff in Hong Kong and Taiwan
from 2016.
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o Ei5{EZ : Commended cases:

(b) Supporting Breastfeeding

In support of our working mothers’ needs of pumping
milk in the workplace, we have specially designated
a private space in the office of our Hong Kong
Headquarters for expressing milk.

(iv) Acknowledging Our Staff

(a) Staff Commendation Award Scheme
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(v)

(vi)

Not only do we circulate commendations from our
customers who acknowledged our staff’'s good
performance, our Hong Kong Headquarters has also
additionally implemented a “Staff Commendation
Award Scheme” in September 2016 to encourage
and award staff with outstanding performance and/
or significant contributions. Outstanding staff will
be nominated every quarter and the winners will be
awarded with a Staff Commendation Certificate and a
cash coupon as a token of our appreciation.

(b) Long Service Award

In recognition of the faithfulness of our long-serving
staff at Hong Kong Headquarters, we present Long
Service Awards annually to staff who have served
the Company for 5 years, 10 years and 30 vyears,
respectively.

Staff Activities

To reinforce staff's sense of belonging to Giordano with a
healthy work-life balance, we arrange a wide range of staff
activities every year. This year, we organized various interest
group activities, some of which are quoted below, in which
staff could participate at minimal cost.

e [D.LY. R3] (23/6/2017)
EREFTBUETINRE—RE2E  RECKEE
HEEENNERMm -

e [D.LY. Leather Workshop] (23/6/2017)

15 Hong Kong Headquarters staff and their relatives

joined together to learn how to make their own favorite
leather wares for themselves and for their loved ones.

o [BERSH#E 2] (14/10/2017)

%ﬁéf@ EB24f B T A B A Bh Bk AR Bt R AR A E
NE

. [Picnic at High Island Reservoir East Dam]
(14/10/2017)

24 Hong Kong Headquarters staff and their relatives
had enchanting views of the Hong Kong UNESCO
Global Geopark.

Staff Satisfaction Surveys

Each year, Giordano conducts staff satisfaction surveys
to collect useful feedback as reference for improving our
pOhCIeS' 2017 ESG Report
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HtEEEB2 BEREHZEY (BZE) Social Aspect B2: Occupational Health and Safety (OHS)
1) BERFEEZ2EENNEEBRPERNEBLS @ K (1) OHS is a crucial component of Giordano’s overall safety
B Bt | N TN 8 framework, and reducing health and safety risks in the workplace
EIVE%F it @EZE;%@ gg EE%EEH@E@ H is our important and constant objective. In 2017, we continued to
% o 20174 « BAMIEBIISR ARG - BRG] - reinforce our strong leadership, management system and training
POg b2 2 LR AR B @RI - BEBL— programmes, so as to strengthen our safety culture and enhance
FEo R AR R A A E RS - our overall OHS performance. In review of last year, Giordano is
not aware of any non-compliant cases relating to OSH.
@ AER—EZTE2HIERE M- (2) To ensure a safe working environment, we:
() REZBESE) - URSEINZEZEH:: ()  provide intensive training programmes for our staff to
improve their safety awareness;
(i) THEZRIESANEZE  FREDIKEHEEE (i) regularly monitor workplace safety, particularly with District
ENEREMEE  UIERGESEREIRELZSE Supervisors allocated to supervise and monitor shop
0 operations to ensure each phase of which operates safely;
and
(i) EHRE - BEMNEHEBTIIESAERRITE - (i carry out workplace tidiness at our offices, warehouses and
PURD TESS R B A o shops to reduce workplace hazards.
BIEEARR Including, but not limited to :
(a) ZTHRZEREEULFR (a) Arranging OSH classes for stress-relieving
(RERE) (Taiwan Market)

. whn =
BRNEH R AT B EgEE
Total Body Resistance Exercise TRX Roller Relief Thump Boxing
b) XEERRE (b) Warehouse Renovation
BME0I7TFBHT TEAEREANES - T We renovated our warehouses in Hong Kong and
4 2 @ 9 9
BERSTMNERZE A FEIT—EARTE Mainland China in 2017, so as to enhance delivery
H T VEER 55 o efficiency and bring a safer working environment for our
staff.

() ERWRATREE LLEMBELZEZREEDER (c) Hosting the webpage “Tips on Occupational
BINER Health & Safety” on Giordano’s Intranet
e -
' A 4 ' E- H&%&%‘Mﬁ%d\éﬂ Tips on Occupational Health & Safety
v | 4 R
d '} ; L=

5"4 e

L — e ——— L R
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Social Aspect B3: Talent Development Strategy

(1

@

3)

)
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Giordano encourages learning and recognizes that values and
fairness as well as opportunities for continuous professional
and personal development are equally important drivers for high
achievers. As such, we invest heavily not only in comprehensive
staff training and development programmes in sales and service,
but also in management, planning and leadership programmes, to
address our staff's professional and personal development needs
and to retain a skilled and motivated workforce.

Pursuant to our 3E (i.e. Economy, Efficiency and Effectiveness)
policy, Giordano conducted a review of the team structure by
department heads in 2016 and identified talents for focused
development in the coming year.

Fast-Track Management Trainee Scheme

Giordano has always placed a strong focus on cultivating talent
with international perspective, insight into international practices
and strong competitiveness.

(@ Ever since the 1990’s, Giordano has operated a
Management Trainee (the “MT”) programme to nurture
retailing talents, with satisfactory results.

In 2014, we modified and upgraded our MT Scheme
in Hong Kong Headquarters to ensure that participants
received a holistic and comprehensive training experience,
such that upon graduation, successful graduates could
be placed directly into mid-management roles. With the
renaming of MTs as Fast-Trackers (the “FTs”), this reform
included a tightening in our admission requirements in terms
of academic results and a restructuring of the syllabus
to include real business tasks in various departments
and functions within Giordano. Successful graduates
have now taken on some important roles, including
product development and management as well as brand
management. Some of them have even stationed in
overseas regions.

In 2017, we also extended this Hong Kong style FT
programme to our Mainland China market to cultivate more
retailing talents for our future growth.

In-House Training Programmes

Giordano invests heavily in learning and development to maintain
its competitive edge. We believe that continual updating of
professional skills and the sharing of knowledge will allow the
Company to grow with the times. We therefore allocate ample
resources to staff training and development with the aim of
sustaining a competent, professional and ethical staff force that
will contribute to the success of the Company. In 2017, we have
provided in-house training to our frontline staff and non-frontline staff
of the Reporting Markets for over 48,000 hours and 9,200 hours,
respectively. The total number of training hours delivered in this year
is over 58,000 hours, a 72.5% increase as compared to 2016.

2017 ESG Report
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[E4 Graph 4
ETEZEINEE
Number of Training Hours Completed by Staff
BTN ERE

BIBET FATRET
Frontline Staff Non-Frontline Staff Total Number of Training Hours Completed
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i) RABE- -BEHRIIEFE (i) People-oriented Staff Development

Based on our staff's different needs, we regularly organize
internal training and on-job training for staff in different roles —
this not only improves our staff’'s work performance, but also
helps equip them with new skills to face new challenges.
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(b) BE1EEI (b) Refresher Training

bR T 2E B TR - ELFIltbE In addition to reviewing the basic skills, we equip staff
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(i) Other internal training programmes are designed to help staff

develop their capabilities, advance their careers and enhance
their management and interpersonal skills.

Hong Kong & Macau Markets

Neuro-Linguistic Programming (NLP)

[NLP — &8 | (RARARE T MER)
“NLP in Selling”
(for junior frontline staff)

[MBTIR M RIE | (B AT AR5 KB M R)
“MBTI at Work”
(for frontline Store Managers)

ARG

—E5I5 [ A FE | RTGD F & AMESRHKRMA
[2016%F G R RIS RENZHWMEEDN
BEPRHORE - BREFATRBICOLE RS -
RERMEESRIRES — - PSR AT
R ABETE -

[NLP 2 AMRBRER | (RAIRBEBEEHLEMR)
“Building Relationship through NLP”
(for frontline Assistant Store Managers)

[RIERIERIH | (RBAZEETITMR)
“Achieving Success through Creativity & Innovation”
(for office staff)

Passing the Torch

By having 2 of our winners of the HKRMA “2016 Service
& Courtesy Award” shared their valuable customer service
experience, a series of 5 “Passing the Torch” sharing
sessions motivated our staff to embrace the motto of
“Serving with Heart”. As long as we keep on making our
customer service the top priority, our Giordano spirit will be
passing on.

2017 ESG Report
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RE™E Taiwan Market
ERMEE [ mREHBEREER TS
Training Camps for Shop Managers “Financial Reporting & Data Management” Workshop
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(iii) Giordano Corporate Management Guide

Giordano’s core values, corporate culture and accumulated
experience are parts of our success story. Led by our
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Dr. Peter Lau,
together with the contribution from staff members from
various departments, we have summarized this information
into four guide books for staff's easy reference. It is hoped

that, by turning tacit knowledge built on experiences,
E E @ aptitudes and know-how into explicit knowledge, our staff
could benefit in the long term.
(ivi [ BEE Xt | EENRLETE (iv) Online Learning Resources on the “Knowledge
is Golden” Webpage

é’
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(v) Self-Learning Scheme

Through the Self-Learning Scheme adopted since 1999 in
Hong Kong Headquarters, we foster a continuous learning
atmosphere to promote staff’s individual initiative and
responsibility for development by self-learning.

(vi) Survey on Training Needs

Each year, we conduct a survey to understand our staff's
expectations and needs for training, which aids in designing
the useful and practical training programmes for them in the
following year.

(vii) Training Subsidies

To further motivate our staff to continue developing their
skills and enhancing their knowledge, Giordano has different
subsidy schemes in place:

(@) Study Allowance Scheme

To encourage our staff to enhance their knowledge
and skills for personal growth, which benefits their work
performance and future career development, Hong
Kong Headquarters has set up a “Study Allowance
Scheme” to subsidize our staff in taking external work-
related training courses.

(b) Management Academic Assistance Scheme

The “Management Academic Assistance Scheme”
has been implemented since September 2016,
which is designed to develop existing and potential
management talent at Hong Kong Headquarters
through financial support to successful applicants who
wish to pursue higher education, such as studying in
undergraduate or postgraduate degrees or attainment
of professional qualifications or accreditation.

(viii) “Career Development Programme”
for Shop Staff

To provide our shop staff with more opportunities for
development and enhance their job satisfaction, Hong
Kong Headquarters has launched a “Career Development
Programme”. It is tailored for those shop staff nominated
by their supervisors, aiming to equip staff with the skills they
require to develop their careers through additional training.

Social Aspect B4: Policies on Labour Standards and
Human Rights

Giordano prohibits the employment of child, forced or compulsory
labour in any of its operations, including at suppliers’ production
facilities. In 2017, we did not identify any operation or suppliers having
significant risks of child labour, workers exposed to hazardous works,
or forced or compulsory labour.
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Social Aspect B5: Efficient Supply Chain Management

At Giordano, supply chain management is based on the premise
of satisfying customers’ needs, and better coordination among the
various functions of our business, such as the supplies, manufacturing,
warehousing and distribution by better planning and through
information sharing. Through more effective integration of resources, we
thus reduce costs and maximize efficiency.

As at 31 December 2017, Giordano has a total of 109 suppliers,
located in different parts of the world:

HER A HIE D H
Suppliers by Geographical Region
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(5.5%) (2.8%)

3

s HE (BEEE)
China (including Hong Kong)

° HEIE
Southeast Aisa
91 .
(83.5%) °* M
Europe

o HRHAMILE
Rest of the world

Notes:

o Suppliers refer to the manufacturers of apparel and accessories which are directly
engaged by Giordano.

o The geographical location of a supplier is based on the location of its production

facilities and its headquarters.
o Figures may not add up to 100% due to rounding.

We have established a complete supplier quality assurance
mechanism, which covers supplier approval and evaluation, quality
inspection and supervision, strategic supplier development and
materials procurement.

Furthermore, we actively promote the sustainable development of our
supply chain and the joint fulfilment of corporate social responsibility
with our partners to provide the public with high quality products and
services. As such, supply chain management is always one of the key
links in Giordano’s quality control system.
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Ethical Sourcing

As supply chain management is critical for Giordano’s success,
we work closely with suppliers to ensure that they comply with our
quality, performance and not least labour standards. In particular,
we expect them to comply with the below “Core Ethical Sourcing
Requirements”:

the supplier
e only employs workers that are above the local legal
minimum age;

e does not use forced or prison labour in any part or
aspects of its facilities;
does not, or threaten to, physically abuse its workers;
does not contravene local environmental laws and
regulations;

e provides a safe and healthy work environment for its
workers; and

e is compliant with our various standards and committed to
following up corrective actions.

We aim to do business with those suppliers sharing similar
values and principles, and intend to purchase from those who
meet our above “Core Ethical Sourcing Requirements” and have
demonstrated a commitment to improving their standards on
labour, health and safety, and environmental practices. Thus, prior
to engagement, new suppliers are required to complete and pass
our “Ethical Audit Questionnaire”.

Quality Assurance Mechanism
()  Giordano exercises a high level of scrutiny over the selection
of suppliers. Apart from eligibility checking, suppliers are also
subject to assessment and on-site audits on product quality
as well as suitability and quality consistency tests conducted
by our Quality Assurance team. Only those pass our audits
and assessments will be included into the “Qualified Supplier
List” for purchases. Also, to ensure our product quality, we
carry out long-term quality monitoring and regular audits/
reviews on all suppliers. Should there be any significant
change in a supplier’s eligibility or any serious quality issue,
we may suspend its deliveries immediately and, if necessary,
cancel its status as our qualified supplier. Moreover, our
unannounced inspections from time-to-time will ensure our
suppliers comply with our various standards.

(i) In order to mitigate environmental and social risks within our
supply chain, and to promote the sustainable development
of our suppliers, a “Quality Manual” which covers below
guiding documents is also distributed to our key suppliers:

° “Suppliers Code of Conduct”;

° “Workplace Standards”;

e “Product Safety and Regulated Substances
Specification”; and

e “Accepting and Offering Policy”.

2017 ESG Report
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(i) A supplier database has been established, and through on-
line transactions, we provide suppliers with fair, transparent
and competitive opportunities. With “open business,
controlled processes, fully documented and permanently
traceable” as our watchwords, we thus ensure the quality
of procured products and services compliant with our

standards.

Enhancing Competitiveness by Technological
Innovation

Giordano will carefully examine every detail of the production
process and raise any issues that may be discovered, with the
aim of working with its suppliers to identify possible areas for
further improvement. By optimizing the process, upgrading the
technology and improving the workmanship, our suppliers not
only greatly improve their production efficiency and product
quality, but also help upgrade their capabilities in response to
more challenging markets and enhance their competitiveness.
This close-knit working relationship between both sides allows
the parties to maintain a more stable and mutually benefit
cooperation.

Inventory Control

()  Inventory control is a key indicator of merchandising
efficiency and remains a core competence of Giordano.
“ZERO STORAGE’ is another core value of Giordano’s
inventory control. We will continue to cautiously adjust
our inventory portfolio and, once the resultant overstock
depletes, our margins and profitability further recover. As
a result of our effective inventory control, our inventory
remained healthy, with inventory turnover days on cost for
the year ended 31 December 2017 was 87 days.

(i) In addition to our own consolidated inventory, Giordano
responsibly monitors inventory held at our suppliers and the
franchisees in Mainland China to ensure that we do not build
up off-balance sheet inventory that would jeopardize our
merchandising flexibility and wholesale business in future.

On-line Delivery Based Open-to-Buy Application
(“DBOTB”)

Giordano started implementing an on-line DBOTB from 2016,
which:

systematically controls and adjusts purchase orders and
delivery schedules;

improves communication among our buyers, subsidiaries
and the headquarters on-ling;

simplifies the planning and buying process;

allows prompt response to dynamic market conditions; and
enhances the headquarters’ visibility when performing stock
allocation and hence maximizing sales opportunities.

—
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Social Aspect B6: Service and Product Liability

At Giordano, we continuously strive to provide our customers with the
most enlightening shopping experience. Giordano’s straight-forward
mission, ‘To Make People FEEL GOOD and LOOK GREAT, has
fully revealed our total commitment to superior service and outstanding
quality.

M

“Giordano Means Service” Campaign

Giordano’s commitment to superior service stems from the
“Giordano Means Service” campaign which was first launched
in 1989, at which time every staff wore yellow badges bearing the
words “Giordano Means Service”. Since then, quality service has
become one of the tenets of Giordano.

To ensure every shop staff offers excellent customer service, we
conduct performance evaluations frequently at the store level,
as well as for frontline staff by mystery shoppers. Our efforts to
provide excellent customer service have been recognized by
a long list of service-related awards we have received over the
years, including the “2017 Service & Courtesy Award” presented
by the Hong Kong Retail Management Association (‘HKRMA”).

EETECEHSEEMN [2017FEHH R | “2017 Service & Courtesy Award” presented by HKRMA

5 “Recruit” Magazine “Recruit”
(10 & 17/11/2017)

#7% H ¥Rk Economic Daily News
(5/12/2017)
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“Exceeding customers’ expectations” is a simple objective that Giordano has upheld for many years, which we achieve through “thinking
one step ahead for customers’ needs” and “providing tailor-made services”. Our frontline staff provide professional advice and flexible and
rapid response to customers, helping them choose the right products in need. Meanwhile, to satisfy our customers, we also allow them to

RIS BAEHE - ARrER AEESR 4| [EHRIEN
CEpus ’@ CEEE BT AEBOMTENER - BLRAE  RHETP @ &

return and exchange after purchases.

20175 HZ » Giordano Ladies’AHKRMA# M EEZE 512l
MR R R EARNETRE
Giordano Ladies was awarded with a Certificate of
Achievement (Fashion & Accessories Category) by
HKRMA under the Mystery Shopper Programme for
the first quarter of 2017
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One of our frontline staff was elected as the first runner-up

of the Best Staff Services (Distributor Division) by Metropole

Department Store, North Point, Hong Kong in recognition of
his excellent service in the second quarter of 2017

ERREERSNREMNEE - BERANSNE LTS
KA AYouGovit B EB2017TFERSHERERE
ESRNENE
GIORDANO ranked 9th in Hong Kong 2017 Top
Brand Advocacy Improvers in recognition of its high
brand awareness by the world-leading online market
research company YouGov

YouGovBrandindex
Hiig Kang 2017 Top 10 Brand Advoracy Wprowers
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Giordano won the Brand of the Year Award (Regional Tier)
by the World Brandlng Forum in 2017

%\RAERDING i’&p}

World Branding Awards
P

(2) Safety and Health

()  In addition to the professional customer service, a pleasant
shopping experience also requires a comfortable and safe
shopping environment. We are committed to (a) ensuring a
safe and healthy environment for our staff and customers,
and (b) eliminating preventable accidents and health hazards
in our business locations.

(i)  As mentioned in earlier Social Aspect B5(2)(ii), we have a
Quality Manual setting forth our standards and specification
regarding product quality and safety for our suppliers’
compliance.

(i) We demand our suppliers to comply with all applicable laws
and regulations on product safety, and regularly update
them of the hazardous substance and inhumane production
processes banned by Giordano, such as the “sandblasting”
process and the “live-plucking” goose down process.

(iv) We also engage independent and accredited third party
laboratories to test our materials and products, to ensure
compliance with the international safety standards.
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“IP Manager Training Programme”

Nowadays, intellectual property (‘IP”) is recognized as a key
element in business development and, here at Giordano,
protecting IP rights is one of our top priorities. To enhance
awareness of IP protection within Giordano and to proactively
protect our IP from infringement, two of our subsidiaries
participated in the IP Manager Scheme organized by Intellectual
Property Department of Hong Kong (the “IPD”) in 2017. After
completion of its “IP Manager Training Programme” by our staff,
we were awarded a Certificate of Commendation.

Consumer Data Protection and Privacy Policies

Customer privacy has become hot news that we cannot overlook.
In compliance with the laws, we have our Group-wise “Privacy
Policy and Personal Information Collection Statement” (in both
English and Chinese versions) revised in April 2015, as uploaded
onto its official websites and e-shops for customers’ reference.
Besides, staff are reminded to fully observe the policy from time to
time.

Social Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

(1)

ESG.23

We adopt a zero-tolerance approach towards bribery and
corruption, and our Staff Handbook and Code of Conduct (as
uploaded onto the Company’s Intranet) clearly inform our staff of
Giordano’s strict standards regarding anti-corruption, anti-bribery,
conflicts of interest, gift, procurement and whistle-blowing policies,
as well as our policies on dealings and investment in Giordano’s
shares.

To ensure that our staff comply with the requirements imposed
and uphold high ethical standards, all staff are required to
complete and submit a “Declaration of Interests” at least once a
year. If there are any cases of conflict of interest, the relevant staff
are required to update their declaration immediately.

We also proactively promote business integrity and ethics among
our staff by organizing seminars on anti-corruption bi-annually.
Hong Kong Headquarters regularly invites representatives from
the Independent Commission Against Corruption (“ICAC”) to
make a presentation on the topic of corruption prevention and
integrity management for our new staff, and the coming one is to
be held in February 2018. This kind of seminars is compulsory as
to be attended at least once by each Hong Kong Headquarters
staff.

Furthermore, our contracts with suppliers require their full
compliance with our Quality Manual, including “Advantage
Solicitation and Acceptance” as quoted in earlier Social Aspect
B5(2)(ii). In addition, we regularly issue reminders to all relevant
staff, business associates and suppliers reminding them of our
Group Policy on Accepting and Offering Advantages (i.e. twice a
year, before Mid-Autumn Festival and Chinese Lunar New Year).
We are not aware of any incidents of non-compliance in relation to

anti-corruption in 2017.
2017 ESG Report
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Social Aspect B8: Community Involvement

Contributing to our community is a very important part of Giordano’s
ethos. Acting on our belief in a ‘World Without Strangers’,
Giordano actively supports various charitable organizations and
causes, especially those associated with education, children and the
underprivileged.

Giordano has engaged in a number of ongoing educational projects:

In 2014, we launched the “Do Not Read This” campaign in
conjunction with Room to Read, which raised funds for the
non-profit organization through selling limited edition T-shirts in
Giordano’s shops. With Giordano’s donations, Room to Read
published 15,000 copies of two children’s books in two Indian
languages for underprivileged children.

This focus on education for underprivileged children is also
evident in another Giordano’s ongoing project, Project Hope, a
public service project organized by the China Youth Development
Foundation. Giordano has been a long-standing supporter of the
project’s work in providing children in poverty-stricken rural areas
of Mainland China with access to primary school education by
funding the construction of a number of Giordano Hope primary
schools. As at the end of 2017, 22 Giordano primary schools of
Hope have been completed.

We also donated to the Caring for Children Foundation in support
of children’s welfare in Mainland China.

= are S BARE EEW

LEY ]
TR R

##¥ Hong Kong Daily News
(11/9/2014)
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HA—ABNhBRBHNREES - B NER) Room to Read Hihf °
One of the children books, in Hindi, published by Room to Read with

Giordano’s donation.
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We place high priority in creating value for the communities we serve,
which is illustrated through our investment in a variety of community
initiatives. We strive to create a positive impact on the communities
where we conduct business, through collaboration, staff volunteerism
and strategic giving. Our public engagement and donations help us
uphold a commitment to serving the communities by way of cash and

in-kin

ERHLA0METHFEES
50 Hong Kong Headquarters staff attended the event, and finally 36 of them successfully donated blood.
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d donations, as well as staff participation.

[AItEZHENEER 2R _FHREK]
(1-30/4/2017)
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[ Fundraising Campaign for Genesis Social Welfare

Foundation] (1-30/4/2017)

Taiwan market has collected 22 boxes of second-hand
items and raised TWD5,210 for donation to Genesis Social
Welfare Foundation assisting vegetative patients so that the
disadvantaged could receive more resources.

[ZFBHEEEA](14/5/2017)
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[Supporting Caritas Flag Selling Day] (14/5/2017)

A total of 26 Hong Kong Headquarters staff and their relatives
volunteered for flag-selling, and all donations were contributed to
Caritas, Hong Kong for its services on the elderly, students and
families in special needs.

[ZEF7.7EBE R E4E B](7/7/2017)
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[Supporting MSF DAY] (7/7/2017)
18 Hong Kong Headquarters staff and their relatives participated

in supporting MSF Day and donated HK$6,000 to Médecins Sans
Frontieres Hong Kong.

[Blood Donation Day] (3/8/2017)

=% B36M 8 T INEI -
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[Mid-Autumn Mooncake Charity Sale] (16-25/8/2017)

Staff from Hong Kong Headquarters purchased 35 boxes of
mooncakes for HK$5,548 totally, to fund Sin Kai Fund Ltd. for
constructing primary schools in poverty-stricken rural areas in
Mainland China.

[Voluntary work at Canaan Bakery & Sheltered Workshop
of Eden Social Welfare Foundation] (27/9/2017)

UABMBFIBREREr & - WFERFIE PR E BRI o

15 staff from our Taiwan market volunteered to assist the mild disabled persons in packaging mooncakes, helping them to earn their
own living, while showing our care and recognition.

[BEREOBABHENE R AL](28/9/2017) .
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[Caring for Mentally-Disabled People at Syin-lu Liougui
District] (28/9/2017)

18 staff from the Taiwan market joined hands with the volunteers
from the Syin-Lu Social Welfare Foundation to voluntarily work
in the Asia Village of the Liougui District. They accompanied the
disadvantaged to visit an art gallery and had some group activities,
S0 as to enhance their interpersonal and social experience. Finally,
TWD $16,540 was raised in this activity.

Our Hong Kong headquarters partnered with Ronald McDonald
House Charities to donate 100 pieces of G-warmer thermal inner
wear for the hospitalized children, and organized a party for them
with their families.
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BRiEE HA1: $E Y Environmental Aspect A1: Emissions

— e EE
General Disclosure

EE@%ﬁ&iiﬁﬁgﬁmﬁz CAKE AT c BERBETEEVNELSH

@ ME: R

b BFHETABEATENHBERLROINER

Information on:

(@ the policies; and

(o) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and

generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

Al

A BAR IR RAT A
KPI A1.1

i CLE R WS EIEL ke 2 6 S

Types of emissions and respective emissions data.

[E1 Graph 1

BB AR B IRAT .2
KPI A1.2

hERBEATENE K (WER) BE
Greenhouse gas emission in total and, where appropriate, intensity.

[E1 Graph 1

BB MIRIRA1S
KPIA1.3

PRELXREREEMREN WER)ZE

Total hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity.

&1 FffsE2
Note 2 of Graph 1

RASAE IR IRAL 4
KPIA1.4

IELBEERNRERTE

Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity.

81 Graph 1

KPI A1.6

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, reduction
initiatives and results achieved.

BB IEIEALS U E B E R R ET1S AR A2
KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved. &1 Graph 1
RS AE RIS IEA1.6 HEEEERBEZEZEMN L  REEESENHEBRAGHR A2(2)

81 Graph 1

BIEEMmA2 | EJR{EA Environmental Aspect A2: Use of Resources

per unit produced.

— MR R BREAER(BIEER K REMRME) BB A2

General Disclosure Policies on efficient use of resources including energy, water and other raw materials.

BB A R 1RA21 RENESWEER SHEEREEEREE [E1 Graph 1

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity.

RS AE IE1RA2.2 BRKEREE &1 Graph 1

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity.

BB HE1RA2.3 it IR A e et &I R PR IS AR A2

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved. &1 Graph 1

BASE IR 1RA2.4 FASKEGE A AOR_ LRI B EAIRRE - A RIBF KR 8 R PSR A2

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water, water efficiency initiatives | &1 X134
and results achieved. Graph 1 & its Note 4

BB IR IRA2.5 HEXmATAEEMHNEER (WER) BEEEMLE [&1 Graph 1

KPI'A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products, and if applicable, with reference to

BIEEMEAS | BB K XA E R Environmental Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

KPI A3.1

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural
resources and actions taken to manage them.

—RIEE MEETABRERRABERENEAT ENHE A3

General Disclosure Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and natural
resources.

A B A5 MUE 1RAS. 1 AR EBEIRELRRAERNEATENE RN EEAAZ ENTH A3
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2 EEB1: /21% Social Aspect B1: Employment

KPI B4.1

Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and forced
labour.

—ARHEE FAHMLRE BEREA  ITHERE - RE FEHE - 2ot REKRNA | B1
General Disclosure R EADFB RAEMNE
@ BE: & ]
b BFHETABEATENHBEERLRIIHNER
Information on:
(@ the policies, and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, ant-discrimination, and other benefits and
welfare.
PIRRAENGEIEET.T | RMR) EBERE - FEERIRILEE S IR S K 253
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical region. Graph 2 & 3
RSB WIE1EB1.2 BRI Fherl Rl MR B 5 H)E Bkt X
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region.
2 EEB2 : #FEE % 2 Social Aspect B2: Health and Safety
— MR BRRMHLZ2TERERREEEREBELEEN B2
General Disclosure @ BER: &
b) BEBTFTEHETABERZENEBEEZLROINER
Information on:
(@ the policies; and
(o) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.
MstiEUREE21 | BTEBEMEC AR RLE
KPIB2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities.
RSRAEIE1EB2.2 EAITEEEAIERH
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.
MEMEIEIEE23 | HATRAMBRERERE 2 - U RARRIT RERTA B2
KPI B2.3 Description of occupation health and safety measures adopted, how they are
implemented and monitored.
2 EMEB3 : ¥ & Ki1Z3| Social Aspect B3: Development and Training
— MR e FRRAERERITIEBRENMM I REAERIBUR © #HlEES B3
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities.
A5 4E B 1RB3A1 Rt REEBERIBISHNXIIEEB
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category.
PsENiEEEs2 | RMBIREEENES  SERARKZINTHSH
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee
category.
#EEEB4 : & I %8| Social Aspect B4: Labour Standards
—MRHE BRABHIEE T ekoaHils TH) - B4
General Disclosure @ B &
b)) BEFHBEITABERZENRBER KRN ER
Information on:
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
PRAEAEIERA T | AR RRBANERR R E T REHNST B4, B5(1)

RIS M IE1RB4.2
KPI B4.2

i AL 25 TR AR 1B B B PR B T o4 il 45 T8 AT ER B 9 20 B
Description of steps taken to eliminate child and forced labour practices when
discovered.
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H2EEBS : tfEHEEIE Social Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

— R H R
General Disclosure

EIEHIEENRE Mt g AR BUR
Policies on managing environment and social risks of the supply chain.

BS

BB A K HE1RB5.1
KPI B5.1

bizea R BaNzokead i 2d=
Number of suppliers by geographical region.

&5 Graph 5

KPI B8.2

Resources contributed to the focus areas.

RSB e 1RBs.2 B R A HERNEN  mERTEBENNHEERRE - AREMIENH | BS
KPI B5.2 WITERAA
Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.
= EEB6 : & W E{E Social Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
—MRE BRMEHERMBREORERELZS  BE  RELAMEBEEULRBRAER : | B6
General Disclosure @ BEE: &
b) BEFHEITABERZEMNEMERE AN ER
Information on:
(@ the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labeling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress.
RS2 45 W IE15B6. 1 PEHDEXERAHTRL 2 RERIEHMARKNE S
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health
reasons.
BB A e 1EB6 .2 BB Em KRG HIRFE B A R EH %
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are dealt
with.
BG4 IE1RB6.3 Tt B A T R AR AN R E RS eV 1B B6(3)
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property rights.
RS E 5 15B6.4 MBS RTERENRERBKREF
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.
RS A& I 15B6.5 il E & E B RMRE RILBECE - A RBEERTRER A B6(4)
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are
implemented and monitored.
2 EMEB7 : RE’5 Social Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
— MR EE BRED IEBRRR - $FR - BGGF RO REN B7
General Disclosure @ BE: &
b) ETFTEHEITAGBEAZEMNEER LRI ER
Information on:
(@ the policies; and
(o) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
BB E R RBT .1 RERAANHETARHESRETEELENE THRARMENEE LFAER
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the
issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.
RSB I 1EBT .2 RS R BRIZF U RABRITRER A B1(3), B7
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored.
#EEEBS : #EiR¥E Social Aspect B8: Community Investment
— R AMME2ER T REEFMELERSANRRALEEHEEBHENZY | B
General Disclosure 6
Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities
where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities” interests.
RASE4E W5 15B8. 1 BT RS B8
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution.
BB 5 1RB8.2 EEFEBEAER
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Giordano International Limited =/ BB ER A F
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability 74 & #Z MM L 2 HRAF)

5th Floor Tin On Industrial Building, 777-779 Cheung Sha Wan Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BRNERDBBTTT-TTSI AR TERE512

www.giordano.com
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